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11 November 2008 T Y

Office of International Corporate Financt
Division of Corporate Finance
08005980

Securities and Exchange Commission

Judiciary Plaza, 450 Fifth Street, NW. 11D 1
Washington, D.C. 20549 E_

USA

Re: Redflex Holdings Limited: Rule 12g3-2(b) Exemption File No. 82-34862

Ladies and Gentlemen:

Pursuant to Rule 12g3-2(b)(1)(iii) and on behalf of Redflex Holdings Limited (the “Company”},
enclosed are the documents described on Schedule | hereto for your attention.

These documents supplement the information previously provided with respect to the Company's
request for exemption under Rule 12g3-2(b), which was established on 24 February 2005.

This information is being furished with the understanding that such information and documents
will not be deemed “filed” with the SEC or otherwise subject to the liabilities of Section 18 of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Act”), and that neither this letter nor the
furnishing of such information and documents shall constitute an admission for any purpose that
the Company is subject to the Exchange Act.

Please do not hesitate to contact the undersigned by telephone at +61 3 9674 1712 or by facsimile
at +61 3 9696 1411 in Melboumne, Australia if you have any questions.

Please acknowledge receipt of this letter and the enclosed material by date stamping the

enclosed receipt copy of this letter and returning it in the pre-addressed envelope also
enclosed herewith.

Yours faithfully PROCESSED
&
% 09 L NOV 2 62008 &\<
- 7/ ‘ THOMSON REUTERS
Marilyn Stephens

Company Secretary 9\)
Enclosures: 1. Receipt Copy of this letter, and . | d(

2. Schedule 1 [\ (}~




Schedule |

11 November 2008

Documents made public since the last submission on 9 October 2008:

Date ltem Description
New issue announcement, application for quotation of additional
10 November 2008 Appendix 3B securities and agreement re 70,000 shares which were the result
of exercise of unlisted employee options.
Redflex announces Two lllinois Villages choose Redftex Traffic
10 November 2008 Company Announcement Systems for Red Light Photo Enforcement
Change of Director's Interest Notices for Christopher Cooper,
Graham Davie, Robin Debernardi, Peter Lewinsky and
endix 3Ys and - A . -
7 November 2008 AppAppendix 3B New issue announcement, application for quotation of additional

securities and agreement re 70,005 shares of which 70,000 were
the result of exercise of unlisted employee options and 5 were
conversion of unlisted to listed shares,

7 November 2008

Company Announcement

Redflex announces Redflex executes a new S3$32 million, 5-year
Maintenance & Support Services Contract with the City of
Chicago

6 November 2008

Appendix 3B

New issue announcement, application for quotation of additional
securities and agreement re 659,965 shares issued 3 November
2008 pursuant to the Dividend Reinvestment Plan

6 November 2008

Company Announcement

Redflex announces Redflex Traffic Systems’ Inaugural Photo
Enforcement Program in the State of Montana

Redflex announces Redflex Traffic Systems wins New Zealand

5 November 2008 Company Announcernent Mobite Radar Speed Camera Contract valued at over AUS3
million
Redflex announces Redflex Traffic Systems wins 2008 Govemor of
22 October 2008 Company Announcement Victoria Export Award for Large Advanced Manufacturer
Redflex announces Redflex 2008 Dividend Reinvestment Plan price
20 October 2008 Company Announcement of $2.606907 (including the 5% discount)
- New issue announcement re 613,683 performance rights with 3 year
20 October 2008 Appendix 3B performance period to 1 October 2011
Redfiex announces Two New Photo Enfarcement Contracts — Bell
20 October 2008 Company Announcement Gardens, CA and Roseburg, OR
Redflex announces AGM 2008 and attaches meeting documents
17 October 2008 Company Announcement including Notice of Meeting, Explanatory Statement and annual
repont
17 October 2008 Appendix 3Y Change of Director's Interest Notice for Roger Sawley
16 October 2008 Company Announcement Redflex announces Red L:ght E'nft')rcemenl Contracts in Tualatin,
Oregon and South Elgin, lllincis
43 October 2008 Appendices 3Y Change of Director's Interest Notices for Roger Sawley and

Christopher Cooper

10 October 2008

Company Announcement

Redfiex announces Indicative proposals Received

Schedule 1 Page 1
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RECEIPT COPY
11 November 2008

Office of International Corporate Finance
Division of Corporate Finance

Securities and Exchange Commission
Judiciary Plaza, 450 Fifth Street, NW.
Washington, D.C. 20549

USA

Re: Redflex Holdings Limited: Rule 12g3-2(b) Exemption File No. 82-34862

Ladies and Gentlemen:

Pursuant to Rule 12g3-2(b){1)(iii) and on behalf of Redflex Holdings Limited (the “Company”),
enclosed are the documents described on Schedule | hereto for your attention.

These documents supplement the information previously provided with respect to the Company’s
request for exemption under Rule 12g3-2(b), which was established on February 24, 2005.

This information is being fumished with the understanding that such information and documents
will not be deemed “filed” with the SEC or otherwise subject to the liabilities of Section 18 of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Act”),  and that neither this letter nor the
furnishing of such information and documents shall constitute an admission for any purpose that
the Company is subject to the Exchange Act.

Please do not hesitate to contact the undersigned by telephone at +61 3 9674 1712 or by facsimile
at +61 3 9699 3566 in Melboume, Australia if you have any questions.

Please acknowledge receipt of this letter and the enclosed material by date stamping the
enclosed receipt copy of this letter and returning it in the pre-addressed envelope also
enclosed herewith.

Yours faithfully

%/ e

Marilyn Stephens
Company Secretary

Enclosures: 1. Receipt copy of this letter, and
2. Schedule 1

Schedule 1 Page 2
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Rule 2.7, 3.10.3,3.104, 3.10.5

Appendix 3B

New issue announcement,

application for quotation of additional securities
and agreement

Information or documents not available now must be given to ASX as soon as available. Information and documents
given to ASX become ASX’s property and may be made public.

Introduced 1/7/96. Ongin: Appendix 5. Amended 1/7/98, 1/9/99, /772000, 30/9/2001, 11/3/2002, 11172003, 24/10/2005.

Name of entity

REDFLEX HOLDINGS LIMITED

ABN

96

069 306 216

We (the entity) give ASX the following information.

Part

1 - All issues

You must complete the relevant sections (attach sheels if there is not enough space).

|

*Class of Tsecurities issued or to be
issued

Number of *securities issued or to
be issued (if known) or maximum
number which may be issued

Principal terms of the *securities (eg,
if options, exercise price and expiry
date; if partly paid *securities, the
amount outstanding and due dates
for payment; if “*convertible
securities, the conversion price and
dates for conversion)

Ordinary Shares

70,000

Ordinary Shares

+ See ¢

hapter 19 for defined terms.

24/10/2005 Appendix 3B

Page |




INEYY oUL alllIVulvolicit

4 Do the *securities rank equally in all | Yes
respects from the date of allotment
with an existing *class of quoted
*securities?

If the additional securities do not

rank equally, please state:

¢ the date from which they do

e the extent to which they
participate for the next dividend,
(in the case of a trust,
distribution) or interest payment

o the extent to which they do not
rank equally, other than in
relation to the next dividend,
distribution or interest payment

5  Issue price or consideration 70,000 at $2.3622

6  Purpose of the issue 70,000 RDFAT Options exercised
(If issued as consideration for the
acquisition of assets, clearly identify
those assets)

7 Dates of entering *securities into | 10 November 2008
uncertificated holdings or despatch
of certificates
Number *Class

8 Number and “*class of all { 91,695,214 | Ordinary Shares (RDF)
*securities quoted on  ASX
(including the securities in clause 2
if applicable)

+ See chapter 19 for defined terms.

24/10/2005 Appendix 3B Page 2
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9 Number and “*class of all
*securities not quoted on ASX
{including the securities in clause 2
if applicable)

10 Dividend policy (in the case of a
trust, distribution policy) on the
increased capital (interests)

Number

*Class

873,000

Options expiring 2 June 2009 exercise
price is the VWA price of RDF for
the last 5 business days prior to 2
June 2004 ($2.08) adjusted by the
movement in the ASX All
Ordinaries Index calculated as a
percentage from 2 June 2004,
being the grant date, to the last
business day of the month prior to
the date of exercise (RDFAT)

1,800,784

Performance Rights
Performance period 3 years to 1
October 2009 (685,577}
Performance period 3 years to 1
October 2010 (501,524)
Performance period 3 years to 1
October 2011 (613,683)

As for existing Ordinary Shares

+ See chapter 19 for defined terms.

24/10/2005 Appendix 3B

Page 3
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Part 2 - Bonus issue or pro rata issue

11

15

16

17

Is security holder approval
required?

Is the issue renounceable or non-
renounceable?

Ratio in which the *securities will
be offered

*Class of *securities to which the
offer relates

*Record date to  determine
entitlements

Will holdings on different registers
(or subregisters) be aggregated for
calculating entitlements?

Policy for deciding entitlements in
relation to fractions

Names of countries in which the
entity has *security holders who
will not be sent new issue
documents

Note: Security holders must be told how their
entitlemenis are to be dealt with,

Cross reference: rube 7.7,

Closing date for receipt of
acceptances or renunciations

+ See chapter 19 for defined terms.

24/10/2005 Appendix 3B

Page 4




INEYY DOUL alllIVGHLCEILR

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

Names of any underwriters F

Amount of any underwriting fee or
commission

Names of any brokers to the issue r

Fee or commission payable to the
broker to the issue

Amount of any handling fee payable
to brokers who lodge acceptances
or renunciations on behalf of
*security holders

If the issue is contingent on
*security holders’ approval, the date
of the meeting

Date entitlement and acceptance
form and prospectus or Product
Disclosure Statement will be sent to
persons entitled

If the entity has issued options, and
the terms entitle option holders to
participate on exercise, the date on
which notices will be sent to option
holders

Date rights trading will begin (if
applicable)

Date rights trading will end (if
applicable)

How do *security holders sell their
entitlements in  full through a
broker?

How do *security holders sell part
of their entitlements through a
broker and accept for the balance?

How do *security holders dispose of
their entitlements (except by sale
through a broker)?

*Despatch date [ _|

+ See chapter 19 for defined terms.

24/10/2005 Appendix 3B Page 5
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Part 3 - Quotation of securities

You need only complete this section if you are applying for quotation of securities
34 Type of securities

(@ X  Securities described in Part 1

(b) All other securities

Example: restricted securities at the end of the escrowed period, partly paid securities that become fully paid, employee incentive
share securities when restriction ends, securities issued on expiry or conversion of convertible securities

Entities that have ticked box 34(a)

Additional securities forming a new class of securities

Tick to indicate you are providing the information or

documents

35 If the *securities are *equity securities, the names of the 20 largest holders of the additional
*securities, and the number and percentage of additional *securities held by those holders

36 If the *securities are *equity securities, a distribution schedule of the additional *securities
setting out the number of holders in the categories
1-1,000
1,001 - 5,000
5,001 - 10,000
10,001 - 100,000
100,001 and over

37 A copy of any trust deed for the additional *securities

Entities that have ticked box 34(b)

38 Number of securities for which
*quotation is sought

39 Class of ‘*securities for which
quotation is sought

+ See chapter 19 for defined terms.

24/10/2005 Appendix 3B Page 6
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40

41

42

Do the *securities rank equally in all
respects from the date of allotment
with an existing *class of quoted
*securities?

If the additional securities do not

rank equally, please state:

o the date from which they do

e the extent to which they
participate for the next dividend,
(in the «case of a trust,
distribution) or interest payment

s the extent to which they do not
rank equally, other than in
relation to the next dividend,
distribution or interest payment

Reason for request for quotation
Bow

Example: In the case of restricted securities, end of
resiriction period

(if issued wupon conversion of
another security, clearly identify that
other security)

Number and *class of all *securities
quoted on ASX (including the
securities in clause 38)

Number

*Class

+ See chapter 19 for defined terms.

24/10/2005 Appendix 3B

Page 7
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Quotation agreement

1 *Quotation of our additional *securities is in ASX’s absolute discretion. ASX may quote
the *securities on any conditions it decides.

2 We warrant the following to ASX.

. The issue of the *securities to be quoted complies with the law and is not for an
illegal purpose.

. There is no reason why those *securities should not be granted *quotation.

. An offer of the “securities for sale within 12 months after their issue will not
require disclosure under section 707(3) or section 1012C(6) of the Corporations
Act,
Note: An entity may need to obtain appropriate warranties from subscribers for the securities in order 10 be able to give this
warranty

. Section 724 or section 1016E of the Corporations Act does not apply to any

applications received by us in relation to any *securities to be quoted and that no-
one has any right to return any *securities to be quoted under sections 737, 738 or
1016F of the Corporations Act at the time that we request that the *securities be
quoted.

. If we are a trust, we warrant that no person has the right to return the *securities to
be quoted under section 1019B of the Corporations Act at the time that we request
that the *securities be quoted.

3 We will indemnify ASX to the fullest extent permitted by law in respect of any claim,
action or expense arising from or connected with any breach of the warranties in this
agreement.

4 We give ASX the information and documents required by this form. If any information or

document not available now, will give it to ASX before *quotation of the *securities
begins. We acknowledge that ASX is relying on the information and documents. We
warrant that they are (will be) true and complete.

+ See chapter 19 for defined terms.

24/10/2005 Appendix 3B Page 8
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Two lllinois Villages Choose Redflex Traffic Systems for Red Light Photo
Enforcement

10 November 2008

Redflex Traffic Systems Inc, a wholly owned subsidiary of Redflex Holdings Limited, is pleased to announce
contract awards by the villages of Brookfield and Justice, lllinais.

The village of Brookfield, located in Cook County 13 miles west of Chicago, has a population of
approximately 20,000. The village of Justice is also located in Cook County and has a population
approaching 13,000. Both chose REDFLEX based on its past performance in running programs in
neighboring lllinois communities.

The Brookfield contract calls for up to 20 red light systems. The Justice contract also calls for up to 20 red
light systems. Baoth contracts have five-year terms with two consecutive and automatic two-year renewals.

“The widespread adoption of our programs in lllinois is proof positive that support for this type of public
safety program can reach a critical mass throughout a state,” said Karen Finley, CEQ Redflex Traffic

Systems, Inc.

Redflex Traffic Systems Inc has contracts with more than 220 U.S. cities, and is the largest provider of digital
red light and speed enforcement services in North America. With photo speed programs in 9 states and
photo red light programs across 22 states, REDFLEX has consistently led the market in contract wins,

system installation rates and market share.

For further information:

Graham Davie Karen Finley

Chief Executive Officer President and CEO

Redflex Holdings Limited Redflex Traffic Systems, Inc.
graham.davie@redflex.com au kfinley@redflex.com

+61 3 9674 1715 +1 623 207-2000
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Chan,

Rule 3.194.2

Appendix 3Y

Change of Director’s Interest Notice

Information or documents not available now must be given to ASX as soon as available. Information and documents
given to ASX become ASX's property and may be made public.
Introduced 30/972001,

Name of entity REDFLEX HOLDINGS LIMITED
ABN 96 069 306 216

We (the entity) give ASX the following information under listing rule 3.19A.2 and as agent for the director
for the purposes of section 205G of the Corporations Act.

Name of Director CHRISTOPHER COOPER
Date of last notice 13 October 2008
Date of this notice 7 November 2008

Part 1 - Change of director’s relevant interests in securities

In the case of a trusi, this includes interesis in the trust made available by the responsible ensity of the trust

Note: In the case of a company, interests which came within paragrapk (1) of the defimition of “natifiable interest of a director” should be disclosed in
this part.

Direct or indirect interest Direct and Indirect

Nature of indirect interest Related parties

{including registered holder)
Note: Provide details of the circumstances giving rise to
the relevant interesl.

Date of change 3 - 6 November 2008
No. of securities held prior to change As the registered holder
30,000 Ordinary Shares

As not the registered holder
1,704,986 Ordinary Shares

Class Fully paid Qrdinary Shares

Number acquired 44,181

Number disposed nil

ValuefConsideration Allotment of 29,099 at Dividend Reinvastment Plan

Note: If consideration is non-cash, provide details and | Price of $2.606907.

estimated valuation 15,082 acquired through increase in an associated
interest.

No. of securities held after change As the registered holder
30,000 Ordinary Shares

As not the registered holder
1,749,167 Ordinary Shares

Nature of change 29,099 Dividend Reinvestment Plan allotment
Example: on-market trade, off-market trade, exercise of | 15 082 off market

options, issue of securitics under dividend reinvestment '
plan, participation in buy-back i

+ See chapter 19 for defined terms.
1173/2002 Appendix 3Y Page |



APppendix oY
Change of Director’s Interest Notice

Part 2 - Change of director’s interests in contracts

Note: In the case of a company. interests which come within paragraph (i) of “notifiable interest of a direcior” should be disclosed in this part.

Detail of contract

No change

Nature of interest

Name of registered holder
{if issued securities)

Date of change

No. and class of securities to which interest

related prior to change
Note: Details are only required for a contract in relation to
which the interest has changed

Interest acquired

Interest disposed

Value/Consideration
Note: If consideration is non-cash, provide details and an
estimated valuation

Interest after change

+ See chapter 19 for defined terms.
Appendix 3Y Page 2

11/3/2002
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Change of Director’s Interest Notice

Rule 3.194.2

Appendix 3Y

Change of Director’s Interest Notice

Information or documents not available now must be given to ASX as soon as available. Information and documents
given (o ASX become ASX's property and may be made public.
Introduced 30/9/2001.

Name of entity REDFLEX HOLDINGS LIMITED
ABN 96 069 306 216

We (the entity) give ASX the following information under listing rule 3.19A.2 and as agent for the director
for the purposes of section 205G of the Corporations Act.

Name of Director GRAHAM DAVIE
Date of last notice 9 Qctober 2008
Date of this notice 7 November 2008

Part 1 - Change of director’s relevant interests in securities

In the case of a trust, this includes mterests in the trust made avaitable by the responsible entity of the irust
Note: In the case of a company, interests which come within paragraph (i) of the definition of "notifiable interest of a director” should be disclosed in
ihis part.

Direct or indirect interest Direct and Indirect

Nature of indirect interest Related party
{including registered holder)

Note: Provide details of the circumstances giving rise to the
relevant interest.

Date of change 3 November 2008

No. of securities held prior to change As the registered holder

1,414,488 Ordinary Shares
128,671 Performance Rights

As not the registered holder

119,299 Ordinary Shares
Class Ordinary Shares
Number acquired 26,479
Number disposed nil
Value/Consideration 26,479 at Dividend Reinvestment Plan Price

Note: If consideration is non-cash, provide details and | $2 606907
estimated valuation
No. of securities held after change As the registered holder
1,438,908 Ordinary Shares
128,671 Performance Rights

As not the registered holder
121,358 Ordinary Shares

Nature of change Dividend Reinvestment Plan allotment

Example; on-market trade, off-market trade, exercise of
pptions, issue of securities under dividend reinvestment
plan, participation in buy-back

+ See chapter 19 for defined terms.
11/3/2002 Appendix 3Y Page ]



Appendix oY
Change of Director’s Interest Notice

Pant 2 - Change of director’s interests in contracts

Note: In ihe case of @ company, interests which come within paragraph (i} of “notifiable interesi of a direcior” should be disclosed in this part.

Detail of contract

No change

Nature of interest

Name of registered holder
(if issued securities)

Date of change

No. and class of securities t0 which interest

related prior to change
Note: Details are only required for a contract in relation
to which the interest has changed

Interest acquired

Interest disposed

Value/Consideration
Note: If consideration is non-cash, provide details and
an estimated valuation

Interest after change

+ See chapter 19 for defined terms.

Appendix 3Y Page 2

11/3/2002
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Change of Director’s Interest Notice

Appendix 3Y

Change of Director’s Interest Notice

Information or documents not available now must be given to ASX as soon as available. Information and documents
given to ASX become ASX’s property and may be made public.

Introduced 30:v9/2001.

Rule 3.194.2

Name of entity

REDFLEX HOLDINGS LIMITED

ABN 96 069 306 216

We (the entity) give ASX the following information under listing rule 3.19A.2 and as agent for the director
for the purposes of section 205G of the Corporations Act.

Name of Director

ROBIN DEBERNARDI

Date of last notice

1 July 2008

Date of this notice

7 November 2008

Part 1 - Change of director’s relevant interests in securities
In the case of a trust, this includes interests in the trust made available by the responsible entity of the trusi.
Note: In the case of a company, interests which come within paragraph (i) of the definition of “notifiable interests of a director”

should be disclosed in this part.

Direct or indirect interest

Direct and Indirect

Nature of indirect interest Related party
(including registered holder)

Note: Provide details of the circumstances giving rise

to the relevant interest.

Date of change 3 November 2008

No. of securities held prior to change

As the registered holder
36,306 Ordinary Shares (RDF)

As not the registered holder
2,780,360 Ordinary Shares (RDF}

Class Fully paid ordinary shares
Number acquired 48,620
Number disposed nil

Value/Consideration
Note: If consideration is non-cash, provide details and
estimated valuation

Dividend Reinvestment Plan Price $2.606907

No. of securities held after change

As the registered holder
36,932 Ordinary Shares {RDF)

As not the reqgistered holder
2,828,354 Ordinary Shares (RDF)

Nature of change

Example: on-market trade, off-market trade, exercise
of options, issue of securities under dividend
reinvestment plan, participation in buy-back

Dividend Reinvestment Plan allotment

+ See chapter 19 for defined terms.
11/3/2002 Appendix 3Y Page |



Appenaix o ¥
Change of Director’s Interest Notice

Part 2 - Change of director's interests in contracts
Note: In the case of a company, interests which come within paragraph (i) of the definition of “notifiable interests gf a director”

showuld be disclosed in this part.

Detail of contract

No Change

Nature of interest

Name of registered hoider
if issued securities)

Date of change

No. and class of securities to which interest
related prior to change

Note: Details are only required for a contract in
relation to which the interest has changed

interest acquired

Interest disposed

Value/Consideration
Note: If consideration is non-cash, provide details and
an estimated valuation

Interest after change

+ See chapter 19 for defined terms.
Appendix 3Y Page 2

11/3/2002



AAPPCIIALA J 1
Change of Director’s Interest Notice

Rule 3.194.2

Appendix 3Y

Change of Director’s Interest Notice

Information or documents not available now must be given to ASX as soon as available. Information and documents
given to ASX become ASX's property and may be made public.

[ntroduced 30/9/2001.

Name of entity REDFLEX HOLDINGS LIMITED
ABN 96 069 306 216

We (the entity) give ASX the following information under listing rule 3.19A.2 and as agent for the director
for the purposes of section 205G of the Corporations Act.

Name of Director PETER LEWINSKY
Date of last notice 8 November 2007
Date of this notice 7 November 2008

Part 1 - Change of director’s relevant interests in securities

In the case of a wrust, this includes interests in the trust made available by the responsible entity of the irus,

Note: In the case of a company, interests which come within paragraph (i) of the definition of “novifiable interests of a director”
should be disclosed in this part.

Direct or indirect interest Direct and Indirect
Nature of indirect interest Related party
(including registered holder)

Note: Provide details of the circumstances giving rise to
the relevant interest.

Date of change 3 November 2008

No. of securities held prior to change As the registered holder
12,519 Ordinary Shares (RDF)

As not the registered holder
32,779 Ordinary Shares (RDF)

Class Fully Paid Ordinary Shares

Number acquired 782

Number disposed nil

Value/Cansideration Dividend Reinvestment Plan Price $2.606907

Note: If consideration is non-cash, provide details and
estimated valuation

No. of securities held after change As the registered holder
12,735 Ordinary Shares (RDF)

As not the registered holder
33,345 Ordinary Shares (RDF)

Nature of change Dividend Reinvestment Plan allotment
Example: on-market trade, off-market trade, exercise of
options, issue of securities under dividend reinvesiment
plan, participation in buy-back

+ See chapter 19 for defined terms.
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Appenaix Y
Change of Director’s Interest Notice

Part 2 - Change of director’s interests in contracts

Note: In the case of a company, interests which come within paragraph (i) of the definition of “notifiable interests of a direcior”

should be disclosed in this part.

Detail of contract

No change

Nature of interest

Name of registered holder
(if issued securities)

Date of change

No. and class of securities to which interest related

prior to change
Note: Details are only required for a contract in relation to which the
interest has changed

Interest acquired

Interest disposed

Value/Consideration
Note: If consideration is non-cash, provide details and an estimated
valuation

Interest after change

+ See chapter 19 for defined terms.

Appendix 3Y Page 2
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Appl:llull 1
New issue announcement

Rule 2.7, 3.10.3, 3.10.4, 3.10.5

Appendix 3B

New issue announcement,
application for quotation of additional securities
and agreement

Information or documents not available now must be given o ASX as soon as available. Information and documents
given to ASX become ASX's property and may be made public.

Introduced 1/7/96. Origin: Appendix 5. Amended 1/7/98, 1/9/99, 1/7/2000, 30/9/2001, 11/3/2002, 1/1/2003, 24/10/2003.

Name of entity

REDFLEX HOLDINGS LIMITED

ABN
96 069 306 216

We (the entity) give ASX the following information.

Part 1 - All issues

You must complete the relevant sections (attach sheets if there is not enough space).

1 *Class of *securities issued or to be | Ordinary Shares
issued

2 Number of *securities issued or to | 70,005
be issued (if known) or maximum
number which may be issued

3  Principal terms of the *securities | Ordinary Shares
{eg, if options, exercise price and
expiry date; if partly paid
*securities, the amount outstanding
and due dates for payment; if
*convertible securities, the
conversion price and dates for
conversion)

+ See chapter 19 for defined terms.

24/10/2005 Appendix 3B Poge 1




Appenulia 4D
New issue announcement

Do the *securities rank equally in all
respects from the date of allotment
with an existing *class of quoted
*securities?

If the additional securities do not

rank equally, please state:

¢ the date from which they do

s the extent to which they
participate for the next dividend,
(in the case of a trus,
distribution} or interest payment

e the extent to which they do not
rank equally, other than in
relation to the next dividend,
distribution or interest payment

Issue price or consideration

Purpose of the issue

(If issued as consideration for the
acquisition of assets, clearly identify
those assets)

Dates of entering *securities into
uncertificated holdings or despatch
of certificates

Number and ‘*class of all
*securities quoted on  ASX
(including the securities in clause
2 if applicable)

Yes

70,000 at $2.3622
5 for nil consideration

70,000 ROFAT Options exercised
5 RDFAI employee shares fully paid converted to
Ordinary Shares

7 November 2008

Number *Class

91,625,214 | Ordinary Shares (RDF)

+ See chapter 19 for defined terms.

24/10/2005 Appendix 3B
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New issue announcement

9 Number and “*class of all
*securities not quoted on ASX
{(including the securities in clause
2 if applicable)

10 Dividend policy (in the case of a
trust, distribution policy) on the
increased capital (interests)

Number

*Class

943,000

Options expiring 2 June 2009 exercise
price is the VWA price of RDF for
the last 5 business days prior to 2
June 2004 ($2.06) adjusted by the
movement in  the ASX All
Ordinaries Index calculated as a
percentage from 2 June 2004,
being the grant date, to the last
business day of the month prior to
the date of exercise (RDFAT)

1,800,784

Performance Rights

Performance period 3 years to 1
October 2009 (685,577)
Performance period 3 years to 1
October 2010 (501,524)
Performance period 3 years ta 1
October 2011 (613,683)

As for existing Ordinary Shares

+ See chapter 19 for defined terms.
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New issue announcement

Part 2 - Bonus issue or pro rata issue

11

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

Is  security holder approval
required?

Is the issue renounceable or non-
renounceable?

Ratio in which the *securities will
be offered

*Class of *securities to which the
offer relates

*Record date to  determine
entitlements

Will holdings on different registers
(or subregisters) be aggregated for
calculating entitlements?

Policy for deciding entitlements in
relation to fractions

Names of countries in which the
entity has *security holders who
will not be sent new issue
documents

Note: Security holders must be told how their
entitlements are to be dealt with,

Cross reference; rule 7.7,

Closing date for receipt of
acceptances or renunciations

+ See chapter 19 for defined terms.

24/10/2005 Appendix 3B
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New issue announcement

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

Names of any underwriters

Amount of any underwriting fee or
commission

Names of any brokers to the issue

Fee or commission payable to the
broker to the issue

Amount of any handling fee
payable to brokers who lodge
acceptances or renunciations on
behalf of *security holders

If the issue is contingent on
*security holders’ approval, the
date of the meeting

Date entitlement and acceptance
form and prospectus or Product
Disclosure Statement will be sent to
petsons entitled

If the entity has issued options, and
the terms entitle option holders to
participate on exercise, the date on
which notices will be sent to option
holders

Date rights trading will begin (if
applicable)

Date rights trading will end (if
applicable)

How do *security holders sell their
entitlements i full through =
broker?

How do *security holders sell part
of their entitlements through a
broker and accept for the balance?

How do *security holders dispose
of their entitlements (except by sale
through a broker)?

*Despatch date

L

+ See chapter 19 for defined terms,
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New issue announcement

Part 3 - Quotation of securities

You need only complete this section if you are applying for quotation of securities
34  Type of securities

(@ X  Securities described in Part 1

(b) All other securities

Example: restricted securitics at the end of the escrowed period, partly paid securities that become fully paid, employee incentive
share securities when restriction ends, securities issued on expiry or conversion of convertible securities

Entities that have ticked box 34(a)

Additional securities forming a new class of securities

Tick to indicate you are providing the information or

documents
35 If the *securities are *equity securities, the names of the 20 largest holders of the additional
*securities, and the number and percentage of additional *securities held by those holders
36 If the *securities are *equity securities, a distribution schedule of the additional *securities
setting out the number of holders in the categories
1-1,000
1,001 - 5,000
5,001 - 10,000
10,001 - 100,000
100,001 and over
37 A copy of any trust deed for the additional *securities

Entities that have ticked box 34(b)

38 Number of securities for which
*quotation is sought

39 Class of “*securities for which
quotation is sought

+ See chapter 19 for defined terms.
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New issue announcement

40

4]

42

Do the *securities rank equally in all
respects from the date of allotment
with an existing *class of quoted
*securities?

If the additional securities do not
rank equally, please state:

the date from which they do

the extent to which they
participate for the next dividend,
{in the case of a trust,
distribution} ot interest payment
the extent to which they do not
rank equally, other than in
relation 1o the next dividend,
distribution or interest payment

Reason for request for quotation
now

Example: In the case of restricted securities, end of
restriction period

(if issued upon conversion of
another security, clearly identify that
other security)

Number and *class of all *securities
quoted on ASX (including the
securities in clause 38)

Number

*Class

+ See chapter 19 for defined terms.

24/10/2005 Appendix 3B
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New issue announcement

Quotation agreement

1

*Quotation of our additional *securities is in ASX’s absolute discretion. ASX may quote
the *securities on any conditions it decides.

We warrant the following to ASX.

The issue of the *securities to be quoted complies with the law and is not for an
illegal purpose.

There is no reason why those *securities should not be granted *quotation.

An offer of the *securities for sale within 12 months after their issue will not
require disclosure under section 707(3) or section 1012C(6) of the Corporations
Act.

Note: An entity may need to obtain appropriate warranties from subscribers for the securities in order to be able to give this
warranty

Section 724 or section 1016E of the Corporations Act does not apply to any
applications received by us in relation to any *securities to be quoted and that no-
one has any right to return any *securities to be quoted under sections 737, 738 or
1016F of the Corporations Act at the time that we request that the *securities be
quoted.

If we are a trust, we warrant that no person has the right to return the *securities to
be quoted under section 1019B of the Corporations Act at the time that we request
that the *securities be quoted.

We will indemnify ASX to the fullest extent permitted by law in respect of any claim,
action or expense arising from or connected with any breach of the warranties in this
agreement.

We give ASX the information and documents required by this form. If any information or
document not available now, will give it to ASX before *quotation of the *securities
begins. We acknowledge that ASX is relying on the information and documents. We
warrant that they are (will be) true and complete,

+ See chapter 19 for defined terms.

24/10/2005 Appendix 3B Page 8




l REDFLEX Release to Australian

HOLDINGS

REDFLEX Executes a New US$32 Million, 5-Year Maintenance & Support Services
Contract with the City of Chicago

7 November 2008

Redflex Traffic Systems Inc, a wholly owned subsidiary of Redflex Holdings Limited, is pleased to announce
the execution of a new contract with the City of Chicago, lllinois.

Chicago, IL

This new US$32 million, 5-year contract is the for the maintenance and support services of the initiat 136
systems purchased by the City of Chicago.

This contract is in addition to the US$52 million, 5-year contract executed by Redflex earlier this year for the

expansion of the City's highly effective photo enforcement program for up to a further 440 systems at 220
intersections.

The term of both contracts will continue through 1* February 2013 and may be extended for one additional
2-year period.

The City currently operates a total of 248 Redflex photo red light systems and is planning to install an
additional 100 systems during 2008,

“Working with the City on the largest municipal red-light enforcement program in the US has been a
tremendous honour for Redflex. This program has achieved a staggering 59% reduction in dangerous red-
light running behaviours. Over the last 5 years, our advanced technologies, comprehensive infrastructure,
and depth of operating knowledge has enabled Redflex to achieve the City's industry-leading performance
benchmarks of maintaining a minimum of 85% program-wide enforceability/issuance rate and 95% system

operational uptime; which is truly unparalleled by anyone other than Redflex” said Karen Finley, CEQ
Redflex Traffic Systems.

Redflex Traffic Systems Inc has contracts with more than 220 U.S. cities, and is the largest provider of digital
red light and speed enforcement services in North America. With photo speed programs in 9 states and

photo red light programs across 22 states, REDFLEX has consistently led the market in contract wins,
system installation rates and market share.

For further information:
Graham Davie

Karen Finley
Chief Executive Officer President and CEO R
Redflex Holdings Limited Redfiex Traffic Systems Inc PN -ty
graham.davie@redflex.com.au kfinley@redflex.com M . "
+61 3 9674 1715 +1 623-207-2000 ca 2y
Wi M
B s
T _:; f_:
e o
o= O
¢l v
mIlow

Redtlex Holdings Limited - 31 Market Street, South Methaurne, Victoria, Australio’32

179699 3566 www.redlaxcom



‘lie No. 82-34862

A el

NECZ

13 8OV 24
T CF TS
LOAPCRATE

s RS
Al 53 Rule 2.7, 3.10.3, 3.10.4, 3.10.5
. _J‘:) .
Appendix 3B
Thiar i

New issue announcement,
application for quotation of additional securities
and agreement

Information or documents not available now must be given to ASX as soon as available. Information and documents
given to ASX become ASX's property and may be made public.

Introduced 1/7/96. Origin: Appendix 5. Amended 1/7/98, 1/9/%9, 1/1/2000, 30/9/2001, 11/372002, 17172003, 24/10/2005.

Name of entity

REDFLEX HOLDINGS LIMITED

ABN
96 069 306 216

We (the entity) give ASX the following information.

Part 1 - All issues

You must complete the relevant sections {attach sheets if there is not enough space).

1 *Class of *securities issued or to be | Ordinary Shares
issued

2 Number of *securities issued or to | 659,865
be issued (if known} or maximum
number which may be issued

3 Principal terms of the *securities | Ordinary Shares
(eg, if options, exercise price and
expiry date; if partly paid
*+securities, the amount outstanding
and due dates for payment; if

*convertible securities, the
conversion price and dates for
conversion)

+ See chapter 19 for defined terms.
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New issue announcement

4 Do the *securities rank equally in all | Yes
respects from the date of allotment
with an existing *class of quoted
*securities?

If the additional securities do not

rank equally, please state:

» the date from which they do

e the extent to which they
participate for the next dividend,
(in the case of a trust,
distribution) or interest payment

» the extent to which they do not
rank equally, other than in
relation to the next dividend,
distribution or interest payment

5  Issue price or consideration Dividend Reinvestment Plan Price $2.606907

6  Purpose of the issue Dividend Reinvestment Plan allotment
(If issued as consideration for the
acquisition of assets, clearly identify
those assets)

7 Dates of entering *securities into | 3 November 2008
uncertificated holdings or despatch
of certificates
Number *Class

8 Number and *class of all [ 91,555,209 | Ordinary Shares (RDF)
*securities quoted on  ASX
(including the securities in clause
2 if applicable)

+ See chapter 19 for defined terms.
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New issue announcement

9 Number and ‘“*class of all
*securities not quoted on ASX
(including the securities in clause
2 if applicable)

10 Dividend policy (in the case of a
trust, distribution policy} on the
increased capital (interests)

Number

*Class

5

Employee shares fully paid (RDFAI1)

1,013,000

Options expiring 2 June 2009 exercise

price is the VWA price of RDF for
the last 5 business days prior to 2
June 2004 {$2.06) adjusted by the
movement in the ASX Al
Ordinaries Index calculated as a
percentage from 2 June 2004,
being the grant date, to the last
business day of the month prior to
the date of exercise (RDFAT)

1,800,784

Performance Rights

Performance period 3 years to 1
October 2009 (685,577)
Performance period 3 years to 1
October 2010 (501,524)
Performance period 3 years o 1
Qctober 2011 (613,683)

As for existing Ordinary Shares

+ See chapter 19 for defined terms.
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New issue announcement

Part 2 - Bonus issue or pro rata issue

11

14

17

18

19

Is security holder approval
required?

Is the issue renounceable or non-
renounceable?

Ratio in which the *securities will
be offered

*Class of *securitics to which the
offer relates

*Record date to  determine
entitlements

Will holdings on different registers
(or subregisters) be aggregated for
calculating entitlements?

Policy for deciding entitlements in
relation to fractions

Names of countries in which the
entity has *security holders who
will not be sent new issue
documents

Note: Security holders must be told how their
entitlenents are 1o be dealt with.

Cross reference: rule 7.7,

Closing date for receipt of
acceptances or renunciations

+ See chapter 19 for defined terms.
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New issue announcement

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

Names of any underwriters

Amount of any underwriting fee or
commission

Names of any brokers to the issue

Fee or commission payable to the
broker to the issue

Amount of any handling fee
payable to brokers who lodge
acceptances or renunciations on
behalf of *security holders

If the issue is contingent on
*security holders’ approval, the
date of the meeting

Date entitlement and acceptance
form and prospectus or Product
Disclosure Statement will be sent to
persons entitled

If the entity has issued options, and
the terms entitle option holders to
participate on exercise, the date on
which notices will be sent to option
holders

Date rights trading will begin (if
applicable)

Date rights trading will end (if
applicable)

How do *security holders sell their
entitlements in full through a
broker?

How do *security holders sell part
of their entitlements through a
broker and accept for the balance?

How do *security holders dispose
of their entitlements (except by sale
through a broker)?

*Despatch date

[

+ See chapter 19 for defined terms.

24/10/2005 Appendix 3B
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New issue announncement

Part 3 - Quotation of securities

You need only complete this section if you are applving for quotation of securities
34 Type of securities

@ X Securities described in Part |

(b) All other securities

Example: restricted sceurities at the end of the escrowed period, partly paid securities that become fully paid, employee incentive
share securities when restriction ends, securities issued on expiry or conversion of convertible securities

Entities that have ticked box 34(a)

Additional securities forming a new class of securities

Tick to indicate you are providing the information or

documents

35 If the *securities are *equity securities, the names of the 20 largest holders of the additional
*+securities, and the number and percentage of additional *securities held by those holders

36 If the *securities are *equity securities, a distribution schedule of the additional *securities
setting out the number of holders in the categories
1-1,000
1,001 - 5,000
5,001 - 10,000
10,001 - 100,000
100,001 and over

37 A copy of any trust deed for the additional *securities

Entities that have ticked box 34(b)

38 Number of securities for which
*quotation is sought

39 Class of ‘*securities for which
quotation is sought

+ See chapter 19 for defined terms.
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New issue announcement

40

41

42

Do the *securities rank equally in all
respects from the date of allotment
with an existing *class of quoted
*securities?

If the additional securities do not
rank equally, please state:

the date from which they do

the extent to which they
participate for the next dividend,
(in the case of a trust,
distribution) or interest payment

the extent to which they do not
rank equally, other than in
relation to the next dividend,
distribution or interest payment

Reason for request for quotation
now

Example; [n the case of restricted securities, end of
restriction period

(if

issued wuwpon conversion of

another security, clearly identify that
other security)

Number and *class of all *securities
quoted on ASX (including the
securities in clause 38)

Number

*Class

+ See chapter 19 for defined terms.

24/10/2005 Appendix 3B
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New issue announcement

Quotation agreement

1

*Quotation of our additional *securities is in ASX’s absolute discretion. ASX may quote
the *securities on any conditions it decides.

We warrant the following to ASX.

The issue of the *securities to be quoted complies with the law and is not for an
illegal purpose.

There is no reason why those *securities should not be granted *quotation.

An offer of the "securities for sale within 12 months after their issue will not
require disclosure under section 707(3) or section 1012C(6) of the Corporations
Act,

Note: An entity may need to obtain appropriate wamanties from subscribers for the securities in order to be able to give this
warranty

Section 724 or section 1016E of the Corporations Act does not apply to any
applications received by us in relation to any *securities to be quoted and that no-
one has any right to return any *securities to be quoted under sections 737, 738 or
1016F of the Corporations Act at the time that we request that the *securities be
quoted.

If we are a trust, we warrant that no person has the right to return the *securities to
be quoted under section 1019B of the Corporations Act at the time that we request
that the *securities be quoted.

We will indemnify ASX to the fullest extent permitted by law in respect of any claim,
action or expense arising from or connected with any breach of the warranties in this
agreement.

We give ASX the information and documents required by this form. If any information or
document not available now, will give it to ASX before *quotation of the *securities
begins. We acknowledge that ASX is relying on the information and documents. We
warrant that they are {(will be) true and complete.

+ See chapter 19 for defined terms.
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Release to Avustralian Sect

Redflex Traffic Systems Announces Inaugural Photo Enforcement Program in the
State of Montana

6 November 2008

Redflex Traffic Systems, Inc., a wholly owned subsidiary of Redflex Holdings Limited, is pleased to
announce the contract award by the city of Bozeman, Montana. Bozeman is the first city in the state of
Montana to adopt photo enforcement technology as a measure to reduce accidents and injuries on its
roadways.

Bozeman is home to Montana State University and is the fifth largest city in the state, with a population
approaching 30,000. REDFLEX participated in a competitive tender process and was selected based on its
proven success in leading the first pilot photo enforcement programs in states including Arizona, California,
Colorado, Ohio, Louisiana, lllincis and others. The contract in Bozeman calls for up to 30 red light systems,
The contract term is three years with two consecutive three-year renewals.

“REDFLEX has implemented inaugural photo enforcement programs in 14 states across the U.S.," said
Karen Finley, CEO Redflex Traffic Systems. “We will continue to take this leadership role in new states by
actively supporting officials who take the first initiative to improve road safety in their communities.”

Redflex Traffic Systems Inc. has contracts with more than 220 U.S. cities, and is the largest provider of
digital red light and speed enforcement services in North America. With photo speed programs in 9 states
and photo red light programs across 22 states, REDFLEX has consistently led the market in contract wins,
system installation rates and market share.

For further information:

Graham Davie Karen Finley

Chief Executive Officer President and CEO

Redflex Holdings Limited Redflex Traffic Systems, Inc
graham.davie@redflex.com.au kfinley@redflex.com

+61 3 9674 1715 +1 623 207-2000
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Release to Avustralian Se

REDFLEX

HOLDINGS

Redflex Traffic Systems Wins New Zealand Mobile Radar Speed Camera Contract
valued at over AU$3 million

5 November 2008

Redflex Traffic Systems Pty Ltd, a wholly owned subsidiary of Redflex Holdings Limited, is pleased to
announce another intemnational success with the execution of a contract with the New Zealand Police for the
supply of mobile radar speed cameras. The contract, valued at over AU$3 million, is subject to the
successful completion of the gazetting process in New Zealand.

The win follows on from other successes in the mobile enforcement market segment, including the supply of
mobile radar speed cameras to the South Australian Police and the Redflex selection as the outsourced
vendor for the first state-wide speed enforcement program in North America by the Arizona Department of
Public Safety. The Arizona contract is for up t0170 systems which include 40 mobile radar speed cameras
as well as 10 mobile red light systems, 90 dedicated fixed speed systems and 30 combination systems.

Redflex cameras have been used in a red-light enforcement frial at intersections in the central Auckland
area.

Redflex manufactures and supplies traffic cameras and processing systems to world-wide markets. Redflex
is the market leader in Australia and has either won or is developing significant opportunities in the Middle
East, Asia, Africa and Europe. In the USA, Redflex has contracts with more than 220 U.S. cities, and is the
largest provider of digital red light and speed enforcement services in North America. With photo speed
programs in 9 states and photo red light programs across 21 states, Redflex has consistently led the market
in contract wins, system installation rates and market share.

For further information:

Graham Davie Ricardo Fiusco

Chief Executive Officer General Manager

Redflex Holdings Limited Redflex Traffic Systems Pty Ltd
graham.davie@redflex.com.au ricardo.fiusco@redflex.com.au

+61 3 9674 1715 + 613 9674 1758




REDFLEX

HOL1OINGS

< Release to Australion Securifi

Redflex Traffic Systems Wins 2008 Governor of Victoria Export Award for Large
Advanced Manufacturer

22 October 2008

Redflex Traffic Systems Pty Ltd, a wholly owned subsidiary of Redflex Holdings Limited, is pleased to
announce that it was named the winner of the Large Advanced Manufacturer category in the Governor of
Victoria Export Awards,

Ricardo Fiusco, General Manager of Redflex Traffic Systems Pty Ltd said, “Redflex employs a culture of
innovation throughout the organisation as a key success factor in our development as a world leader in
photo enforcement programs. Recognition by the Victorian Government in these prestigious awards is very
rewarding and a tribute to the team”.

As the world's largest speed and red light camera program outsourcing provider, Redflex is constantly using
innovation and new technology to maximise returns for all stakeholders. Redflex’ outsourcing contracts rely
on Redflex products, hence providing an additional imperative in product development and performance,
such as prosecution rates, detection rates, and reliability.

Redflex Traffic Systems Pty Ltd manufactures and supplies traffic cameras and processing systems to
world-wide markets. Redflex is the market leader in Australia and has either won or is developing significant
opportunities in the Middle East, Asia, Africa and Europe,

Redflex Traffic Systems Inc has contracts with more than 200 U.S. cities, and is the largest provider of digital
red light and speed enforcement services in North America. With photo speed programs in 9 states and
photo red light programs across 21 states, Redflex has consistently led the market in contract wins, system
installation rates and market share.

For further information:

Graham Davie Ricardo Fiusco

Chief Executive Officer General Manager

Redflex Holdings Limited Redflex Traffic Systems Pty Ltd
graham.davie@redflex.com.au ricardo.fiusco@redflex.com.au
+61 39674 1715 +6139674 1758
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Release to Australian Se

Redflex Dividend Reinvestment Plan - Dividend payable on 3 November 2008

20 October 2008

Redflex wishes to advise the market that, for the dividend payable on 3 November, the DRP price (including
the 5% discount) is $2.606907 per share.

For further information;

Graham Davie Marilyn Stephens

Chief Executive Officer Company Secretary
graham.davie@redflex.com.au marilyn.stephens@redflex.com.au
+61 3 9674 1715 +61 3 9674 1712

Redflex Holdings Limited - 31 Markei Sireet, South Melbourne, Victoria, Australio 3205, Tel: <61 39674 1888 Fox:-61 3 9699 3566 www.redflex.com
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New issue announcement,

application for quotation of additional securities
and agreement

Information or documents not available now must be given to ASX as soon as available. Information and documents
given to ASX become ASX's property and may be made public.

Introduced 1/7/96. Ornigin: Appendix 5. Amended 1/7/98, 1/9/99, 1/7/2000, 30/9/2001, 11/3/2002, 1/1/2003, 2441072005,

Name of entity

REDFLEX HOLDINGS LIMITED

ABN

96 069 306 216

We (the entity) give ASX the following information.

Part 1 - All issues

You must complete the relevant sections (attach sheets if there is not enough space).

I

+Class of *securities issued or to be
issued

Number of *securities issued or to
be issued (if known) or maximum
number which may be issued

Principal terms of the *securities (eg,
if options, exercise price and expiry
date; if partly paid *securities, the
amount outstanding and due dates
for payment; if “*convertible
securities, the conversion price and
dates for conversion)

Performance Rights

613,683

Performance Rights issued pursuant to the
Company’s Long Term Incentive Plan.

+ See chapter 19 for defined terms.

24/10/2005 Appendix 3B
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Do the *securities rank equally in all
respects from the date of allotment
with an existing *class of quoted
*securities?

If the additional securities do not

rank equally, please state:

» the date from which they do

e the extent to which they
participate for the next dividend,
(in the case of a trust,
distribution) or interest payment

o the extent to which they do not
rank equally, other than in
relation to the next dividend,
distribution or interest payment

Issue price or consideration

Purpose of the issue

(If issued as consideration for the
acquisition of assets, clearly identify
those assets)

Dates of entering *securities into
uncertificated holdings or despatch
of certificates

Number and ‘*class of all
*securities quoted on  ASX
{including the securities in clause 2
if applicable)

No

613,683 Performance Rights were issued under the
terms of the Company's Long Term Incentive Plan,
details of which were announced on 26 July 2006.
Performance Rights vest into shares on a 1 for 1
basis at no cost to the employee subject to
satisfaction of performance hurdles. The
performance measure is the Company’s relative
total shareholder return {TSR) performance
compared with the TSR performance of a
comparator group of companies.

The performance period is 3 years to 1 October
2011.

Nil

613,683 Performance Rights were issued under the
terms of the Company’s Long Term Incentive Plan.

20 October 2008
Number *Class
90,895,244 | Ordinary Shares (RDF)

+ See chapter 19 for defined terms.

24/10/2005 Appendix 3B
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Number | *Class

9 Number and “*class of all 5 Employee shares fully paid (RDFAl)
*securities not quoted on ASX
(including the securities in clause 2
if applicable)

1,013,000 | Options expiring 2 June 2009 exercise
price is the VWA price of RDF for
the last 5 business days prior to 2
June 2004 ($2.06) adjusted by the
movement in the ASX All
Ordinaries Index calculated as a
percentage from 2 June 2004,
being the grant date, to the last
business day of the month prior to
the date of exercise (RDFAT)

1,800,784 | Performance Rights

Performance period 3 years to 1
October 2009 (685,577)
Performance period 3 years to 1
October 2010 (501,524)
Performance period 3 years to 1
October 2011 (613,683}

10 Dividend policy {in the case of a
trust, distribution policy) on the
increased capital (interests)

+ See chapter 19 for defined terms.
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Part 2 - Bonus issue or pro rata issue

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

Is  security holder approval
required?

Is the issue renounceable or non-
renounceable?

Ratio in which the *securities will
be offered

*Class of *securities to which the
offer relates

*Record date to  determine
entitlements

Will holdings on different registers
{or subregisters) be aggregated for
calculating entitlements?

Policy for deciding entitlements in
relation to fractions

Names of countries in which the
entity has *security holders who
will not be sent new issue
documents

Note: Security holders must be told how their
entitlements are to be dealt with.

Cross reference: rule 7.7,

Closing date for receipt of
acceptances or renunciations

+ See chapter 19 for defined terms.
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20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

Names of any underwriters

Amount of any underwriting fee or
commission

Names of any brokers to the issue

Fee or commission payable to the
broker to the issue

Amount of any handling fee payable
to brokers who lodge acceptances
or renunciations on behalf of
*security holders

If the issue is contingent on
*security holders’ approval, the date
of the meeting

Date entitlement and acceptance
form and prospectus or Product
Disclosure Statement will be sent to
persons entitled

If the entity has issued options, and
the terms entitle option holders to
participate on exercise, the date on
which notices will be sent to option
holders

Date rights trading will begin (if
applicable)

Date rights trading will end (if
applicable)

How do *security holders sell their
entitlements in  full through a
broker?

How do *security holders sell part
of their entitlements through a
broker and accept for the balance?

How do *security holders dispose of
their entitlements (except by sale
through a broker)?

*Despatch date

+ See chapter 19 for defined terms,
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Part 3 - Quotation of securities

You need only complete this section if you are applying for quotation of securities
34 Type of securities

(a) Securities described in Part |

() All other securities

Example: restricted securities at the end of the escrowed period, parly paid securities that become fully paid, employes incentive
share secunities when resiriction ends, securities issued on expiry or conversion of convertible securities

Entities that have ticked box 34(a)

Additional securities forming a new class of securities

Tick to indicate you are providing the information or

documents

35 If the *securities are *equity securities, the names of the 20 largest holders of the additional
*securities, and the number and percentage of additional *securities held by those holders

36 If the *securities are *equity securities, a distribution schedule of the additional *securities
setting out the number of holders in the categories
1-1,000
1,001 - 5,000
5,001 - 10,000
10,601 - 100,000
100,001 and over

37 A copy of any trust deed for the additional *securities

Entities that have ticked box 34(b)

38 Number of securittes for which
*quotation is sought

39 Class of ‘*securities for which
quotation is sought

+ See chapter 19 for defined terms.
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40 Do the *securities rank equally in all
respects from the date of allotment
with an existing *class of quoted
*securities?

If the additional securities do not

rank equally, please state:

e the date from which they do

e the extent to which they
participate for the next dividend,
(in the case of a trust,
distribution) or interest payment

o the extent to which they do not
rank equally, other than in
relation to the next dividend,
distribution or interest payment

41 Reason for request for quotation
now

Example: In the case of restricted securities, end of
restriction period

(Gf issued upon conversion of
another security, clearly identify that
other security)

Number *Class

42 Number and *class of all *securities
quoted on ASX (including the
securities in clause 38)

+ See chapter 19 for defined terms.
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Quotation agreement

l *Quotation of our additional *securities is in ASX’s absolute discretion. ASX may quote
the *securities on any conditions it decides.

2 We warrant the following to ASX.

. The issue of the *securities to be quoted complies with the law and is not for an
illegal purpose.

. There is no reason why those *securities should not be granted *quotation.

. An offer of the *securities for sale within 12 months after their issue will not
require disclosure under section 707(3) or section 1012C(6) of the Corporations
Act.
Nole: An entity may need o obtain appropriate warrantics from subscribers for the secusities in order to be able to give this
warrnmy

J Section 724 or section 1016E of the Corporations Act does not apply to any

applications received by us in relation to any *securities to be quoted and that no-
one has any right to return any *securities to be quoted under sections 737, 738 or
1016F of the Corporations Act at the time that we request that the *securities be
quoted.

. If we are a trust, we warrant that no person has the right to return the *securities to
be quoted under section 1019B of the Corporations Act at the time that we request
that the *securities be quoted.

3 We will indemnify ASX to the fullest extent permitted by law in respect of any claim,
action or expense arising from or connected with any breach of the warranties in this
agreement.

4 We give ASX the information and documents required by this form. If any information or

document not available now, will give it to ASX before *quotation of the *securities
begins. We acknowledge that ASX is relying on the information and documents. We
warrant that they are (will be) true and complete.

+ See chapter 19 for defined terms.
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Release to Australian Sec

Two New Photo Enforcement Contracts - Bell Gardens, CA and Roseburg, OR

20 October 2008

Redflex Traffic Systems Inc, a wholly owned subsidiary of Redfiex Haldings Limited, is pleased to announce
contract awards by Bell Gardens, Califomia and Roseburg, Oregon.

Bell Gardens, California
Bell Gardens has a population of approximately 50,000 and joins more than 70 other cities in California with

REDFLEX programs. The contract calls for up to 10 red light systems and provides for a contract term of
five years with seven consecutive one-year renewals. The award was granted after the city researched

other vendors and determined that REDFLEX offers superior conviction rates and technology, resulting in
the greatest impact on accident reduction.

Roseburg, Oregon
Roseburg is a town of approximately 21,000. This is the sixth red light enforcement contract for REDFLEX

in Oregon since the inception of the red light program in Beaverton in 2000. Other programs are in place in
Medford, Albany, Tualatin, Newberg and Salem. The contract calls for up to 8 red light systems and
provides for a contract term of five years with seven consecutive one-year renewals.

“Our earliest red light programs in Oregon and California were proven to yield positive results,” said Karen
Finley, CEO Redflex Traffic Systems. “We further our aim to maintain a steady rate of adoption on the West

Coast."

Redflex Traffic Systems Inc has contracts with more than 200 U.S. cities, and is the largest provider of digital
red light and speed enforcement services in North America. With photo speed programs in 9 states and
photo red light programs across 21 states, REDFLEX has consistently led the market in contract wins,

system installation rates and market share.

For further information:

Karen Finley

President and CEQ

Redflex Traffic Systems, Inc
kfinley@redflex.com

+1 623 207-2000

Graham Davie

Chief Executive Officer
Redflex Holdings Limited
graham.davie@redflex.com.au
+61 3 9674 1715
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HOLDINGS

Release to Australian Se

AGM 2008

17 October 2008
Redflex is pleased to provide Notice of Meeting and Explanatory Statement in relation to the Annual General
Meeting to be held on 19 November 2008 at 10.30am.

The attached meeting documents and Annual Report are being sent to shareholders.

For further information:

Marilyn Stephens
Company Secretary
marilyn.stephens@redflex.com.au
+61 3 9674 1712

Graham Davie
Chief Executive Officer

. graham.davie@redflex.com.au
+61 3 9674 1715
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31 Market Street Limited Computershare Investor Services Pty
South Melbourne, Vic, Australia 3205 Yarra Falls, 452 Johnston Street Limited

Tel: +61 39674 1715 Abbotsford, Vic, Australia 3067 GPO Box 242

Fax: +61 3 9699 3566 Tel: 1300 850 S05 Melbourme, Vic, Australia 3001

Fax: 1800 783 447

Redflex Holdings Limited ABN 96 069 306 216

Notice of Annual General Meeting 2008

Notice is hereby given that the Annual General Meeting of Redflex Holdings Limited will be held at the Village Roadshow
Theatrette, State Library of Victoria, 328 Swanston Street {entry 3, La Trobe Street), Melbourne, on Wednesday
19 November 2008 at 10.30am to transact the following business:

Financial Report and Directors’ and Auditors’ Reports
To receive and consider the Financial Report and Reports of the Directors and Auditor for the year ended 30 June 2008,

Resolutions

Re-election of Mr Peter Lewinsky

1. To consider and, if thought fit, pass the following resolution as an ordinary resolution;
"That Peter Lewinsky, who retires in accordance with the Company‘s Constitution, be re-elected a Director of the
Company.”

Re-election of Mr Roger Sawley

2. To consider and, if thought fit, pass the following resolution as an ordinary resolution:
“That Roger Sawley, who retires in accordance with the Company’s Constitution, be re-elected a Director of the
Company.”

Remuneration Report

3. To consider and, if thought fit, pass the following resolution as an ordinary resolution:
"That the Remuneration Report forming part of the Directors’ Report for the year ended 30 June 2008 be
adopted.”

Approval of securities to Mr Graham Davie, CEQO

4. To consider and, if thought fit, pass the following resolution as an ordinary resolfution:
“That, approval be given for the purposes of Listing Rule 10.14 for the issue to Graham Davie, being an
Executive Director, of 72,057 Performance Rights to acquire at no cost fully paid ordinary shares in the Company
under the Redfiex Long Term Incentive Plan for Australian Executives (the "Plan”), on the terms contained in the
Explanatory Statement attached to and forming part of this Notice, and to issue fully paid ordinary shares in the
number, at the time, upon the terms and subject to the conditions contained in the Plan.”

Approval of securities to Ms Karen Finley, CEO Redflex Traffic Systems Inc

5. To consider and, if thought fit, pass the following resolution as an ordinary resolution:
"That, approval be given for the purposes of Listing Rule 10.14 for the issue to Karen Finley, being an Executive
Director, of 90,071 Performance Rights to acquire at no cost fully paid ordinary shares in the Company under
the Redflex Long Term Incentive Plan for USA Executives (the "Plan™), on the terms contained in the Explanatory
Statement attached to and forming part of this Notice, and to issue fully paid ordinary shares in the number, at
the time, upon the terms and subject to the conditions contained in the Plan.”

Please see accompanying Explanatory Statement for information concemning the business of the meeting.

By Order of the Board

% cf;f - \Qf'/bw

Marityn Stephens, Secretary
15 October 2008
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INFORMATION FOR MEMBERS

Redflex Holdings Limited
Annual General Meeting 2008

Eligibility to vote
The Company has determined that for the purposes of the

meeting, persons who are registered holders of ordinary shares
at 7pm Mon 17 Novernber, will be voting members.

Proxies

1.  Members who do not plan to attend the meeting are
encouraged to complete and lodge a proxy form. A proxy form
is enclosed, Additional proxy forms will be provided by the
Share Registrar on request.

2. Ashareholder entitled to attend and vote at the meeting
may appoint one or two proxies to attend and vote on their
behalf. Each proxy will have the right to vote on a poll and also
to speak at the meeting.

3. Aproxy need not be a member of the Company. A proxy
can be an individual or a body corporate.

4,  Ashareholder may specify the proportion or the number
of votes that the proxy may exercise. If a shareholder appoints
2 proxies and does not specify the proportion or number of the
sharehclder’s votes each proxy may exercise, each proxy may
exercise half of the votes. If more than one proxy for a
member is present at the meeting, neither may vote on a show
of hands.

5.  The instrument appointing a proxy is required to be in
writing under the hand of the appointer or of that person’s
attorney and, if the appointer is a corporation, in accordance
with the Corporations Act 2001 or under the hand of an
authorised officer or attomey. Where two or more persons are
registered as a shareholder, each person must sign the proxy
form.

6.  If a proxy form is completed by an individual, or a
corporation under Power of Attormey, the Power of Attormey
under which the form is signed, or a certified copy of that
Power of Attorney must accompany the proxy form unless the
Power of Attormey has previously been noted by the Company.

7. If a proxy is not directed how to vote on an item of
business, the proxy may vote or abstain from voting as that
person thinks fit.

8. If a proxy is instructed to abstain from voting on an item
of business, that person is directed not to vote on a show of
hands or on a pall.

9.  Members who lodge a proxy form but do not nominate
the identity of their proxy will be taken to have appointed the
chairman of the meeting. If a proxy form is lodged but the
nominated proxy does not attend the meeting, the chairman of
the meeting will act in place of the nominated proxy and will
vote in accordance with the directions on the proxy form.

Proxy appointments in favour of the chairman of the meeting or

any director or the secretary of the Company which do not
contain a direction will be used to vote in favour of the
resolutions to be proposed at the meeting.

10. To be valid, proxies, and the power of attorney or other
authority (if any) under which it is signed (or a certified copy of
the power of attorney or authority), must be sent by one of the
following methods and received not less than 48 hours before
the commeancement of the meeting or any adjournment of the
meeting.

(a) electronically, by visiting www.investorvote.com.au
and then inputting the shareholder’s secure access
information to commence proxy instructions.
or

(b) by mail to the Company’s Share Registry,
Computershare Investor Services Pty Limited (a reply
paid envelope is enclosed) or to the Company’s
registered office.
or

{c) in person at the Company’s Share Registry,
Computershare Investor Services Pty Limited or at the
Company's registered office.
or

(d) by fax to the Company’s Share Registry.

Corporate Representatives

If a reprasentative of either a corporate member or a proxy
which is a body corporate is to attend andfor vote at the
meeting, a certificate of appointment of the representative, or
other evidence satisfactory to the Chairman of the meeting,
must be produced prior to admission to the meeting.

Annual Report - Online

Redfiex’s Annual Report for the year ended 30 June 2008 is
available on the Company’s website at

www. redflex.com.aufreport{2008annualreport.pdf
Shareholders can elect to receive a copy of the annual report in
hard copy form by contacting the Company.




EXPLANATORY STATEMENT

Redflex Holdings Limited
Annual General Meeting 2008

Financial Report and Directors’ and Auditors
Reports

The financial report and the reports of the Directors and the
Auditor for the year ended 30 June 2008 will be presented for
consideration by shareholders. No formal resolution is required
on these reports.

1. Re-election of Peter Lewinsky

Peter Lewinsky, Non-executive Director, retires by rotation in
accordance with the Company’s constitution and, being eligible,
offers himself for re-election. Information about Mr Lewinsky
appears in the Company's Annual Report.

2. Re-election of Roger Sawley

Roger Sawley, Non-executive Director, retires by rotation in
accordance with the Company’s constitution and, being eligible,
offers himself for re-efection. Information about Mr Sawley
appears in the Company's Annual Report.

3. Adoption of Remuneration Report

The Company’s Remuneration Report is included within the
Directors’ Report at pages 32 to 41 in the Annual Report. It sets
out a range of matters relating to the remuneration of Directors
and executives of the Company. A vote on this resolution is
advisory only ang does not bind the directors or the Company.

4,  Approval of securities to be issued to
Graham Davie, CEO.

At the date of this Notice Mr Davie is paid a total fixed annual
remuneration ("TFR™} of $300,000 which represents an 8.8%
increase in his previcus TFR of $275,600 which was effective to
1 October 2008, Mr Davie is entitled to receive short term
incentive payments in accordance with the STI Plan and, as
Chief Executive Officer, is entitied to participate in the Redflex
Long Term Incentive Plan for Australlan Executives (the “Plan”)
subject to shareholder approval. The Company seeks
shareholder approval for Mr Davie to be issued with Performance
Rights and for the Company to issue fully paid ordinary shares in
the number, at the time and upon the terms and subject to the
conditions contained in the Plan,

The number of Performance Rights contemplated in this
resolution is 72,057,

The Plan has been in operation since July 2006. The Plan's
objective is to reward executives and senior managers in a
manner that aligns this element of remuneration with the
creation of shareholder wealth. The Plan Rules for Australian
exeoutives are posted on the Company’s website at
www.redflex.com.au/holdings/holdings_governance.htm.

To date, under the Plan, the Company has issued or offered to
31 Redflex executives 2,911,519 Performance Rights of which
847,043 have vested, 2,942 have lapsed and 98,622 have been
forfeited.

Number of Performance Rights to be awarded

The maximum number of Performance Rights to be issued
subject to this resolution is 72,057. This number was calculated
by reference to 60% of Mr Davie's annual TFR and the average
of the daily closing prices of the Company’s shares over the 3
months prior to 1 October 2008 ($2.49803), being the effective
date of the commencement of the performance period, The
Performance Rights represent a value of $180,000 over a 3 year
period.

The actual value of the Performance Rights that Mr Davie will
enjoy will depend on the Company’s relative total shareholder
return, described below, as well as movements in the Company’s
share price, and may be more or less than $180,000. Shortly
prior to the finalisation of this Notice, the Company’s share price
was $2.83 compared to the dosing share price of $2.35on 1
July 2008 and $2.30 on 30 September 2008 being the last
trading day prior to when the Performance Rights were
determined.

If, prior to the end of a performance period, Mr Davie ceases to
be employed by the Company (except in the case of death,
disability or redundancy), then the Performance Rights for that

period will lapse,

Having regard to the circumstances of Mr Davie (including the
responsibility invelved in his office and employment) and the
Company, the Directors consider that the grant of the additional
Performance Rights represents reasonable remuneration for Mr
Davie. As announced to ASX when the Plan commenced
operation, it has always been expected that Performance Rights
will be offered annually.

Performance Conditions

The actual number of shares to be granted is determined by the
performance conditions of the Performance Rights over the 3-
year performance period to 1 October 2011.

The Perfarmance Rights will vest into fully paid ordinary shares
on a 1 for 1 basis at no cost to Mr Davie (as is the case with
other Redflex executives) subject to satisfaction of performance
hurdles. The performance measure is the Company’s relative
total shareholder return ("TSR"} performance compared with the
TSR performance of a comparator group of companies in the
SEP/ASX 300 at the start of the performance period over the
same period.

The performance hurdie has a threshold minimum below which
the Performance Rights will lapse. No Performance Rights will
vest if the Company's TSR performance is less than the TSR
performance achieved by 50% of the cormpanies in the
comparator group, and 50% will vest if this hurdle is reached.
The maximum number of Performance Rights will vest if the
Company's TSR performance is equal to or greater than the TSR
performance achieved by 75% of the companies in the
comparator group. If the Company's TSR performance is
between the two thresholds the number of Performance Rights
that vest is determined on a directly proportional basis.

Other
The 72,057 Performance Rights subject to the resolution
represent 0.07% of the Company’s share capital of 90,895,249,

R is intended that the Performance Rights will be issued to My
Davie immediately on shareholder approval being obtained. Any
shares the subject of vesting of Performance Rights will be
issued within a three year period from the date of shareholder
approval,

Mr Davie presently has interests in 1,533,787 shares in the
Company and 128,671 Performance Rights.
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT continued

Redflex Holdings Limited
Annual General Meeting 2008

Voting Exclusion
The Company wil!l disregard any vote cast on Resolution 4 by Mr

Davie or any associate of him. However, the Company need not

disregard a vote if:

« itis cast by a person as proxy for a person who Is entitled
to vote, in accordance with the directions on the proxy
form; or

« itis cast by a person chairing the meeting as proxy for a
person who is entitled to vote, in accordance with a
direction on the proxy form to vote as the proxy decides,

5. Approval of securities to be issued to Karen
Finley, CEO, Redflex Traffic Systems Inc

At the date of this Notice Ms Finley is paid a total fixed annual
remuneration ("TFR") of US$300,000 which represents a 9.1%
increase in her previous TFR of US$275,000 which was effective
to 1 October 2008. Ms Finley is entitled to receive short term
incentive payments in accordance with the STI Plan and, as
Chief Executive Officer of Redflex Traffic Systems Inc, is entitled
to participate in the Redflex Long Term Incentive Plan for USA
Executives (the “Plan") subject to shareholder approval. The
Company seeks shareholder approval for Ms Finley to be issued
with Performance Rights and for the Company o issue fully paid
ordinary shares in the number, at the time and upon the terms
and subject to the conditions contained in the Plan,

The number of Performance Rights contemplated in this
resolution is 90,071, If shareholder approval is not obtained,
then Ms Finley will be provided with monetary equivalent
rewards based on the Plan hurdles as per all USA executives.

The Plan has been in operation since July 2006. The Plan's
objective is to reward executives and senior managers in a
manner that aligns this element of remuneration with the
creation of shareholder wealth, The Plan Rules for USA
executives are posted on the Company’s website at

www  redflex.com.aufholdings/holdings_governance.htm.

To date, under the Plan, the Company has issued or offered to
31 Redflex executives 2,911,519 Performance Rights of which
847,043 have vested, 2,942 have lapsed and 98,622 have been
forfeited.

Number of Performance Rights to be awarded

The maximum number of Performance Rights to be issued
subject to this resolution is 90,071, This number was calculated
by reference to 60% of Ms Anley’s annual TFR and the average
of the daily closing prices of the Company’s shares over the 3
months prior to 1 October 2008 ($2.49803) , being the effective
date of the commencement of the performance period. The
Performance Rights represent a value of $225,000 over a 3 year
period.

The actual value of the Performance Rights that Ms Finley will
enjoy will depend on the Company’s relative total shareholder
retum, described below, as well as movements in the Company's
share price, and may be more or less than $225,000. Shortly
prior to the finalisation of this Notice, the Company’s share price
was $2.83 compared to the closing share price of $2.35 on 1
July 2008 and $2.30 on 30 September 2008 being the last
trading day prior to when the Performance Rights were
determined.

Having regard to the circumstances of Ms Anley (including the
responsibilities involved in her office and employment) and the
Company, the Directors consider that the grant of additional
Performance Rights represents reasonable remuneration for Ms
Finley. As announced to ASX when the Plan commenced
operation, it has always been expected that Performance Rights
will be offered annually.

If, prior to the completion of a performance period, Ms Finley
ceases to be employed by the Company (except in the case of
death, disability or redundancy), then the Performance Rights for
that period will lapse,

Performance Conditions

The actual number of shares to be granted is determined by the
performance conditions of the Performance Rights over the 3-
year performance period to 1 October 2011,

The Performance Rights will vest into fully paid ordinary shares
on a 1 for 1 basis at no cost to Ms Finley (as is the case with
other Redflex executives) subject to satisfaction of performance
hurdles, The performance measure |s the Company’s refative
total shareholder return ("TSR") performance compared with the
TSR performance of a comparator group of companies in the
S&PFASX 300 at the start of the performance period over the
same period.

The performance hurdle has a threshold minimem below which
the Performance Rights will lapse. No Performance Rights will
vest if the Company’s TSR performance is less than the TSR
performance achieved by 50% of the companies in the
comparator group, and 50% will vest if this hurdle is reached.
The maximum number of Performance Rights will vest If the
Company’s TSR performance is equal to or greater than the TSR
performance achieved by 75% of the companies in the
comparator group. [f the Company’s TSR performance is
between the two thresholds the number of Performance Rights
that vest is determined on a directly proportional basis.

Other

The 90,071 Performance Rights subject to the resolution
represent 0.09% of the Company’s share capital of 90,895,249
ordinary shares.

It is intended that the Performance Rights will be issued to Ms
Finley immediately on shareholder approval being obtained. Any
shares the subject of vesting of Performance Rights will be
issued within a three year period from the date of shareholder
approval.

Ms Finley presently has interests in 281,879 shares in the
Company, and 156,626 Performance Rights.

Voting Exclusion
The Company will disregard any vote cast on Resolution 5 by Ms

Finley or any associate of her. However, the Company need not

disregard a vote if:

s itis cast by a person as proxy for a person who is entitled
to vote, in accordance with the directions on the proxy
form; or

« itis cast by a person chairing the meeting as proxy for a
person who is entiled to vote, in accordance with a
direction on the proxy form to vote as the proxy decides.
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Redflex Holdings Limited
ABN 96 069 306 216

QUESTIONS FROM SHAREHOLDERS
Annual General Meeting Wednesday 19 November 2008, 10.30am

Your questions or concerns as a shareholder are important and we encourage you to raise them with us.
Please use this form to submit questions which may be directed to:

= Management of the company regarding Redflex Holdings Limited generally and/or

» Ernst & Young, the company’s auditor, regarding the content of its Audit Report or the conduct of its audit
of the company’s financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2008.

We will endeavour to respond to as many of the most frequently asked questions as practicable during the
meeting as part of the Chairman’s and Chief Executive Officer’s addresses.

Questions should be submitted no later than 5:00pm Monday 10 November 2008 as follows:
By fax to:  +61 3 9699 3566

By mail to: PO Box 720, South Melbourne, Victoria, Australia, 3205
By email to: marilyn.stephens@redflex.com.au

Question(s)
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Louge your voie.

Nl

Online:
HotpiNGE . www.investorvote.com.au
Redflex Holdings Limited
ABN 06 069 306 216

By Mail:

Computershare Investor Services Pty Limited
GPO Box 242 Melboume
Victoria 3001 Australia
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SAMPLE ESTATE
SAMPLEVILLE VIC 3030

Alternatively you can fax your form to
(within Australia) 1800 783 447
(outside Australia} +61 3 9473 2555

For all enquiries call:
(within Australia) 1300 850 505
(outside Australia) +61 3 9415 4000

Proxy Form

@

This Document is printed on Greenhouse Fri.y"'I ENVI Laser Carbon Neutral Paper

@ Vote online or view the annual report, 24 hours a day, 7 days a week:
www.investorvote.com.au

Your secure access information is:
Control Number: 999999

SRN/HIN: 19999999999

2NE
RS

M Cast your proxy vote

M Access the annual report PIN: 99999

PLEASE NOTE: For security reasons it is important that you keep your

M Review and update your securityholding SRN/HIN confidential,

NS

How to Vote on ltems of Business

All your securities will be voted in accordance with your directions.

Appointment of Proxy

Voting 100% of your holding: Direct your proxy how to vots by
marking one of the boxes opposite each item of business. if you do
not mark a box your proxy may vote as they chocse. If you mark
more than one box on an item your vote will be invalid on that item.

Voting a portion of your holding: Indicate a portion of your
voting rights by inserting the percentage or number of securities
you wish to vote in the For, Against or Abstain box or boxes. The
sum of the votes cast must not exceed your voting entitliement or
100%.

Appointing a second proxy: You are entitled to appoint up to two
proxies to attend the meeting and vote on a poll. If you appoint two
proxies you must specify the percentage of votes or number of
securities for each proxy, otherwise each proxy may exercise half of
the votes. When appointing a second proxy write both names and
the percentage of votes or number of securities for each in Step 1
overleaf.

A proxy need not be a securityholder of the Company.

LX For your vote to be effective it must be received by 10.30am Monday 17 November 2008

Signing Instructions for Postal Forms

Individual: Where the holding is in one name, the securityholder
must sign.

Joint Holding: Where the holding is in more than one name, all of
the securityholders should sign.

Power of Attorney: If you have not already lodged the Power of
Attorney with the registry, please attach a certified photocopy of the
Power of Attorney to this form when you return it.

Companies: Where the company has a Sole Director who is also
the Sole Company Secretary, this form must be signed by that
person. If the company (pursuant to section 204A of the Corporations
Act 2001) does not have a Company Secretary, a Sole Director can
also sign alone. Otherwise this form must be signed by a Director
jointly with either another Director or a Company Secretary. Please
sign in the appropriate place to indicate the office held.

Attending the Meeting

Bring this form to assist registration. If a representative of a corporate
securityholder or proxy is to attend the meeting you will need to
provide the appropriate "Certificate of Appointment of Corporate
Representative” prior to admission. A form of the certificate may be
obtained from Computershare or online at www.computershare.com.

Comments & Questions: If you have any comments or questions

for the company, please write them on a separate sheet of paper and
return with this form.

GO ONLINE TO VOTE, >
or turn over to complete the form
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THESAMPLEHILL Sccurynocerssponsoroya |V i ol
SAMPLEVILLE VIC 3030 broker (refarence number

commences with X} should advise

your broker of any changes. I 9999999999 I N D

H Proxy Form Please mark X to indicate your directions
Appoint a Proxy to Vote on Your Behalf XX

IWe being a member/s of Redflex Holdings Limited hereby appoint

. 7 PLEASE NOTE: Leave this box biank if
the Chairman you hava selected the Chairman of the
of the meeting - Meeting. Do not insert your own name(s).

or failing the individual or body corporate named, or if no individual or body corporate is named, the Chairman of the Meeting, as my/our proxy
to act generally at the meeting on my/our behalf and to vole in accordance with the following directions {or if no directions have been given, as
the proxy sees fit) at the Annual General Meeting of Redflex Holdings Limited to be held at the Village Roadshow Theatrette, State Library of
Victoria, 328 Swanston Street (entry 3, La Trobe Street), Melboume, on Wednesday 19 November 2008 at 10.30am and at any adjournment of
that meeting.

STEP 2 Items Of BUSi ness ﬁ PLEASE NOTE: If you mark the Abstain box for an item, you are directing your proxy not to vote on your

behalf on a show of hands or a poll and your vates will not be counted in compuling the required majority.

&
5 ,9\“& F
< ¢ I
1  Re-slection of Mr Peter Lewinsky
2 Re-election of Mr Roger Sawley
3  Adoption of Remuneration Report
4  Approval of securities to be issued to Mr Graham Davie, CEOQ
5  Approval of securities to be issued to Ms Karen Fintey, CEO Redflex Traffic Systems Inc
The Chairman of the Meeting intends to vote undirected proxies in favour of each item of business.
SIGN Signature of Secu rityholder(s) This section must be completed.

tndividual or Securityholder 1 Securityholder 2 Securityholder 3
Sole Director and Sole Company Secretary Director Director/Company Secretary

Contact
Contact Daytime
Name Telephone Date _._.L._...._.’_
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.......... LI
w Computershare Investor Services Pty Limited

GPO Box 2975 Melbourne

HOLDINGS o Victoria 3001 Australia
Redflex Holdings Limited Enquiries {within Australia) 1300 850 505
ABN 96 069 306 216 (outside Australia) 61 3 9415 4000

Facsimile 61 3 9473 2500
web.queries@computershare.com.au
www.compuiershare.com

000001 o0 ROF

MR SAM SAMPLE

FLAT 123

123 SAMPLE STREET
THE SAMPLE HILL
SAMPLE ESTATE
SAMPLEVILLE VIC 3030

Dear Securityholder,

We have been trying to contact you in connection with matters arising from your securityholding in Redflex Holdings
Limited. Unfortunately, our correspondence has been returned to us marked "Unknown at the current

address”. For security reasons we have flagged this against your securityholding which will exclude you from future
mailings, other than notice of meeting.

We value you as a securityholder and request that you supply your current address so that we can keep you informed
about Redflex Holdings Limited. Where the correspondence has been returned to us in error we request that you advise
us of this so that we may correct our records.

You are requested to include the following:

>Security Reference Number {SRN)*;

>ASX trading code;,

>Name of company in which security is held,
>0ld address,; and

>New address.

Please ensure that the notification is signed by all hotders and forwarded to our Share Registry at:
Computershare investor Services Pty Limited

GPO Box 2975

Melbourne Victoria 3001

Australia

Note": If your holding is sponsored within the CHESS environment you need to advise your sponsoring
participant (in most cases this would be your broker) of your change of address so that your records with CHESS
are also updated.

Yours sincerely
fioig S

Marilyn Stephens
Company Secretary

999599 SAMPLE_0_0_PROXY/000401/00000%
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FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS FY08 FYo7
Revenue ($m) 88.2 700
Eamings before interest, taxation, depreciation and amortisation ($mj) 323 25.8
Operating profit after tax ($m) 10.6 7.3
Weighted average number of shares (million) 89.8 88.0
Basic earnings per share (cents) 11.79 8.25
Eamings per share based on earnings before interest, tax, depreciation

and amortisation (cents) 36 29.1
FINANCIAL POSITION FY08 FYQ7
Current assets ($m) 41.3 36.8
Non-current assets ($m) 86.9 72.3
Current liabilities ($m} 24,9 15.1
Non-current liabilities {$m) 38.0 27.9
Shareholders equity ($m) 65.4 66.1
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2006

2007

2005

2006

2007

205

2008

70

CONTRACTED CITIES
IN USA

203

CONTRACTED STATES
IN USA

20

EBITDA GROWTH
FROM CONTINUING
QOPERATIONS 1AUS)

$32.3M

INSTALLED BASE

OF CAMERAS IN USA

1267

REVEMUE FROM

CONTINUING
OPERATIONS (AUS)

$88.2M

2005 2006 2007 2008

NET PROFIT BEFORE TAX

FROM CONTINUING
QPERATIONS (AUS)

$15.3M

2005 2006 2007 2008
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WHILST REDFLEX
IS CLEARLY A
HIGH GROWTH
OPERATION, IT
IS PLEASING TO
RECORD THAT
CORPORATE
MATURITY

AND STABILITY
CONTINUETO
EVOLVE.

FELLOW SHAREHOLDERS

The Redflex Board is delighted to inform the company's stakeholders that the last year
has been a very positive ane. The company has continued to build on its strong market
position and has maintained its pre-eminent status.

Again new records have been set, by substantial margins, in relation to all standard
measures of financial performance. More specifically, record results have been
achieved in terms of revenue, earnings before interest, tax, deprecfation and
amortisation {EBITDA), net profit before tax (NPBT) and net profit after tax (NPAT). It
is particularly pleasing, and worthy of note that such record increases werg achieved
despite significant adverse foreign exchange conditions. Approximately 80% of

the company's business is based in the USA. Between the start and the finish of

the financial year the US doltar declined in Austratian dollar terms by approximately
13%. That being the case, the tinancial records established by Redflex are all the
more commendable. Since the end of the 2007/2008 financial year, there has been a
significant improvement in the foreign exchange situation, from a Redflex viewpoint at
least which hopefulty augurs well for the balance of the current financial year,

Whilst Redilex is clearly a high growth operation, it is pleasing to record that corperate
maturity and stability continue to evolve, Encowagingly, the company’s senior
management, which has served us so well, has remained in place as a committed
unified team albeit with some valuable additiona) appointments being made in light of
the company's rapid growth. Hopefully such managerial stability will be maintained in
years to come.

The last year has seen a number of operational milestones being achieved which
in¢clude, amongst others:

« commissioning our 1000th instailation in the USA (now in excess of 1,300);

+ the successful implementation of the largest traffic camera program in the Middie
East, being a program of 86 installations in Qafar;

+ Redilex's selection for a state-wide speed camera program in Arizona - the first such
state-wide contract ever awarded in the USA;

+ therelocation of the Scottsdale operation into brand new, significantly larger premises
in Phoenix — being a facility providing floor space in excess of 7,000 square metres;
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+  the establishment of a US$50 million loan facility through a joint venture of the Bank
of Montreal and the Commonwealth Bank of Australia to finance our on-going rapid
expansion.

* In November 2007 Redflex paid its first ever dividend to shareholders being a dividend
of 3.5 cents fully franked. We are delighted to confirm that anather dividend has been
declared and will be paid in Novermnber 2008 — on this occasion in the sum of 4.5 cents
per share fully franked, (a 20% increase). The dividend reinvestment plan (DRP) that
was offered last year was enthusiastically supported by the company’s shareholders
with a take up rate of approximately 58%. That being the case, it has been resclved
that the DRP will again be offered in relation ic the forthcoming dividend on the
same terms and conditions as previously — that is with the shares being issued at a
discount to market price of 5% thereby enabling shareholders to participate further in
the company’s growth without incurring brokerage or other transactional costs. The
DORP is of great benefit t¢ the company in assisting capital conservation at a stage
when capital expenditure to facilitate corporate expansion is progressing so strongly.
The support of those shareholders who choose to participate in the program is
greatly appreciated. The company intends maintaining its policy of paying only one
dividend per year.

We believe that the future continues to hold much promise for Redflex. Tragically,

this year approximately 50,000 fataliies will occur on North American roads — a very
much greater per capita toll than the Australian equivalent, despite the typically higher
quality of North American roads. Clearly, this is a situation that is capable of dramatic
improvement. We are confident thal Redflex can and will continue to make a signiticant
confribution to this worthy cause. At the same time as doing significant public good,
your company can build a successful ongoing prosperous commercial enterprise.
Such fortuitous parallel potentialities are rare indeed. Redflex will make every effort to
avail itself of the opportunity open 1o it.

We have every confidence that the future for Redflex is highly promising. Whilst we
have already made much progress, the challenges in front of us are substantial and
exciting. | again, finally, on behalf of all shareholders, take this opportunity to sincerely
thank and congratulate our loyal and hardworking staff who have, together, created our
achievements to date and will doubtless do likewise in the future,

—

Christepher Cooper

Chairman

WE HAVE EVERY
CONFIDENCE
THAT THE FUTURE
FOR REDFLEX IS
HIGHLY PROMISING.
WHILST WE HAVE
ALREADY MADE
MUCH PROGRESS.
THE CHALLENGES
IN FRONT OF US
ARE SUBSTANTIAL
AND EXCITING.
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REDFLEXred-speed™

The REDH EXred-speed ™ ixad
sSysiem proviges a world leading
technology 1 enlorcement

uilsing inducive and non-
inductive dereciors I prowides e
enforcement of rad hgit and speed
offencas at interseclions.

Ihe deiechion system utilises
in-road inducive i & loop loop)
deieciors and is capable of speed
determination Adchional informaiion
such as vehiele length and class
can also be acouired using this
technology

The system is ablke 10 enforce red
ftighi speed and combined red hight
and speed offences. and 1s suied o
IHSIS2CUONS.
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

In the 2008 financial year Redflex has again delivered an impressive result, with record revenues and profits, ahead of our published
forecast.

Our number one position in the US photo-enforcement market has been retained with a record result and record roll-out of new
camera systerns across the country.

QOur Australian-based, international traffic enforcement business has also performed very well and has made further infoads into the
global market.

GROUP HIGHLIGHTS FOR THE YEAR
+ Anincrease in revenue from $70.0 million to $88.2 million.

* An increase in Earnings before Interest, Tax, Depreciation and Amortisation (EBITDA) from $25.5 million to $32.3 million for
continuing cperations. This represents an improvement in EBITDA margin from 36% to 38%.

*  Anincrease in Net Profit before Tax (NPBT) from $10.8 million to $15.3 million for continuing operations.
+ Anincrease in Net Profit after Tax (NPAT) from $7.3 million to $10.6 million for continuing operations.

*  Adoubling of our bank financing facilities from US$25 million to US$50 million on favourable commercial terms to fund our ongoing
expansion.

USA OPERATIONS

Redffex Traffic Systems continues to lead the market in North America in new contracts awarded and system delivery, and continues
to lead the industry as the largest supplier and operator of outsourced photo enforcement systems in the USA.

HIGHUGHTS
+ Maintaining Redflex's number one position in the USA market in terms of installed cameras and new business being won;

+ Anincrease of 44% in the number of camera systems installed in the USA Build Own Operate and Maintain market - from 877 to
1,267,

+ Anincrease of 43% in USA traffic revenue from US$44.3 million to US$63.3 million;

+ 66 new contracts signed aver the financial year, with a further 13 signed since to 15 September 2008;

= Contracted for the largest municipal red ght camera program in the world for an additional 440 systems in the City of Chicago.
+  51% more citations processed than in FY 2007;

« Ongoing research and development investment in new technology developments that continue to place Redflex at the forefront of
the industry; and

« Contracted the first state-wide mobile speed enforcement program with the Arizona Department of Public Safety.
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REDFLEXpoint-to-point™

Redfiex's Point-io-Fomt = saluton
provigas speed enforcemen; and
siatstical mtormanon lor vehicles
ravehng lrom one pomt io another

the system works by hnowing the
chistance beween e (wo oINS
and the ime 1t woulkd tahe io travel
ihart distance fegally. Vehicle detals
fincluchng image and imay are
recorded at each pont, and are
tater correlatad at a ceniral server
io detarming the average vehicle
speed

Incident files are creawed for boif
local and pomi-lo-pomt speaeting
vehicles

Opucal character recognivion (OCH)
15 used 0 auomale the vehicle
cosrefaton process The ceniral
server uihzes a refaiional database
{0 siore summary informanion, from
which siausical inlormation is
extracled
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NEW CONTRACTS

In the USA, Redflex Traffic Systems now has contracts with 215 cities across 20 states. New contracts were signed with the following
79 cities from 1 July 2007 to 15 September 2008:

Tempe, AZ

New Lennox, IL
Moreno Valley, CA
Columbus, MS
Lewisville, TX
Northlake, IL

St Charles, IL
Edmundson, MO
Hurst, TX

Bedford, TX

Baker, LA

Mesquite, TX

Killeen, TX

Allen, TX

Haltom, TX
Southlake, TX
Tomball, TX
Livingston Parish, LA~
West Carrollton, OH *

Bremerton, WA

Fife, WA

Monroe, WA

Granite Shoals, TX
Forney, TX

South Haolland, 1L
Mountlake Terrace, WA
Selmer, TN
Broussard, LA
Peoria, AZ

Richton, IL
Countryside, iL
Oakland, CA
Victorville, CA
Beverly Hills, CA
Camollton, TX

North Las Vegas, NV
Roseville, CA ™

Blue Island, IL =

Department of Public Safety, AZ {State wide freeway

enforcement)*

* Contracts signed since 1 July 2008

In addition, contract renewals have been executed in many long term partner cities. Specifically, the cities of Fort Collins Colorado,
Bakersfield California; Medford Cregon, Toledo Ohio, St. Peters Missouri, Pinal County and Paradise Valley Arizona, Oxnard and
Southgate California, and Moultrie Georgia all renewed their contracts for multiple years. Again, Redflex successfully beat one of
its competitors in a head-to-head program trial in the City of Austin, Texas which was a huge testament to, and reaffirmation of, its
service and technical abilities, underpinning the win from last year in the head-to-head trial in Corpus Christi, Texas.

SALES AND MARKETING
Key sales and marketing developments over the year have been:

Palos Heights, IL

Mt Carmel, TN
Rancho Cucamonga, CA
Citrus Heights, CA
Carol Siream, IL
Geneva, IL

Aurora, IL

Redlands, CA
Chillicothe, OH
Burien, WA

Balch Springs, TX
Belmont, CA

Port Lavaca, TX
Chicago, IL {(New 440}
Denver, CO

Austin, TX

Sulphur, LA *
Jonesborough, TN *
Morristown, TN =
Elgin, IL *

DPS, AZ (2 speed van pilot}
Stickney, IL
Gretna, LA
Glendale, CA
Festus, MO
Napa, CA
Orowille, CA
Gurnee, IL
Yucaipa, CA
Tinley Park, IL
San Carlos, CA
Star Valley, AZ
Orland Park, IL
Hayward, CA
Roanoke, TX
Highland, CA
Calumet Park, IL~
Naperville, IL *
Oak Ridge, TN *
Westwego, LA™

+ 66 new contracts won over the financial year compared to 59 in the prior financial year. This underscores the continuous growth
oppoitunities and validates photo enforcement acceptance across the USA.

+ The sales team added key resources to target the market areas in Arizena, Colorado, and New Mexico.

»  Inroads achieved in the speed enforcement market with, in Arizona, three new contracts containing a speed component, as well as
new contracts in Louisiana, Nevada and Tennessee.

« Fixed speed enforcement opportunities are emerging as the baseline infrastructure is being established with red light enforcement
and general acceptance of the technofogy becomes more commonplace.

= The red light and speed product portfolios have been broadened to meet custorner needs. In red light we have both fixed and
mobile systems, and for the speed market, the fixed, mobile and tripod systems have allowed Redflex to be a leader in this next

sector of growth.

+  We have grown in the key markets of California, Texas, llinois and Chio.

»  Fixed red light enforcement product sales continue to see momentum with the increasing acceptance of automated enforcement
in this sector and as the eflicacy of these safety programs becomes more widely known.
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REDFLEXradarcam™

REDFL EXradarcam 15 our Siale of
e ar, mobie cigital camera sysiem
Rediliex uses fugh-resoluiion dighal
cameras with ndepencen; siftobe
unis. & large touch-screen interface
for real-nme feedbach, a Global
Postioning Sysiam receiver (GPS)
for locauon yaching, atomic-cloch
synchronisauon. and a slant racfar
syswem for across-the-road Mobnle
Speecd Enforcement.

{he BREDFLEXracarcam © sysiem can
be operated n environmenis wherg
mobile spead reducion soluiions are
required  Thts may be i blach spoi
areas. speed complamnis or school
7onas.

Redifex s mobila uriis are purpose
builz io be operaed irom vehicles.
and are flexbie i conhigurabion so
that they can be exiernally inpod
mouned
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KEY EXECUTIVE CHANGES
Aaron Rosenberg was appointed Executive Vice President of New Business Developrment, effective 1 July 2008, He is focused on
rapid expansion of new product and channel initiatives to allow Redflex to capitalise on emergent growth sectors.

Cristina Weekes expanded her role in the company as Executive Vice President, adding sales to marketing, government affairs, and
public relations responsibilities,

Michael Browne was appointed to the position of Chief Financial Officer of Redftex Traffic Systems Inc.

INSTALLATIONS

Financial year 2008 witnessed the greatest number of installed systems in the iraliic photo enforcement industry. The installation
base continues to grow with:

« 667 systems installed at 30 June 2006,

« 770 systems installed at 31 December 2006,

+ 877 systems installed at 30 June 2007,

* 1,064 systems instatled at 31 December 2007,
+ 1,267 sysiems installed at 30 June 2008,

The number of installed systems includes cameras that may not be generating revenues for reasons including warning periods,
delays in going live, legistative issues, road work, and/or maintenance actions.

PRODUCT DEVELOPMENT INITIATIVES

REDFLEXred Mobile Red Light

An exciting new product was added to the Redflex suite of photo enforcement systems with the introduction of REDFLEXred Mobile.
Redflex took its knowledge and experience in fixed red light monitoring and mobile speed systems, and combined them to form a
mchile version of its red light monitering product. The system can be deployed at pre-determined locations, increasing the coverage
and halo effect experienced with fixed monitoring systems, The REDFLEXred Mobile system can also complement a new or existing
photo enforcement program. A mobile red light monitoring system was recently a requirement of the Arizona DPS state photo
enforcement program,

Maobile Speed Third Generation (G3)

This year, Redflex began to roll out its next generation (G3) of mobile speed enforcement products including new platforms for mobile
speed vehicles and tripod based portable speed enforcement systems. The mobile speed system utilises a hybrid vehicle's power
system for true mobile enforcement capabilities so it never has to be plugged in to charge. Coupled with mobile broadband internet,
the G3 mobile speed enforcement platform provides powerful functionality. The G3 mobile speed enforcement technologies formed
the basis of the Arizona DPS mobile speed pilot. This two vehicle program called for features such as bi-directional front and rear
monitoring capabilities, video dlips at raised heights, and high resolution digital still cameras.

Photonotice.com Kiosk

Redflex delivered its violator portal, Photonotice.com, in the farm ot a Kiosk, which has been installed at a customes’s court house.
The Kiesk provides a free service to the community to review their violation details online. This includes the high resolution still
images and a full motion video clip. The viclators can also read frequently asked questions while they log online fo pay their fines.

SMARTscene Live

Additionally, Redftex is in the process of completing a new version of its SMARTscene Live system. The new version will provide
multiple video viewing and user defined camera filtering capabilities for easy access to favourite live video streams as well as the
ability to recall recorded video from a particular camera, all through the use of a web browser.

OPERATIONAL ACCOMPLISHMENTS

Data Storage Efficiency Improvement

Redlflex increased its efficiencies in data storage through a new interface to manage data retention palicies and compression
technologies on image data in the back office systems. This not only leverages the capital investments made by Redflex to store its
data both at its main data centre and offsite co-location {acility, but also realises a reduction in bandwidth requirements and increase
in processing/Vewing speeds which translates into operational cost reductions. With these efficiency enhancements high resolution
digital still images now download at significantly higher speeds, reducing the computer and bandwidih requirements at the customer
end.

REDFLEX - MAKING A SAFER WORLD 11




REDFLEXrail™

REDFLEXrail ™ is & level crossing
violation momitonng system ihal
deiecis and enlorces offending
vehicles at rallway crossings. [he
sysiem detects vehicles that disobey
red fights, veticles that drive around
boom gates. and provides graiock
enforcement capabilivas that caplure
images of all vehucles thal siop within
the wiclation area after a configurable
ame penod (regardless of the signal
orboom gaies). The sysiem also
anforces speed ai the level crossing
site.

The systam combiries high
rasoluon imagas wih video of all
offances o ensure enforcemeni and
undersianding of driver behaviour at
the lavel crossing
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Automated Data Download Enhancement

Automated data downloads from the camera systems have been further enhanced with the implementation of a new “push”
client/server software system which significantly reduces the management of the data gathering and increases the efficiencies
through auto-resume, compression and verification. This new system allows for easier adoption of potentially less reliable internet
connections such as wireless broadband that is now being used in some fixed sites as a temporary or sometimes permanent media
connection where traditional means of broadband are unavailable or where a wireless connection may be required in a mobite
application such as speed and red light unis.

Server Virtualisation — Utilisaticn, Space and Cost Efficiencies

Redflex migrated its core production systems in its data centre to server virtualisation technologies. This initiative increases server
hardware utilisation by as much as 80%. This translates into a reduction in the number of physical hardware servers required for
Redilex to operate its business, which in turn translates into reduced operational costs such as electricity and hardware maintenance.
Virtualisation technology also increases and simplifies Redflex’s ability to resume operations in a disaster scenaric.

Automated Court Evidence Packages

Redilex is completing the final testing of an application which will automate the creation of evidence packages for Court, to increase
quality and efficiency in this important area.

Supply Chain Improvements .

The USA production team has developed effective solutions and realised substantial cost savings through global supply chain
improvernents and reduced freight costs,

Construction and Maintenance Efficiencies

The USA construction and maintenance team has maintained and improved efficiencies while accomplishing an 86% growth in the
net rate of new installations, and fully supporting an installed base that grew by 44%.

NEW USA CORPORATE OFFICE

With the growth experienced over the past several years, and with the expiration of our current corporate office lease in September,
we have relocated the corporate headquarters in the USA to the Pinnacle Peak Commerce Center in Phoenix, Arizona. The site was
selected after extensive review of a large number of sites and premises.

The new facility offers:

+ greater efficiency in operational layout;

+ an enhanced work environment;

+ space and faciliies for current and future growth needs over the next 7-10 years;
+ convenient access for employees; and

+  lower cost per square metre than the existing location.

WORKFORCE 9
Cwver the past year Redflex USA has seen a 35% increase in the number of USA employees.

To indicate efficiencies, in the same period:

« systems in senvice grew by 44%,

» the nel rate of new instailation rollout increased by 86%;
« contracted customers increased by 48%: and

« citations processed grew by 51%.

As part of the widespread growth of the business, Redflex hired employees in six new states during the 2008 financial year.
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REDFLEXspeed-advisory™

REDFLEXspeed-adwsory provides
speed wisual adwisory iechnology
whereby the sysiem delects the
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USA LEGISLATIVE ENVIRONMENT

Nationally, the legislative environment is becoming more favourable and the overall level of political resistance is receding as the
technology grows more widespread and farmiliar, The most likely scenario is that this frend holds in the year ahead, although
reversals remain possible.

The following is a review of legislative activity in the USA over the past financial year:

+ In Arizona, despite significant threats, including a ballot measure to ban the use of automated speed enforcement on state
highways, and complex budget issues, legislation was passed which included a state-wide freeway enforcement program. This
leadership position by the State of Arizona opens the landscape for other stales 1o rephcate this state-wide model for speed and
red light automated enforcement.

+ Efforts to restore operations in Minnesota and lowa with enabling legislation have not yet been successful. Redflex will continue
these efforts in the next legislative session and will endeavour to garner improved support from cities and the police unions for the
safety benefits that are offered.

» Despite numerous competitive vendors’ efforts, enabling legislation in Florida has not yet been enacted. Legal opinions indicate that
automated enfarcernent in the State of Florida remains illegal. Some competitors have proceeded at risk with early programs,

» Ohio was relatively trouble-free compared to recent years in the state. A bill covering signage and yellow light intervals, which
Redilex did not oppose, was passed in June.

» In New Jersey legislation allowing pilot programs was passed and signed inlo law.

* Massachusetts is also considering enabling legistation, and at this time the session continues and the cutcome remains unknown.
Redilex’s retained lobbying resources are working closely with cifies 1o win passage of the legislation.

+  The Texas legislature sits in session only every other year and 2008 was an off year. An opponent is planning another legislative
attempt to ban the technology in 2009, and Redflex continues 1o engage support in that state.

«  Adifficuli period in New Mexico stabilised with the passage of legislation to channel excess funds from automated enforcement
programs to a state levet satety program. A panel was assembled mid-yeas in Albuquerque to determine the efiicacy of the city's
satety program. Preliminary data shows that the Redtlex program is improving community safety.

The percentage of camera systems which are currently not operational as a result of legislative and legal issues has decreased o
less than 5%, from around 8% last year.

AUSTRALIA / INTERNATIONAL BUSINESS

It has been a year of significant mitestones for the Australian / International Business, with delivery of a number of important programs
both in Australia and overseas.

HIGHLIGHTS
*  Arecord financial year's performance with increased revenue and profit;

+ Largest ever contract for camera systems in Qatar in the Middle East;
+  First outsourced back office in the Northern Teritory;

= Continued focus on research and development;

*  Revenue growth of 27%, whilst the workforee grew by only 8%.

KEY GLOBAL CONTRACTS

Redflex continues to market its products and sendces, establish relationships, and appaint distributors in its international markets that
include Europe, the Middle East and Asia.

Qatar

In Qatar, Redflex camera systems are prominent throughout the capital city of Doha, supporting one of the leading road safety
programs operating in the Middle East. Redflex supplied 86 cameras systems in support of this program.

New Zealand

In New Zealand, Auckland was experiencing an increasing issue of red light running. With the support of the public, New Zealand
Police, the Auckland City Council and transport authorities, the program was re-launched in May with Redflex camera systems.
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AUSTRALIAN CONTRACTS

Redflex has been delivenng significant successes in Australia with the Redflex tearn focused on delivering the best systems and the
best services to our customers.

South Australia

In South Australia, the red-light camera program continues to grow due to the excellent performance of Redflex camera systems.
Redflex was also awarded the contract to supply mobile radar speed cameras to South Australia Police.

New South Wales

In New South Wales, Redfiex continues 1o work closely with the Roads and Traffic Authority delivering speed camera systems and bus
lane enforcement systems throughout the State. In northern New South Wales Redflex delivered the Bordercam system to enforce
the regulations regarding transport of livestock across the border with Queensiand.

Victoria

In Victoria, Redflex is working closely with the Victorian Government on trials of a number of innovative technologies for the
enforcement of raitway crossings. Accidents at railway crossings are a significant safety issue, for road users and railway
passengers. The red light camera program is operating well, as is the speed enforcement program throughout the State. Redflex’s
world-leading Point-to-Point speed enforcement system operating on the Hume freeway continues to be a flagship system for
innovative Australian technology.

Northern Territory

In the Northern Territory, the enforcement camera program is operating extremely well, with the first Redflex red light camera
infringement notice issued on the first of February this year. Additionally, Redflex delivered mobile laser camera systems for use by
the Northern Territory Police.

Western Australia

The Image and Infringement Processing System used by Western Australia Police was upgraded throughout the year with the
addition of significant back-office automation functions and support for digital enforcement cameras.

SETTLEMENT OF THE ITP LITIGATION

Agreement has been reached with the investment partners of the Interactive Telephony transaction to setile the outstanding litigation
with them, by an all-inclusive payment of $3.8 million.

The Interactive Telephony transaction has been reported in Redflex's annual accounts since 2000 and has been noted as a
contingent liability since 2004.

The Interactive Telephony partnership was a structured financing transaction, entered into in June 2000, for the purpose of providing
commercialisation funding for the Visible Voice subsidiary of Redflex. Visible Voice received $2.6 million in funding and the
transaction was expected to give rise to certain tax deductions for the partners on their investment.

Redflex divested the Visible Voice subsidiary in May 2002.

Subsequently, the anticipated tax deductions were disallowed by the Australian Tax Office and the partners issued proceedings
against Redflex for approximately $5.2 million plus accrued interest and costs. The basis of their claim was that an Exit Price of §5.2
rmillion was payable on the wind-up of the transaction. Redflex, on its interpretation of the Fransaction documents, maintained that the
Exit Price was $28,263.

This settlement constitutes a significant concession, by both Redflex and the partners relative to their initial positions, in recognition
that there was risk as to the outcome of the fitigation and that there would be significant additional cost, inconvenience, and
uncertainty in proceeding to trial. The directors believe the settlement is reascnable in the circumstances.

Although this concludes direct action with the Interactive Telephony Parinership, Redflex will continue its action against other parties
that advised on the transaction, with a view to recovery of the settternent amount.

Because the settiement has arisen prior to release of the final annual accounts, it is recorded as a liability in the financial year 2008
aceounts and this results in a reduction of pre-tax profit of $3.8 million from discontinued operations and a reduction of after tax profit
of $2.66 milfion from discontinued operations. This is a one-off resolution of a historical fransaction and has ne impact on ongoing
profitabiity.
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RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

Redflex continues to invest in Research and Development, in both the USA and Australia. The R&D teams work together to devetop
and enhance products for global markets.

The R&D program continues to enhance Redflex's intellectual property portfolio, with significant advances in non-intrusive and in-
ground vehicle detection technologies.

A highlight of the year was the approval of the Redflex mobile radar camera system by the Nederland’s Meetinstituut (NMi). This is a
precursor to approvals in countries throughout the European market.

Group investment in R&D for the financial year was 3.5% of revenue.

OUTLOOK FOR 2009 FINANCIAL YEAR

We are looking forward to yet another record year in FY2009. Due to some step increases in cost base in the first half of FY 2009,
primarily associated with the premises move and restructuring sales and marketing to more aggressively pursue speed enforcement
opportunities, we expect the second half of FY 2009 to give rise to a substantially stronger result than the first hali.

We expect to see the growth in the USA market continue. As the clear leader in that potential multi-biflion dollar market which is
less than 10% penetrated at this stage, the opportunities tor growth are enormous, and Redflex is well positioned and equipped to
capitalise on the continued expansion of the market. .

We have committed work under the large number of contracts signed in FY 2008 to underpin our growth in FY 2009,

The inroads into the speed market have been significant over the past year and we expect that market to develop further, and have
consequently organised for, and invested in, the development of that market.

The strong support from our banks in Ausiralia and the USA with the recently negotiated US$50 million facility gives us financial
strength and flexibility to pursue emerging opportunities.

We will continue to invest in Research and Development in both Australia and the USA to position our technologies and processes at
the leading edge of the industry.

Qutside of the USA, while sale of products and associated support senvices has been and continues to be the dominant business
model, we are starting to see the emergence of early opportunities for full cutsourced service offerings, and have positioned to
capitalise on those opportunities as they mature.

AMERICAN DEPOSITARY RECEIPTS

The ADR program, which has been in operation since April 2005, provides a vehicle for USA-based investors to aquire a Redflex
security that is traded in the USA. ADRs trade as RFLXY on the Over The Counter (OTC) market and each ADR corresponds to 8
Redflex ordinary shares. A refatively smat number of ADRs has been issued by the Bank of New York; however, as most institutional
investors in the USA are free to invest directly in the Australian market, the number of ADRs on issue is not representative of
investment interest from the USA.

THANKS ‘

| take this opportunity to thank the people and organisations who have contributed to Redflex’s success. Firstly to all Redflex

staft without whose commitment the company could not have achieved what it has, and also a thankyou to Redflex’s customers,
suppliers, financiers, advisers, and shareholders, and to my lellow board mermbers for their continuing energy and dedication. We
look forward to delivering enhanced shareholder returns info the future.

yom

Graham Davie
Chief Executive Officer

30 September 2008
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT




DIRECTORS

Details of the company’s directors in office during the financial year and until the date of this report are as follows.
Directors were in office for the entire period unless otherwise stated.

CHRISTOPHER COOPER
LLB. BCom

Non-executive Chairman

Mr Cooper practiced as a barrister
and solicitor between 1977 and 2008.
He has been involved in commercial
real estate development, and
investment management as well as
being an owner and operator of aged
care health facilities from 1985 10
2001. Mr Cooper is also a principal
and agent manager for significant
share investment portfolios and a
director and manager of numerous
private investment companies and
trusts. During the last three vears Mr
Cooper has not been a director of
any other listed public companies.

ROBIN DEBERNARDI

Non-executive director

Mr Cebernardi is a prominent
businessman who has had significant
success in a diverse range of
businesses. His achievements
include the creation of a product
range within the harticultural industry,
which continues to boast household
name recognition decades later.

Mr Debernardi has enjoyed further
successes in the arena of commercial
and rural property development in
Victoria and Queensland. He brings
substantial experience in assisting
companies involved in high growih
phases of their development, and
currently carries the role of Chairman
of the Redflex Remuneration
Cammittee, a key role in the future
development of the company. During
the last three years Mr Debernardi
has not been a director of any other
listed public companies.
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PETER LEWINSKY
B Ec, MBA, FCA, SF Fin

Non-executive director

Mr Lewinsky has conducted a private
investment banking and corporate
advisory practice since 1991 following
12 years investment banking and
stockbroking experience both in
Austratia and internationally. He has
undertaken a range of corporate
finance transactions and managed

a number of major projects for the
boards and shareholders of public,
private and government organisations
drawing on his experience in
chartered accountancy, investment
banking, stockbroking and private
practice.

Over the last 14 years Mr Lewinsky
has held a number of board and
audit committee appointments for
public listed, private and government
organisations. He is curently

Chair of the Audit Committee of the
Victorian Government's Departiment
of Primary industries. Since 2006 Mr
Lewinsky has been a non-executive
director and Chair of the Audit
Committee of Tower Australia Group
Limited. During the last three years
Mr Lewinsky has not been a director
of any other listed public company.



GRAHAM DAVIE
BSc, Grad Dip Mil Ay

Chief Executive Officer

Mr Davie has been the Chiet
Executive Cfficer of the

Redflex Group since 2002 and
previously held the position

of Managing Director of the
Redflex Communications

business since 1993. He has

had ten years experience wilh

the RAAF in engineering design
and development, maintenance
engineering, software development
and support, specification of major
systems, and project management.

His expertise also includes airborne
avionics, flight simulation, avionics
automatic test equipment, air

traffic control communications and
control systems, airport information
display systems, and development
of graphics software and system
support. During the last three years
Mr Davie has not been a director of
any other listed public companies.

KAREN FINLEY

Chief Executive Officer, Redflex
Traffic Systems Inc

Ms Karen Finley is President and
CEO of Redflex Traffic Systems Inc in
Phoenix, Arizona. She was appointed
to that position in 2005 having started
with Redflex as director of operations
in 1998 when the company had

only three USA contracts. She
successiully ushered the business
through enormous expansion during
which it has grown to over 300
employees and increased revenue
by 20 fold, and she has an extensive
knowledge of the business, its
competitors and the markets in which
it operates.

Ms Finley was born in Columbus,
Ohig, and spent mest of her youth

in Colorado. Before joining Redflex,
Ms Finley was director of corporate
services for Scottsdale Insurance
Company. Ms Finley eamed her
bachelor’s degree in business
management from the University

of Phoenix and also attended the
Center for Creative Leadership in San
Diego. Ms Finley lives in Cave Creek
Arizona, and is currently pursuing her
Masters in Finance. During the last
three years Ms Finley has not been

a director of any other listed public
companies.

ROGER SAWLEY
B ENG (Mach), M eng {mech)

Non-Executive Director

Wr Roger Sawley was bom and
educated in Australia and now
resides on the West Coast, USA. He
moved t¢ the USA in 1966 10 join the
intemationally recognised consulting,
research and developrment firm

of Bolt Beranek and Newman Inc
(BBN), where he obtained and
managed government and corporaie
contracts and specialised in the field
of noise and vibration control. He
then managed the New York office
of BBN. Atfter feaving BBN he led
the successful turnaround of two
manuiacturing companies before
moving into the arena of capital
markets.

Mr Saw!ey has accumulated broad-
ranging experience and networks

in business management, capital
markets and enginegring. He has
held senior positions for relationships
with major institutional clients for
such firms as A G Edwards & Sons
inc, CIBC Oppenheimer & Co Ing and
Jefferies and Company Inc, where
he managed the firm's relationships
with its many Australian clients, Mr
Sawley currently consuits to private
companies in the raising of capital.
During the last three years Mr Sawley
has not been a director of any other
listed public companies.
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN THE SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY

At the date of this report, directors’ interests in the share capital of Redflex Moldings Limited were:

Realevant Interest Number of Performance Number of Options

over Rights over {RDFAS) over

Ordinary Shares Ordinary Shares Ordinary Sharas

Christopher Cocper 1,142,917 0 0
Robin Oebernardi 2,816,666 0 0
Peter Lewinsky 45,298 0 0
Graham Davie 1,459,206 203,252 0
Karen Finley 193,582 244,923 0
Roger Sawley 24,000 0 0

COMPANY SECRETARY - MARILYN STEPHENS

Ms Stephens has been the Company Secretary of Redflex Holdings Limited since it listed on the ASX in February 1997. Prior to that Ms
Stephens was the Company Secretary and Administration Manager to various companies within the Redflex Group for a period of 9 years.

DIVIDENDS
Directors have decided that it is appropriate to declare a fully franked dividend of 4.5 cents per share (2007: 3.5 cents}.

The company operates a Dividend Reinvestment Plan that was announced to the market in February 2007.

UNRECOGNISED AMOUNTS

Cents $'000
Final dividends recommencied on ordinary shares 4.5 4,062
Final dividends for FY 2007 shown as recommended in the 2007 financial report. 3.5 3,174
These amounts were not recognised &s a liability in FY 2007 but brought to account
in FY 2008
PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities during the financial year of entities within the consolidated entity were:

1. Red light and speed photo enforcement systems and back office processing services for cities and other municipalities within the
USA by Redflex Traffic Systems Inc, and

2. Conlinuing development and commercialisation of traffic image processing software and associated traffic violation management
systems and hardware by Redflex Traffic Systems Pty Ltd.

OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

GROUP OVERVIEW

Redflex Holdings Limited has been in business since 1995 and was listed on the Australian Secwiiies Exchange (ASX) in February 1997.
The Group's total business focus is on traffic photo enforcement for public safety.

Over the last several years, the business has been highly successful with Redflex enjoying market leadership in the North American market
from a Build Own Qperate and Maintain business model (BOOM). The digital Traffic camera photo enforcement business is capital
intensive and delivers recurring revenues from its programs in the USA,

Within Australia, the company also operates a digital Traffic camera photo enforcement business that derives its revenue from the supply to
world markets of camera and back office products and services.
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OPERATING RESULTS FOR THE YEAR
Net profit from continuing operations is $10.6 million (2007: $7.3 million) representing a 44.4% increase from last year (see the table below).

The company's revenue from continuing operations was $88.2 million which was 26% up on the previous financial year (2007: $70.0 million).

The increase in revenue was predominantly dus to an increase in the number of revenue generating camera installations within our USA

Build Own Operate and Maintain business.

The operating profit after income tax of the consclidated entity from continuing operations for the year ended 30 June 2008 was $10,596,000

(2007: $7,336,000).

The Traffic business achieved a pre-tax operating profit of $17.7 million (excluding head office charges), up 27.3% from $13.8 miltion in the

previous financial year.

The cash generation from this business unit is evidenced by a 20% increase in EBITDA up from $28.8 million to $34.7 million {excluding

head office charges}.

The operating profit of Redflex Holdings Limited for the year ended 30 June 2008 after income tax was $6,327,000 (2007: Loss $721,000).

Pro forma results of continuing operations, excluding the effect of non-recurring impairment charge and write-offs attributable
to decommissioned camera systems within the USA are reconciled as follows:

Net Profit after tax

2008 2007 Change
$°000 $°000 %
Net profit from tolal operations before assel write-downs and impairment loss 7.936 4,058 95.6
Net (profit) loss from discontinued operation 2,660 4,262 (37.6)
Less Impairment loss ¢ (984)
Net profit from continuing activities 10,596 7,336 44.4
Summearised operating resulis
2008 2007
Business Segments $'000 $'000
Revenue from USA sale of goods and services 7,398 3,089
Revenue from Australian sale of goods and services 12,979 13,461
Revenue from Intemational sale of goods and services 4,087 0
Revenue from fee for service contracts 63,638 53,134
Redflex Holdings Limited 0 0
Finance revenue 123 329
Discontinued operation 0 3,498
Consalidated entity revenue for the year 88,225 73,511
Segment revenue from continuing operations:
First haif Second half 2008 2007 Change
§'000 3’000 3000 $'000 %
USA Traffic business 34,017 37,019 71,036 56,223 26.3
Australian/international Trafiic business 8,595 8,537 17,132 13,461 27.3
Head Office interest income 54 3 57 329 (82.7)
42,666 45,559 88,225 70,013 26.0
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Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA):

First half Sacond half 2008 2007 Change
$'000 £'000 $'000 §'000 %
EBITDA from Trattic business 16,223 18,542 34,765 28,892 20.3
Head Office costs (1,358) (1,098) (2,458) (3,066} (20.0)
EBITDA from continuing operations 14,865 17,444 32.309 25,826 25.1
Net profit from continuing operations:

First half Second half 2008 2007 Change
Pre-tax Profit $°000 $'000 $000 $'000 %
Net profit from Traffic business 8,237 9,504 17,741 13,879 27.8
Head Office costs (1,366} (1,106) (2,472 (3,000 (20.0)
Net profit before tax from continuing 6,871 8,398 15,269 10,789 a1.5

operations

Net profit after tax reconciliation to net profit after tax from continuing operations

First hatf Second half 2008 2007 Change
After tax profit $'000 $'000 5000 $'000 %
Net profit from continuing activities 4,720 5,876 10,596 7,338 44.5%
Net profit from Communications business 0 0 0 (4,262)
Net profit (loss) from settlement of 1TP transaction (2.660) {2.660) 0
Net profit after tax from lotal operations 4,720 3,216 7,936 3,074 158.2

REDFLEX TRAFFIC SYSTEMS USA BUSINESS

Redflex Traffic Sysiems Inc, based in Phoenix Arizona, is the largest provider of digital red light photo enforcement services in the USA, and
operates within the targe and diverse USA market via a Build Own Operate and Maintain (BOOM) business model.

The number of USA cities under contract since 30 June 2007 increased from 146 to 203 as at 30 June 2008, spread across 20 states,
including 4 new States. Installed photo enforcement syslems increased from B77 to 1,267 at year end.

Recurting revenue increased 37% to US$57.2 million {AU$63.6 million equivatent) from US$41.9 million (AU$53.1 million equivalent) in 2007,
arising predominantly from a 44% increase in the installed camera base.

REDFLEX TRAFFIC SYSTEMS PTY LTD TRAFFIC BUSINESS - (AUSTRALIA/INTERNATIONAL)

In Australia, Redflex is the market leader for photo enforcement products and the revenue generated from sales of camera systems to third
party customers increased 27% to $17.1 million from $13.5 million in the prior year. The company manufactured over 600 camera heads for
use in the USA Traffic Build Own Operate and Maintain {(BOOM) business.

Highlights for the year:

«  Arecord financial year's performance with increased revenue and profit;
« Largest ever contract for camera systems in Qatar in the Middle East;

= First outsourced back office in Northem Territory;

+ Continued focus on research and development;

* Revenue growth of 27% whilst the workiorce grew by only 8%.
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Qur development program continues to target development of products to maintain and extend cur competitive position. The number of
systemns and sofiware supported under maintenance contracts in Australia has grown and now represents a significant part of our Australian

revenue base.

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Management and the board monitor the Group's overall performance, from its implementation of the mission statement and strategic plan
through to the performance of the Group against aperating plans and financial budgets.

The board, together with management, has identifiect key performance indicators (KPIs) that are used to monitor performance. Key
management personnel monitor KPIs on a regular basis. Directors receive the KPls for review prior 1o each monthly board meeting allowing

all directors to actively monitor the Group's performance.

DIVESTMENT OF REDFLEX COMMUNICATIONS SYSTEMS

The Communications business was divested 1o LongReach Group in December 2006. The division appears in the FY 2007 accounts as a

discontinued operation. The division has no impact on the accounts of the Group in FY 2008 or any subsequent year.

SETTLEMENT OF LITIGATION

The interactive Telephony Partnership was a structured financing transaction that was entered into in June 2000 for the purpose of providing
commercialisation funding for the Visible Voice subsidiary of Redflex. Visible Voice received $2.6 million in funding, and the transaction was

expected 1o give rise to certain tax deductions for the partners on their investment.

Subsequently the anticipated tax deductions were disallowed by the Australian Taxation Office and the partners issued proceedings against

Redflex for approximately $5.2 million plus accrued interest and costs.

Subsequent to year end but prior to finalizing this report, an agreermient was reached with the investment partners of the Interactive
Telephone transaction to settle the outstanding litigation with them, by an alkinclusive payment of $3.8 million. The effect of this settlement

agreement has been recorded as a loss on discontinued cperations.

Because the setllement amount has now been reliably determined, in the year ended 30 June 2008 it has been recorded as a current
liability for $3.8 million which results in a reduction of pre-tax profit of $3.8 million and a reduction of after-tax profit of $2.66 million.

SHAREHOLDER RETURNS

The Group is pleased to report that the operating results show substantial improvement over the prior year. The significant improvement in

most financial measures for the current year shows the following:

2008 2007 2006
Basic earning per share — continuing operations (cents) 11.79 B.25 47
Net Tangible Asset backing per share (cents) 62.6 66.2 75.6
Return on assets (%) — continuing operations B.4 6.8 3.6
Return on equity (%) — continuing operations 15.6 111 12.0
Interest bearing debt/equity ratio (%) — continuing operations 50.0 329 311
Available franking credits ($'000) 7.808 4,749 2,358

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

The consolidated cash flow statement ilfustrates that there was an increase in cash and cash equivalents in the year ended 30 June 2008 of
$1.91 million (2007: decrease of $550,000). The increment in cash fiow compared to the prior year is caused by a number of factors.

Operating activities generated $25.0 million of net cash in-flows. The increase in comparison to 30 June 2007 related 1o the profitable

operating resuft for both the USA and Australian/International Traffic businesses, offset by up-front funding of the new contract with the City

of Chicago.

This net increase in the cash flow from operating activities is offset by a net increase in the cash used for investing activities of $38.2 million,
which was mainly attributable 1o the successful installation of 419 camera systems under the Build Own Cperate and Maintain business in

the USA Traffic division.

There was aisc an increase in cash flow from financing activities during the year arising from an extension 1o our bank borrowings.
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ASSET AND CAPITAL STRUCTURE

Continuing Operations

2008 2007

$'000 $'000
Interest bearing borowings (33,978) (21,725)
Cash and short term deposits 12,090 10,179
Net debt (21,888} {11,546)
Total equity 65,384 66,117
Total capital employed 43,496 54,571
Gearing (%) 33.5% 17.5%

The Group's level of gearing is within the limits considered acceptabie by the board.

Issue of Shares

Shares issued during the year arose from the conversion of oplions (295,000 shares) and the vesting of performance rights (347,288
shares) pertaining o executive remuneration. Details are shown within the Remuneration Report.

The company also issued 642,978 shares at a price of $2.6851 in respect of those shareholders who elected to subscribe to the Dividend
Renvestment Plan.

Issue of Options

The company did not issue any options during the year ended 30 June 2008 (2007: Nil). As at the date of this report there were 1,013,000
unissued shares under options. Refer to Note 29 for further details.

Issue of Performance Rights

Obligations for future share-based payments arise in selation io Performance Rights granted during the year as remuneration entitiemenis
for executives, Details are shown within the Remuneration Report.

PROFILE OF DEBTS

The level of Group borrowings has increased over the last year. The Group’s only major funding facility exists within the USA Traffic division.
The tacility is a US$50 miltion (year end equivalent AU$52.0 million)} revolving line of credit established to permit the Installation of capital
intensive camera systems into the USA. The facility is required to fund that part of the capital expenditure that cannot yet be covered by the
cash generated from operating activities within that business unit. The facility does not have to be repaid until June 2011. It is expecied
that the term of this facility will be extended prior to that time.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

Under the terms of maost contracts in the USA Traffic division the company is required to fund all the equipment and installation costs for
camera systems installed in the USA. With 390 new camera systems installed during the year, capital expenditure of $35.5 milion was
incurred. This is 15% higher than that incurred in the prior year when 210 new camera systems were installed. This was also adversely
affected by a 13% movement in the AU$/USS exchange rate between the opening and closing exchange rates,

The USA Traffic division owns the capital assets located at intersections and derives recurring revenue streams by way of a fixed or variable
moenthty rental based on red light and speed ticket infringements issued or paid, or a monthly fixed fee.

TREASURY POLICY

The Group's treasury function, coordinated by Redftex Holdings Limited, is responsible for managing cumency risks and finance facilities, It
operates within policies set by the board which is responsible for ensuring management’s actions are in line with Group policy.

Transaction hedging is undertaken through the use of foreign exchange contracts and hedges are used where significant exposures exist.
Translation effects are not hedged.

The interest rate exposures remain unhedged in line with Group policy.
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RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group takes a proactive approach to risk management. Through the Audit and Risk Management Commitiee the board is responsible
for ensuring that risks, and also opportunities, are identified on a timely basis and that activities are aligned with objectives.

The board regularly monitors the operational and financial perfarmance of the company and the consolidated entity against budget and
other key performance measures. The board also reviews and receives advice on areas of operational and financial risks. Appropriate risk
management strategies are developed to mitigate all the significant identified risks of the business.

The board has a number of mechanisms in place to ensure that management's objectives and activities are aligned with the risks identified
by the board including implementation of board approved operating plans and budgets and hoard monitoring of progress against these
budgets, including the establishment and monitoring of Key Performance Indicators (KPls) of both a financial and non-financial nature.

SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN THE STATE OF AFFAIRS

Total equity decreased from $66.1 million to $65.4 million, a decrease of $0.7 million. The movement was largely due to the retention of after
tax profits net of the fully franked dividend paid during the year along with a highly successful Dividend Reinvestment Plan which achieved a
55% reinvestment rate offset by amounts taken to the Foreign Currency Translation Reserve arising from conversion of the USA entity in AU$
agalnst a strengthened Australian dollar.

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE DATE

There were no after balance date significant events not otherwise dealt with in this report.

LIKELY DEVELOPMENTS AND EXPECTED RESULTS

Significant growth in the next financial year is expected within the Traffic division. The company has set internal installation rates for
cameras in the USA which can be met largely from existing contracts and selections. This growth will be funded from cash generated from
operations together with appropriate debt funding.

ENVIRONMENTAL REGULATION AND PERFORMANCE

The directors are not aware of any breaches of ervironmental legislation affecting the industry in which the Group operates.

SHARE OPTIONS

UNISSUED SHARES

At the date of this report, there were 1,013,000 unissued ordinary shares under options (2007: 1,488,000} and 1,686,856 performance rights
(2007: 1,545,659). 17,770 options wete forfeited between 30 June 2008 and the date of this report.

QOption holders do not have any right, by virue of the option, to participate in any share issue of the company.

SHARES ISSUED AS A RESULT OF THE EXERCISE OF OPTIONS

During the financial year, employees and executives have exercised options to acquire 295,000 fully paid ordinary shares in Redflex
Holdings Limited at a weighted average exercise price of $0.649 per share.

INDEMNIFICATION AND INSURANCE OF DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS

The company has agreed to indemnify the current direciors of the company: Christopher Cooper, Robin Debernardi, Peter Lewinsky,
Graham Davie, Karen Finley and Roger Sawley, and the Company Secretary and all executive officers of any related body corporate, against
any liability thal may arise from their positions within the company.

Redflex Holdings Limited, being the ultimate parent company, paid premiums in respect of directors' and officers’ liability insurance during
the financial year. The contract of insurance does not include details of premiums paid in respect of individual officers of the company and
prohibits disclosure of the amount of the premium paid.

The company has not, during or since the end of the financial year, indemnified or agreed to indemnify any auditor of the company or any
related entity against a liability that rmay arise in their capacity as an auditor.
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DIRECTORS' MEETINGS

Directors' meetings held and attended during the year ended 30 June 2008, and up to the date of this repon were:

Board Audlit and Risk Rernuneration
Management Committee
Committee

Number of meetings held 20 5 5
Number of meetings attended

Graham Davie 20 5 5
Robin Debernardi 20 5 5
Christopher Cooper 20 5 5
Peter Lewinsky 20 5 5
Karen Finley 20 5

Roger Sawley 20 5

COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP

At the date of this report the company has an Audit and Risk Management Committee, a Remuneration Committee, and a Nomination
Committee which comprises the full board. Committee members during the year were:

Audit and Risk Management Remuneration Nomination
Peter Lewinsky (Chairman) Robin Debernardi (Chairman)  Full board
Christopher Cooper Christopher Cooper

Robin Debernardi Graham Davie

Peter Lewinsky

ROUNDING

The amounts contained in this report and in the financial report have been rounded fo the nearest $1,000 (where rounding is applicable}
under the option available to the company under ASIC Class Order 98/100.

AUDITOR INDEPENDENCE

The directors received the following declaration from the auditor of Redftex Holdings Limited. This auditor's declaration forms part of the
Directors’ Report.
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Auditor's Independence Declaration to the Directors of Redflex Holdings
Limited

In relation to our audit of the financial repart of Redflex Holdings Limited for the financial year ended 30 June
2008, to the best of my knowledge and belief, there have been no contraventions of the auditor independence
reguirements of the Corporations Act 2001 or any applicable code of professional conduct.

Eouet ¢ ﬁ“’ff

Ernst & Young

D

David Petersen
Partner
30 September 2008

Liability limited by a scheme approved
under Professional Standards Legisiation
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NON AUDIT SERVICES

The following non-audit senices were provided by the company's auditer, Emst & Young. The directors are salisfied that the provision of
non-audit services is compatible with the general standard of independence for auditors imposed by the Corporations Act 2001, The nature
and scope of each type of non-audit service provided means that auditor independence was not compromised.

Emnst and Young received or are due 1o receive the following amounts for the provision of non-audit services:

L3

Assurance related services 15,000
Taxation compliance services 5,000
20,000

REMUNERATION REPORT (AUDITED)

This report outlines the remuneration amangements for directors and executives of Redilex Holdings Limited and its subsidiary companies
in accordance with the requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 and its Regulations. For the purposes of this report Key Management
Personnel (KMP) of the Group are defined as those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and contralling the
major activities of the company and the Group, directly or indirectly, including any director (whether executive or otherwise) of the parent
company, and includes the five executives in the Group receiving the highest remuneration.

For the purposes of this report, the term 'executive’ encompasses the Chief Executive Officers, senior executives, general managers and
secrelaries of the parent and the Group’s companies:

Graham Davie Chief Executive Officer

Karen Finley Chief Executive Officer, Redflex Traffic Systems Inc
Aaron Rosenberg Vice President Sales, Redilex Traffic Systems Inc
Cristina Weekes Vice President Marketing, Redflex Traffic Systems In¢
Ricardo Fiusco General Manager, Redflex Traffic Systerns Pty Ltd
Ron Johnsaon Chief Financial Officer

Marilyn Stephens Company Secretary

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for determining and reviewing remuneration arrangements for the directors and executives
and assessing, on a pericdic basis, the appropriateness of the nature and amount of remuneration of executives by reference to relevant
employment market conditions, with the overall objective of ensuring maximurm stakeholder benefit from the retention of a high quality, high
performing Board and executive team.

The Remuneration Committee retains international consulting firm Mercers for advice on strategy and processes to ensure best practice,
and to benchmark remuneration arrangements against the industry and markets in which Redllex operates.

The Chief Executive Officer's remuneration is determined by the board.

REMUNERATION PHILOSOPHY

The performance of the company depends upon the quaiity of its directors and executives. To prosper, the compary must attract, motivate
and retain highty skilled directors and executives.

To this end, the company embodies the following principles in its remuneration framework:

+ Provide competitive rewards to altract high calibre executives;

+ Link executive rewards to shareholder value;

+ Have a significant portion of executive remuneration “at risk” dependent upon meeting pre-determined performance benchmarks; and,

+ Establish appropriately demanding performance hurdles in relation 1o variable remuneration.
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REMUNERATION STRUCTURE

In accordance with best practice corporate governance, the structure of non-executive director and senior manager remuneration is
separate and distinct.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REMUNERATION

OBJECTIVE

The board seeks to set aggregate remuneration at a lavel which provides the company with the ability to attract and retain directors of the
highest calibre, whilst incurring a cost which is acceptable to shareholders,

Non-executive directors are encouraged to hold shares in the company as it is considered good practice for directors to have a stake in the
company on which board they sit.

STRUCTURE

The Constitution and ASX Listing Rules specify that the aggregate remuneration of non-executive directors shall be determined from time

to time by a general meeting. The latest determination was at the Annual General Meeting held on 25 Novermnber 2005 when shareholders

approved an aggregate remuneration of $400,000 per year. .
N

The amount of aggregate remuneration sought to be approved by shareholders and the manner in which it is appartioned between
directors is reviewed annually. The board considers advice from external consultants as well as the fees paid to non-executive direciors of
comparable companies when undertaking the annual review process.

Each director receives a fixed fee for being a director inclusive of any fee payable for the additional fime commitment made by directors
who serve on one or more sub committees.

Non-executive directors do not participate in any incentive programs.

EXECUTIVE REMUNERATION

OBJECTIVE

The company aims 1o reward executives with a level and mix of remuneration commensurate with their position and responsibilities so as to:
* Reward individual and business unit performance against appropriate benchmarks;

« Algn the interests of executives with those of the shareholders; and

+ Ensure total remuneration is competitive by market standards.

STRUCTURE

In determining the level and make up cof executive remuneration, the Remuneration Committee engages an external cohsultant as needed to ’
provide independent advice.

The elements of execulive remuneration are:

» Fixed Remuneration - Base salary and superannuation benefits
* Variable remuneration - Short Term Incenrtive (STI)

« Variable remuneration - Long Term Incentive {LTI)

The proportion of fixed remuneration and variable remuneration is established for each senior executive by the Remuneration Committee as
set out in Table 1.

In the year ended 30 June 2008, the basis for executive remuneration was a combination of fixed remuneration, STls in the form of a cash
bonus, and LTIs in the form of the vesting of performance rights.
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FIXED REMUNERATION

Objective

Fixed Remuneration is reviewed annually by the Remuneration Committee. The process consists of a review of company-wide, business
unit and individual performance, relevant comparative remuneration in the market and, where appropriate, external advice on policies and
practices. As noled above, the Commitiee has access to external advice independent of management.

Structure

Execulives are given the opportunity 1o receive their fixed remuneration by way of a limited range of benefits such as superannuation and
pension plans and motor vehicles, to suit employee preferences, consistent with legal and market practices in each country in which we
operate. It is intended that the manner of payment chosen wil: be optimal for the recipient without creating undue cost to the company.

Fixed Remuneration for the Chief Executive Officer of Redflex Holdings Limited, the Chief Executive Officer of Redflex Traffic Systems Inc,
and the executives of Redflex Holdings Limited including the Company Secretary, is reviewed by the board each year. Fixed Remuneration
for direct reports to the tweo Chief Executive Officers is reviewed each year by them who report to the board with recommendations for the
follewing year.

VARIABLE REMUNERATION - SHORT TERM INCENTIVE (STI)

Objective
The obijective of the STl program is to link the achievement of the company’s operationat targets with the remuneration received by the

executive charged with meeting ihose targets. The potential STlis set at a level such as to provide sufficient incentive 1o the executive to
achieve the operational targets and such that the cost to the company is reasenable in the circumstances.

Structure

Actual STI payments granted to each executive will depend on the extent to which specific operating targets set at the beginning of the
financial year are met. The operational targets consist of a number of key performance indicators (KPls) covering both financial and nan-
financia! measures of performance. The non financial measures are evaluated against individually set performance objectives. Measures
such as contribution 1o net profit before tax, customer service, risk management, product management, and leadership/team contribution
are typically included. These measures were chosen as they represent the key drivers for the short term success of ihe business and
provide a framework for delivering long term value.

The Group has predetermined benchmarks that must be met in order te trigger payments under the STHPlan. On an annual basis, after
consideration of performance against KPls, an averall performance fating for the company and each individual business unit is approved
by the Remuneration Committee. Targets are set by a cascade process from the board through the executive group. The individual
performance of each execuiive is also rated and all three ratings are taken into account when determining the amount, if any, of the STI pool
that is allocated to each executive. The process usually occurs within threg months after the reporting date.

The aggregate of annual STI payments available for executives is subject to the approval of the Remuneration Committee. Payments made
are delivered as a cash bonus in the following reporting period.

ST bonus for 2007 and 2008 financial years

For the 2007 financial year, 100% of the $Ti cash bonus of $620,000 as previously accrued in the period vested to executives and was

paid in the 2008 year. There were o forfeitures. The Remuneration Committee will consider the STI payments for the 2008 financial year

in late Septernber 2008. The maximum STl cash bonus for the 2008 financial year is $926,000. Of this amount $567,777 or 83% of the
maximum STl payable has been accrued on the basis that it is probable that the executives will meet their respective KPIs for the period.
Any adjustmenis between the actual amounts 1o be paid as determined by the Remuneration Committee and the amounts accrued will be
adjusted in the 2009 financial year. The minimum amount of the STI cash bonus assuming that no executives meet their respective KPls for
the 2008 financial year is nil. There have been no alterations to the STI Plan.

Variable Remuneration - Long Term Incentive (LTI)

Objective

The objective of the LTI Plan is to reward executives and senior managers in a manner that aligns this element of rermuneration with the
creation of shareholder wealth. As such, LTI grants are made to executives who are able to influence the generation of shareholder wealth
and thus have a direct impact on the company's performance against the long term performance hurdle.

Structure

LTI grants are delivered in the form of Performance Rights in accord with the LTI Plan Rules. Performance Rights vest at the end of,
generally, 3 years subject to meeting performance hurdles, with no opporiunity to re-lest.
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Performance hurdle

In July 2006 Redflex established a Long Term Incentive Plan (LTIP) for executives. The LTIP was announced in July 2006 and the Rules for
Australian and United States executives are published on Redflex's Webh site,

The LTIP is based on grants of Performance Rights which vest into shares on a 1 for 1 basis at no cost {o the employee subject to
satisfaction of performance hurdles. Settiement of the Performance Righis can be made by issuance of ordinary shares.

The periormance measure is Redflex Holdings Limited's relative total shareholder return (TSR) performance compared with the TSR
performance of a comparator group consisting of companies in the S&P/ASX 300 at grant date over the same period. TSR is calculated as
the change in capital value ot Redilex Holdings Limited over a five-year period, plus dividends expressed as a percantage of the opening
capital value.

The performance period is generally expected to be three years, however, the initial offers were transitional arrangements with shorter
performance periods designed to provide a degree of continuity of long term incertives 10 execulives who previously participated in the
company's Employee Cption Plan.

The performance hurdle has a threshold minimum below which the Performance Rights will lapse. No Performance Rights will vest if
Redflex Holdings Limited's TSR performance is Jess than the TSR performance achieved by 50% of the companies in the comparator

group, and 50% will vest if this hurdle is reached. The maximum number of Performance Rights in a grant will vest if the company's TSR
performance is equal to or greater than the TSR periormance achieved by 75% of the companies in the comparator group. f the company’s
TSR performance is between the two thresholds the number of Performance Rights that vest is determined on a directly proportional basis.

Where a participant ceases employment prior to the vesting of the Performance Rights, the Performance Rights are forfeited unless
cessation of employment is due to termination initiated by the Company or death. The Company prohibits executives from entering into
arrangements to protect the value of unvested LTIs. This includes entering into contracts to hedge their exposure to shares granted as part
of their remuneration package.

Details of the number and value of Performance Rights granted, vested and lapsed during the year are shown in note 29,

COMPANY PERFORMANCE

The graph below shows the performance of the company over a six year period, as measured by the total shareholder return compared with
the S&P ASX 300 Index, both normalised 1¢ a value of 100 at 30 June 2003 so that percentage comparisons can be made.

Relative Performance over 6 years to June 30 2008.
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EMPLOYMENT CONTRACTS

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Redflex Holdings Limited Chief Executive Officer, Graham Davie, is employed under a current employment contract dated 14 December
2001. The contract does not have a specific termination date. The company may choose to comimence negofiation of & new empioyment
contract with Mr Davie at any time. Mr Davie's fixed remuneration for the 2008 financial year was $271,700.

Under the terms of the contract:

+  Mr Davie may resign from his position and thus terminate the contract by giving one month's written notice. The company may terminate
the contract by giving one month'’s written notice or paying one month's {ixed remuneration in lieu.

« The company may terminate the contract at any time without notice if serious misconduct has occurred. Where termination with cause
oceurs, Mr Davie is entitled to only that portion of remuneration which is fixed, and only up to the date of termination. On termination with
cause any unvested performance rights will immediately be forfeited.

«  Shorttermincentives of up to 30% of fixed remuneration are available based upon achievement of performance targets with a further 30%
avaitable for over-achievement of those largets.,

« Long term incentives for Mr Davie are shown below.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER, RTSI

The Redflex Traffic Systems Inc President and Chief Executive Officer, Karen Finley, is employed under a current employment contract that
commenced on 24 February 2006 and is for an indefinite term, Ms Finley's fixed remuneration for the 2008 financial year was the Australian
dollar equivalent of $299,815.

Under the terms of the contract:

« Either Ms Finley or the compary may terminate the employment relationship at any time, with or without cause and with or without
advance notice, with all accrued benefits at that pomt in time paid to Ms Finley. It the company terminates Ms Finley's contract
without cause the company will be required to pay three moenth's base salary. On resignation any unvested performance rights will be
forfeited.

+ The company may terminate the contract at any time without notice if serious misconduct has oceurred. Where termination with cause
occurs, Ms Finley is entitled to only that portion of remuneration which is fixed, and only up to the date of termination. On termination
with cause any unvested performance rights will immediately be forfeited.

+  Short term incentives of up to 30% of fixed remuneration are available based upon achievement of performance targets with a further
30% available for over achievement of those targets.

+ Long term incentives for Ms Finley are shown below.

OTHER EXECUTIVES

All executives have rolling employment contracts with varying terms and conditions but with all contracts provide for written nolice periods or
payment, based on the fixed component of the executive's remuneration, in lieu of the notice. Cn temination of employment any long term

incentives that are urwested will be forfelied. The company may terminate the contracts at any time withaut notice if serious miscanduct has
occurred. Where termination with cause occurs, the executive is entifled only to that portion of remuneration that is fixed, and only up to the

date of termination.

in the event of a change of control of the Group, the performance period end date will be brought forward to the date of the change of
control and awards will vest subject to performance over this shortened period.
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REMUNERATION OF KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL (INCLUDING THE 5 HIGHEST PAID EXECUTIVES}

TABLE 1.

REMUNERATION FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2008 (AUDITED)

Short Term  Post Employment Long Share based Total  Performance
Term Payments related
Salary & Other Bonus  Superannuation tong Petformance
Fees Service Rights
Leave
$ 3 g $ % § $ %
Non-executive
directors
Christopher Cooper 89,002 0 0 8,018 0 0 97,110 Q
Robin Debernardi 54,445 0 0 4,900 0 0 59,345 0
Peter Lewinsky 54,445 0 0 4,900 ¢ 0 59,345 0
Roger Sawley 59,345 0 0 0 0 0 59,345 0
257,327 0 0 17,818 0 0 275,145 0
Executive directors
Graham Davie 249,266 0 80,581 29,686 4,593 104,013 468,139 39
Karen Finley 299,815 6,091 62,802 0 0 125,725 494,433 38
549,081 6,091 143,383 29,686 4,583 229,738 962,572 39
Executives
Aaron Rosenberg 255,749 7,309 53,256 0 0 109,927 426,241 38
Cristina Weekes 207,779 7.309 29,308 0 0 34,449 278,845 23
Ricardo Fiusco 184,568 0 39,781 20,193 3,401 51,349 299,292 30
Ron Johnson 179,472 0 38,679 19,634 3307 49,926 291,018 30
Marilyn Stephens 108,103 0 23,637 11,857 1,983 30,389 175,969 31
935,671 14,618 184,661 51,684 8,681 276,040 1,471,365 31
1,742,079 20,709 328,044 99,188 13,284 505,778 2,709,082 31
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REMUNERATION FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2007 (AUDITED)

Short Term Post Empioyment Long Term  Shere-based Total Performance
Salaryand Other  Bonus  Superannuation Long Payments related
Fees Service
Leave
$ $ $ $ 3 $ 5 %
Non-gxecutive
directors
Christopher Cocper 85,046 0 0 7.654 0 0 92,700 4]
Robin Debernardi 51,973 0 0 4,678 0 0 56,651 0
, Peter Lewinsky 51973 o 0 4,678 0 0 56,651 0
; Roger Sawley 22471 0 o 0 0 ] 22,471 0
Bruce Higgins 15,201 0 0 1,376 0 0 16,667 0
j 226,754 0 0 18,386 0 0 245,140 0
. Executive directors
Graham Davie 236,238 0 46,875 21,261 4,333 144,721 453,428 42
Karen Finley 308,524 5,690 45,801 0 0 131,651 491,666 36
i 544,762 5,690 92,676 21,261 4,333 276,372 945,094 39
Executives
Aarcn Rosenberg 269,084 6,724 63,613 0 o] 117,413 456,834 40
Ricardo Fiusco 174,939 0 37,026 15,745 3,209 53,673 284,592 32
Ran Johnsen 170,002 0 33,750 15,308 3,120 52,186 274,456 31
Marilyn Stephens 103,945 0 10,000 9,355 1,907 31,891 157,098 27
718,060 6,724 144,389 40,408 8,236 255,163 1,172,980 34
1,489,576 12,414 237,065 80,055 12,569 531,535 2,363,214 33

Ms Finley and Mr Sawley were appointed to the Board on 9 February 2007.
Mr Higgins' appointment ceased on 30 November 2006.

S

38 REDFLEX ANNVAL REPORT 2008



COMPENSATION LONG TERM INCENTIVES GRANTED DURING THE YEAR

Consolidated

During the year ended 30 June 2008 LTis Granted Grant Date Fair Value per LTI at Performance
Grant Date Period
Number 3

Executive Directors

Graham Davie 54,083 1 October 2007 1.62 3 years

Karen Finfey 60,745 1 October 2007 1.62 3 years

Executives

Aaron Rosenberg 51,808 1 October 2007 1.62 3 years

Cristina Weekes 27,979 1 October 2007 1.62 3 years

Ricardo Fiusco 26,700 1 October 2007 1.62 3 years

Ron Johnson 25,960 1 October 2007 1.62 3 years

Marilyn Stephens 15,565 1 October 2007 1.62 3 years

Total 262,941

During the year ended 30 June 2007 LTis Granted Grant Date Fair Value per LTI at Performance

Grant Date Period
Number $

Executive Directors

Graham Davie 74,581 1 July 2006 0.81 15 months
74,581 1 July 2006 0.85 27 months
74,588 1 October 2006 1.55 3 years

Karen Finley 88,297 1 July 2006 0.81 15 months
88,297 1 July 2006 0.95 27 months
95,881 1 QOctober 2006 1.55 3 years

Executives

Aaron Rosenberg 80,270 1 July 2006 0.81 15 months
80,270 1 July 2006 0.95 27 months
81,307 1 October 2006 1,55 3 years

Ricardo Fiusco 36,819 1 July 2006 0.81 15 montns
36,818 1 July 2006 0.95 27 months
36,822 1 Qctober 2006 1.55 3 years

Ron Johnson 35,799 1 July 2006 0.81 15 months
35,799 1 July 2006 0.95 27 months
35802 1 October 2006 1.55 3 years

Marilyn Stephens 21,877 1 July 2006 0.81 15 months
21,877 t July 2006 0.95 27 months
21,879 1 QOctober 2006 1.55 3 years

Total 1,021,565
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COMPENSATION LONG TERM INCENTIVES GRANTED AND VESTED DURING THE YEAR

During the year ended 30 June 2008 Value of LTis Value of LTis vested Value of LTis
granted granted and vested
§ $ 3
Directors
Graham Davie 87,614 59,904 147,518
Christopher Cooper 0 0 ]
Robin Debernardi 0 0 0
Peter Lewinsky 0 0 ]
Karen Finley 98,406 70,920 169,326
Roger Sawley 0 0 0
Executives
Aaron Rosenberg 84,093 64,473 148,566
Cristina Weekes 45,326 ] 45,326
Ricardo Fiusco 43,254 29,573 72,827
Ron Johnson 42,055 28,753 70,808
Marilyn Stephens 25,215 17,571 42,786
During the year ended 30 June 2007 Value of LTis Value of LTIs vested Value of LTis
granted granted and vestaed
3 $ 3
Directors
Graham Davie 246,874 o 246,874
Christopher Cooper 0 0 0
Robin Debernardi 0 0 0
Peter Lewinsky 0 0 0
Karen Finley 304,018 0 304,018
Roger Sawley 0 0 0
Executives
Aaron Rosenberg 267.301% 0 267,301
Ron Johnson 118,499 0 118,499
Ricarde Fiusco 121,876 0 121,876
Marilyn Stephens 72,416 0 72,416
During the year ended 30 June 2007 Shares issued issue Date  Fair Value at grant
date
Number 3
Director
Graham Davie 68,249 1 January 2007 36,000
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At the Annual General Meetings in 2001 and 2005, shareholders approved participation by Graham Davie, the Chief Executive Officer,

in the Redflex Executive Share Plan (ESP) that commenced on 1 January 2002, Under the Plan Mr Davie was entitled to be issued with
Redilex shares to the value of 40% of his total fixed remuneration, with the number of shares in an annual offer determined according to the
compound growth in the price of shares over the three-year test periods ending 31 December 2004, 2005 and 2006. All of the shares were
to be granted if the compound growth in the share price exceeded the target level of performance by at least 25%. Under the ESF, shares
were issued to Mr Davie as follows: 68,249 in the year ended 30 June 2007, 130,929 in the year ended 30 June 2006, and 77,615 in the year
ended 30 June 2005.

In the year ended 30 June 2008 no issues were made under the ESP as it was terminated when the LTI Plan was introduced. Under the LTI
Plan Mr Davie is entitled to be issued with Performance Rights to the value of 60% of his total fixed remuneration.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the directors.

Uacr .

Graham Davie

Director
30 September 2008

REDFLEX - MAKING A SAFER WORLD ()]



This page intenticnally left blank




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE



The board of directors of Redflex Holdings Limited is responsible for the corporate governance of the Group. The board guides and
monitors the business and affairs of Redflex Holdings Limited on behalf of the shareholders by whom they are elected and to whom they are
accountable. The table below summarises the company's compliance with Council's recommendations:

Recommendation Complies Reference
Yos / No
1.1 | Establish the functions reserved to the Board and those delegated to management and disclose Yes
those functions.
1.2 |Disclose the process for evaluation the performance of senior executives Yes
2.1 [A majority of the Board shouid be independent directors. Yes
2.2 | The chair should be an independent director. Yes
2.3 | The roles of chairperson and chief executive officer shouid not be exercised by the same individual. Yes
2.4 | The Board should establish a nomination committee Yes
2.5 }Disclose the process for evaluating the performance of the board, its committees and individual Yes
directors.
3.1 |Establish a code of conduct to guide the directors, the chief executive officer, the chief financial Yes Web site

officer, and any other key executives as to:
+  the practices necessary to maintain confidence in the Company’s integrity;

the practices necessary to take into account their legal obligations and the reasonable
expectations of their stakeholders;

the responsibility and accountability of individuals for reporting and investigating reports
of unethical practices.

3.2 |Estabiish a policy conceming trading in company securities by directors, senior executives and Yes Web site
employees, and disclose the policy or a summary of that policy..

4.1 | The board should establish an audit committee Yes
4.2 | The audit committee should be structured so that it: Yes
. consists only of non-executive directors;

consists of a majority of independent directors;
is chaired by an incependent chair, who is not ¢hair of the board;

has at least three members.
4.3 [The audit committee should have a formal charter Yes Web site

5.1 |Establish written policies designed 10 ensure compliance with ASX Listing Rule disclosure Yes Web site
requirements and to ensure accountahility at a senfor execulive level for that compliance and
disclose those policies or a summary of those policies.

6.1 |Design a communications policy for promoting efiective communication with shareholders and Yes Web site
encouraging their pasticipation at general meetings and disclose their policy or a summary of that

policy.
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Recommendation Complies Reference

Yes / No
7.1 | Establish policies for the oversight and management of material business risks and disclose a Yes Web site
summary of those policies.
7.2 | The board shoulkd reguire management to design and implement the risk management and interna Yes

control system to manage the company's material business risks and report to it on whether those
risks are being managed efiectively. The board should disclose that management has reported to it
as 1o the effectiveness of the company’s management of its material business risks.

7.3 | The board should disclose whether it has received assurance from the chief executive officer and Yes
the chief financial officer that the declaration provided in accordance with section 295A of the
Corporations Act is founded on a sound system of risk management and internal control and that
the sysiem is operating effectively in all material respects in relation to financial reporting risk.

8.1 | The board should establish a remuneration committee Yes

8.2 |Clearly distinguish the structure of non-executive directors’ remuneration from that of executive Yes
directors and senior executives.

Redflex Holdings Limited's corporate governance practices were in place throughout the year ended 30 June 2008.

Various corporate governance practices are discussed within this statement. For further information on corporate governance policies
adopted by Redflex Holdings Limited, refer to our web site www.redflex.com.au/corporategovernance.

BOARD FUNCTIONS

The board seeks to identify the expectations of the shareholders, as well as other regulatory and ethical expectations and cbligations. In
addition, the board is responsible for identifying areas of significani business risk and ensuring arangements are in place o adequately
manage those risks.

To ensure that the board is welt equipped to discharge its responsibilities it has established guidelines for the nomination and selection of
directors and for the operation of the board. The responsibility for the operation and administration of the company is delegated, by the

Board, to the CEC and the executive management team. The board ensures that this team is appropriately qualified and experienced to
discharge their responsibilities and has in place procedures to assess the performance of the CEO and the executive management team.,

Whilst at all times the board retains full responsibility for guiding and monitoring the Company, in discharging its stewardship it makes use
of sub-committees. Specialist commitiees are able to focus on a particular responsibility and provide informed feedback to the Board. To
this end the board has established the following committees:

+ Audit and Risk Management (Incorporating Finance and Treasury)

+ Nomination

*  Remuneration .
The roles and responsibilities of these committees are discussed throughout this Corporate Govemance Statement. The board is

responsible for ensuring that management's objectives and activities are aligned with the expectations and risk identified by the Board. The

board has a number of mechanisms in place to ensure this is achieved including:

+ Board approval of a strategic plan designed to meet stakeholders’ needs and manage business risk;

« Ongoing development of the strategic plan and approving initiatives and strategies designed to ensure the continued growth and
success of the entity; and

« Implementation of budgets by management and monitoring progress against budget - via the establishment and reporting of both
financial and non financial key performance indicators,

Other functions reserved to the board include:

+ approval of the annual and half-yearly financial reports;

* approving and monitoring the progress of major capital expenditure, capital management, and acguisitions and divestitures;
+ ensuring that any significant risks that arise are identified, assessed, appropriately managed and monitored; and

* reporting to shareholders.
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STRUCTURE OF THE BOARD

The skills, experience and expertise of each director relevant 1o the position of director is included in the Birectors’ Report. Directors of
Redflex Holdings Limited are considered to be independent when they are independent of management and free from any business or
other retationship that could materially imterfere with, or could reasonably be perceived o materially interfere with, the exercise of their
unfettered and independent judgment.

In the context of director independence, materiality is considered from both the company and the individual director's perspective, and is
determined by consideration of both quantitative and qualitative elements. An item is presumed to be quantitatively immaterial if it is equal
10 or less than 5% of the appropriate base amount and is presumed to be material (unless there is qualitative evidence to the conlrary}

if i is equal to or greater than 10% of the appropriate base amount. The gualitative factors considered include whether a relationship is
strategically important, the competitive landscape, the nature of the relationship, and the contractual or other arrangements governing it and
cther factors that point to the actual ability of the director in question to shape the direction of the Group’s loyalty,

In accordance with the definition and the materiality thresholds set, the following non-executive directors of Redflex Holdings Limited are
considered to be independent:

Name Position

Christopher Cooper Chairman, Non executive director
Robin Debernardi Non executive director

Peter Lewinsky Non executive director

Roger Sawley Non executive director

There are procedures in place, agreed by the board, to enable directors to seek independent professionat advice at the company's
expense.

TERM OF OFFICE

The term of office held by each director in office at the date of this report is as follows:

Name Tarm in Office
Christopher Cooper 6 years

Robin Debernardi B years

Peter Lewinsky 5 years

Roger Sawley 1 year, 7 months
Graham Davie 13 years

Karen Finley 1 year, 7 months

For additional details regarding board appointments, please refer to the company's Web site.

TRADING POLICY

Under the company’s securities trading policy, an executive or director must not trade in any securities of the company at any time when
they are in possession of unpublished, price sensitive information in relation to those securities.

Before commencing 1o trade, an executive must first oblain the approval of the company sectetary to do so and a director must first obtain
approval of the Chairman. Only in exceptional circumstances will approval be forthcoming outside of the period which is one day {oflowing
the announcement of the half yearly and iull year results as the case may be;

As required by the ASX Listing Rules, the company notifies the ASX of any transaction conducted by directors in the securities of the
company.
NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee operates under a board-established charter to ensure that the board continues to operate within the established
guidelines. The Nomination Cammittee currently comprises the full board and any business of the Committee is considered at regular
board meetings.
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AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
The board has established an Audit and Risk Management Committee, which operates under a chaner approved by the board.

Itis the board's responsibility to ensure that an effective intemal conirol framework exists within the entity, This includes internal controls
to deal with both the effectiveness and efficiency of significant business processes, the safeguarding of assets, the maintenance of
praper accounting records and the reliability of financial information, as well as non-financial considerations such as the benchmarking of
operational key performance indicators. The board has delegated responsibility for establishing and maintaining a framework of internal
control and ethical standards to the Audit ang Risk Management Committee.

The Audit and Risk Management Committee is also responsible for:

+ establishing and monitoring the company's capital management strategy, including dividend payment strategies, for the board's
consideration;

* assessing the company's funding requirements and making recommendations to the board concerning specific funding proposals;
* menitoring borrowings from financial institutions and compliance with borrowing covenants; and

« monitoring financial risks and exposure from movements in interest rates and exchange rates. This involves reviewing and
assessing the types of hedging products available in minimising these risks and making recommendations 1o the board as to the
course of action required.

The Committee also provides the board with additional assurance regarding the reliability of financial information for inclusion in the financial
reports.

Al members of the Audit and Risk Management Committee are non-executive directors and during the year the members were:
= Peter Lewinski {Committee chair)

= Christopher Cooper

* Robin Debernardi

For details regarding the number of meetings of the Audit and Risk Management Commitiee, the qualifications of members and the number
of meetings they attended, please refer to the Directors' Report.

The exiernal auditor is invited 1o attend the Audit and Risk Management Commitiee meetings relating te the adoption of the half year and full
year financial reports.

RISK

The board determines the company's risk profile and is responsible for overseeing and approving risk management strategy and policies,
internal compitance and internal control. The company’s process of risk management and intemal compliance and control includes:

* establishing the company's goals and objectives, and implementing and monitoring strategies and policies to achieve these goals
and objectives;

+ continuously identifying and measuring risks that might impact upon the achievement of the company's goals and cbjectives, and
monitoring the environment for emerging factors and trends that affect these risks;

« formulating risk management strategies to manage identitied risks, and designing and implementing appropriate risk management
policies and internal contrels; and

* monitoring the performance of, and continuously improving the effectiveness of, risk management systems and internal compliance
and controls, including an annual assessment of the effectiveness of risk management and internal compliance and conrol.

To this end, comprehensive practices are in place that are directed towards achieving the following objectives:
+ effectiveness and efficiency in the use of the Company's resources;

»  compliance with applicable laws and regulations; and

+ prepasation of reliable published financial information.

The board oversees an annual assessment of the eifectiveness of risk management and internal compliance and control. The responsibility
for undertaking and assessing risk management and internal control effectiveness is delegated to management. Management is required
by the board to assess risk management and associated internal compliance and control procedures and report back on the efficiency and
effectiveness of risk management.
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CEO AND CFO CERTIFICATION
The Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have provided a written statement to the board that:

« their view provided on the company's financial report is founded on a sound system of risk management and internal compliance and
control which implements the financial poticies adopted by the Board; and

» that the company's risk management and internal compliance and control system is operating effectively in all material respects.

PERFORMANCE

The performance of the board and key executives is reviewed regularly against measurable and qualitative indicators that are aligned with
the financial and non-financial objectives of the Group. The pertormance of directors is reviewed annually by the Chairman. If performance
was considered unsatisfaciory the director would be asked to retire.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

It is the company's objective 1o provide maximum stakeholder benefit from the retention of a high quality beard and executive team by
remunerating directors and key executives fairly and appropriately with reference 1o relevant employment market conditions. To assist in
achieving this objective, the Remuneration Committee links the nature and amount of executive directors' and officers’ compensation to the
company's financial and operational performance. The expected outcomes of the remuneration structure are:

+ retention and motivation of key executives;

+ attraction of quality management to the company; and

« perormance initiatives which allow executives to share the rewards of the success of the company.
There is no scheme to provide retirement benefits other than statutory superannuation.

The board is responsible for determining and reviewing compensation arrangements for directors, the Chief Executive Officer and the
executive 1eam.

The members of the Remuneration Committee are three non-executive directors and the Chief Executive Officer, and during the year were:
» Robin Depernardi (Committee Chair)

«  Christopher Cooper

+  Peter Lewinsky

*  Graham Davie

For details of the experience and expertise of members of the Remuneration Committee, please refer to the Directors’ Report.
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Consolidated Entity Redffex Holdings Limited
Nole 30~Jun-08 30-Jun-07 36-Jun-08 30-Jun-07
$°000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Continuing operations
Sale of goods and services 24,464 16,550 0 0
Revenue from fee for service contracts 63,638 53,134 0 0
Management fees 0 0 1,848 1,854
Finance revenue 123 329 957 785
Total Revenue 6 88,225 70,013 2,805 2,639
Cost of sales 14,348 9,205 i} 0
Cost of fee for service contracts 17,534 13,015 0 0
Cost of Goods sold 31,882 22,220 0 0
Gross Profit 56,343 47,793 2,805 2,639
Sales and marketing expenses 9772 5,827 ¢ o
Administrative expenses 12,100 13,129 2,586 3,425
Program management costs 2162 2,393 0 0
Amortisation of iMangibles 19 1,128 764 0 0
Depreciation on equipment - fee for service contracts 18 13,911 12,118 0 0
Depreciation - other 18 419 374 16 24
Write-down on plant and equipment 0 984 0 0
Specific items 6{d) 0 0 (8,904) 0
Total operating costs 39,492 35,589 (6,302) 3,449
Profit from continuing operations before tax and 16,851 12,204 9,107 810)
financing costs
interest 1,582 1,415 0 0
Profit from continuing operations before tax 15,269 10,789 9,107 (810)
Income tax expense (benefit) 12 4,673 3,453 120 (B9)
Profil after tax from continuing operations 10,596 7,336 8,987 (721)
Discontinued operations
Profit (loss) afier tax from discontinued operation 7(B) (2,660) (4,262} {2,660} 0
Net Profit attributable to members of the parent 7,936 3,074 6,327 {721)
company
Earnings per share for profit from continuing
operations attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
parent company
- basic earnings per share 1 10.00 cents 8.25 cents
- diluted earnings per share 1 9.67 cents 7.98 cents
Earnings per share for profit attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the parent company
- basic earnings per share 11 9.99 cents 3.45 cents
- diluted earnings per share 11 8.74 cenis 3.35 cenis
Dividend per share attributable to ordinary equity 10 4.50 cents 3.50 cents
holders of the parent company
Earnings per share from discontinued operation $'000 $'000
Net profit attributable to members of the parent company {2.660) (4,262)
For basic earnings per share 7 (2.95) cents (4.80) cents
For diluted earnings per share 7 (2.86) cents (4.72) cents
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Consolidated Entity Redflex Holdings Limited
Note 30-Jun-08 30-Jun-07 30-Jun-08 30-Jun-07
$'600 $'000 $'000 $'000

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 27 12,090 10,179 385 2,375
Security deposits ¢ 653 0 673
Trade and other receivables 14 15,744 16,967 0 89
Inventories 15 10,805 8,458 0 0
Other 2677 555 10 ]
Total Current Assets 41,316 35,812 395 3,137
Non-Current Assets
Receivables 16 0 0 23,211 10,375
Investments 17 0 0 48,257 47,673
Property plant and equipment 18 69,963 59,032 101 21
Deferred tax assel 12 3,348 5,831 1,218 79
Intangible assets and goodwill 19 8,877 7,449 400 400
Deferred cost asset 3,480 0 0 0
Asset retirement obligation 1,318 0 0 0
Total Non-Current Assets 86,986 72,312 73,187 58,548
TOTAL ASSETS 128,302 109,124 73,582 61,685
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables 20 19,363 11,748 4,255 0
Interest bearing borrowings 23 295 39 0 0
Income tax payable 12 3,732 1,961 3.732 1,961
Provisions 2 1,544 965 237 212
Total Current Liabilities 24,934 15,065 8,224 2,173
Non Current Liabilities
Interest bearing borrowings 23 33,683 21,334 0 0
Deferred tax liabilities 12 2,906 6,480 0 0
Asset retirement abligation 1,318 0 0 0
Provisions 22 77 128 3 25
Total Non Current Liabilities 37,984 27,942 3 25
TOTAL LIABIUTIES 62,918 43,007 8,227 2,198
NET ASSETS 65,384 66,117 65,355 59,487
EQUITY
Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent
company
Contributed equity 24 83,181 81,243 83,161 81,243
Reserves 25 {14,052) (6.659) 4,152 3,355
Aceumulated losses 25 (3,725) (8,467) (21,958) (25,111)
TOTAL EQUITY 65,384 66,117 65,355 59,487
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Consolidated Entity Redflex Holdings Limited
Note 30-Jun-08 30-Jun-07 30~Jun-08 30-Jun-07
$'000 $°000 $'000 $°000

Cash Ftows from Operating Activities
Receipts from customers (inclusive of goods & services 88,132 65,892 1,976 1,808
tax GST)
Payments to suppliers and employees (inclusive of GST) (59,502} (36,981) {1,705) (3,146)
Interest received 123 329 957 785
Interest paid (1,582} {1,415) 0 ¥
Income tax paid (2,218) (2,.275) (2.218) {934)
Net Cash Flows from (used in) operating activities 26 24,955 25,550 {988) (1,487)
Cash Flows from (used in) Investing Activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (35,452) (30,721) (96) (4)
Capitalised development costs (2,748) (2.849) 0 0
Investment in and loans to subsidiaries 0 0 (323) (2,169)
Proceeds from safe of discontinued operations 0 3,393 0 0
Net Cash Flows from (used in) investing activities (38,200) (30,177) (419) (2,173)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Bank borrowings 16,853 3,394 0 0
Lease liability incurred (repaid) (101) (200} 0 0
Proceeds from security deposits 672 599 673 (37
Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares 1918 284 1918 283
Dividends paid (3,174) 0 (3,174) 0
Net Cash Flows from Financing Activities 16,168 4,077 (583) 246
Net Increase in Cash Held 2,923 (550) {1,990) {3,414)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash (1.012) (835) 0 0
Cash at beginning of financial year 10,179 11,564 2,375 5,789
Cash and Cash Equivalents at end of period 26 12,090 10,179 385 2,375
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Note Contributed Foreign Employee  Accumulated Total Entity
Equity Currency Equity Benefits Losses
Transiation Reserve
Reserve

$000 3000 $'000 £'000 $'000
CONSOLIDATED ENTITY
At 30 June 2006 80,959 (1,176) 2,612 {11,541} 70,854
Profit for the period 5 0 0 o 3,074 3,074
Exercise of employee options 24 284 0 0 0 284
Cumency transtation differences 25 0 {8,838) 0 0 (8,838)
Share based payment 25 0 0 743 0 743
At 30 June 2007 81,243 {10,014} 3,355 (8,467) 66,117
Profit for the period 5 0 0 0 7,936 7,936
Exercise of employee options 24 192 0 0 0 192
Proceeds from Dividend Reinvestment 24 1,726 0 0 0 1,726
Plan
Dividends paid 25 0 0 0 {(3,174) (3,174)
Currency translation differences 25 0 (8,190) 0 (20} (8,210}
Share based payments 25 0 0 797 0 797
At 30 June 2008 83,161 (18,204) 4,152 (3,725) 65,384

Note Contributed Foreign Employee  Accumulated Total Entity
Equity Currency Equity Benelits Losses
Transiation Reserve
Reserve

PARENT COMPANY
At 30 June 2006 80,959 ] 2,612 (24,390) 59,181
Profit for the period 5 0 0 0 (721) (721)
Exercise of employee options 24 284 0 0 0 284
Share based payment 25 0 0 743 0 743
At 30 June 2007 81,243 0 3,355 (25,111) 59,487
Profit for the period 5 0 0 0 8,327 6,327
Proceeds from exercise of employee 25 192 0 0 0 192
options
Proceeds from Dividend Reinvestment 24 1,726 0 0 0] 1,726
Plan
Dividends paid 25 ¢ 0 0 (3.174) {3,174)
Share based payment 25 0 0 797 0 797
At 30 June 2008 83,161 0 4,152 (21,958) 65,355

52 REDFLEX ANNUAL REPORT 2008




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



NOTE 1 CORPORATE INFORMATION

The financial report of Redflex Holdings Limited for the year ended 30 June 2008 was authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of
directors on 30 September 2008.

Redflex Holdings Limited, {the parent), is a company incarporated and domiciled in Austrafia, and is limited by shares that are publicly
traded on the Australian Stock Exchange.

The nature of the operations and principal activities of the Group are described in the Directors” Report.

NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Table of contents

(a) Basis of Preparation

{b) Compliance with IFRS

{c) New accounting standards and interpretations
(d) Basis of consolidation

(e) Segment reporting

(f) Foreign currency translation

(@) Cash and cash equivalents

(h) Trade and other receivables

(i) Inventories

(i) Derivatives and financial instruments and hedging
(k} Non-current assets and discontinued operation
(I} Property, plant and equipment

(m) Leases

(M) Impairment of non-financia! assets other than goodwill
(0) Goodwill and intangibles

(p) Trade and other payables

(q) interest-bearing loans and borrowings

(n Provisions and employee leave benefits

(8) Share based payment transactions

{t) Contributed equity

(L) Revenue recognition

{v) Income and other taxes

(w) Earnings per share

(x) Maintenance warranty

(y) Asset retirement obligation

{2) Deferred costs asset

{a) Basis of Preparation

This financial report is a general-purpose tinancial report, which has been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Corporations
Act 2001, Australian Accounting Standards and other authoritative pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board. The
financial report has been prepared on a historical cost basis.

The financial report is presented in Australian dollars and all vatues are rounded fo the nearest thousand dollars ($'000) unfess otherwise
stated under the option avaiable to the company under ASIC class order 98/100.

{b) Compliance with IFRS

The financial report complies with Australian Accounting Standards as issued by the Australian Accounting Standards Boasd and
International Financial Reporting Standards {IFRS) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board.
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NOTE 2

{c) New accounting standards and interpretations

These are outlined in the table following.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED

Reference Title Summary Application impact on Group financial | Application
date of report date for
standard Group

AASB Int. 12 Service Concession Clarifies how operators 1 January 2008 | The Group is assessing 1 July 2008

and AASB Arrangements recognise the infrastructure any potential impact.

2007-2 and consequential as a financial asset ancl/or

amendments to other | an intangible asset - not as
Australian Accounting | property, plant and equipment,
Standards
AASB Int. 4 Cetermining whether | The revised Interpretation 1 January 2008 | Refer to AASB Int. 12 and 1 July 2008
(Revised) an Arrangement specifically scopes out AASB 2007-2 above.
contains a Lease arrangements that fail within the
scope of AASB Interpretation
12.
AASB Int. 129 | Service Concession Requires disclosure of 1 January 2008 | Refer to AASB Int. 12 and 1 July 2008
Arrangements: provisions or significant features AASE 2007-2 above.
Disclosures necessary to assist in assessing
the amount, timing and certainty
of future cash flows and the
nature and extent of the various
rights and obligations involved.
These disclosures apply to both
grantors and operators.
AASB 8 and Operating Segments | New standard replacing AASB 1 January 2009 | AASB 8 is a disclosure 1 July 2009
AASB 2007-3 | and consequential 114 Segment Reporting, standard so will have
amendments to other | which adopts a management ne direct impact on the
Australian Accounting | reporting approach to segment amounts included in
Standards reporting. the Group's financial
statements, although it may
indirectly impact the level
at which goodwili is tested
for impairment. In additien,
the amendments may have
an impact on the Group's
segment disclosures.

AASB 123 Borrowing Costs The amendments to AASB 123 | 1 January 2009 | These amendments to 1 July 2009

(Revised) and | and consequential require that all borrowing costs AASB 123 require that all

AASB 2007-6 | amendmentis to other | associated with a qualifying borrowing costs associated

Australian Accounting | asset be capitalised. with a qualifying asset be
Standards capitalised. The Group
has no barrowing costs
associated with qualifying
assets and as such the
amendments are not
expected to have any
impact on the Group's
financial report.
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NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED
Reference Title Summary Application impact on Group financial | Appfication
date of repoit date for
standard Group
AASB 104 Presentation of Introduces a staterent of 1 January 2009 | These amendments are 1 July 2009
(Revised) and | Financial Statements 1 comprehensive income. only expected to aftect the
AASB 2007-8 and consequential Other revisions include impacts presentation of the Group’s
amendments to other | on the presentation of itlems financial report and will
Austrafian Accounting | in the statement of changes not have a direct impact
Standards in equity, new preseniation on the measurement and
requirements for restatements recognition of amounts
or reclassifications of items disclosed in the financial
in the financial statements, report. The Group has
changes in the presentation not determined at this
requirements for dividends stage whether to present
and changes 10 the titles of the a single staternent of
financial statements. comprehensive income or
two separaie statements.
AASB Amendments to The amendments clarify 1 January 2009 | The Group has share- 1 July 2009
2008-1 Austrafian Accounting | the definition of ‘vesting based payment
Standard - Share- conditions', introducing arrangements that may
based Payments: the term 'non-vesting be affected by these
Vesting Conditions conditions' for conditions amendments. However,
and Cancellations other than vesling canditions the Group has not yet
as specifically defined and determined the extent of
prescribe the accounting the impadt, if any.
treatment of an award that is
effectively cancelled because
a non-vesting condition is not
sabistied.
AASB Amendments to The amendments provide 1 January 2009 | These amendments are 1 July 2003
2008-2 Australian Accounting | a limited exception to the not expected {o have any
Standards - Puttable | definition of a liability so as impact on the Group's
Financial Instruments | to allow an entity that issues financial report as the
and Obligations puttable financial instruments Group does not have on
arising on Liquidation | with cerlain specified features, issue or expect to issue
to classify those instruments any puttable financial
as equity rather than financial instruments as defined by
lighilities, the amendments.
AASB 3 Business The revised standard introduees | 1 July 2009 The Group may enter 1 July 2009
{Revised) Combinations a number of changes to the into some business
aceaunting for business combinations during the
combinations, the most next financial year and
significant of which allows may therelare consider
entities a choice for each early adopting the revised
business combination entered standard. The Group
into - to measure a non- has not yet assessed the
controlling interest {formerty a impact of early adoption,
minority interest) in the acquiree including which accounting
gither at its fair value or at its policy to adopt.
proportianate interest in the
acquiree's net assets. This
choice will effectively result in
recognising goodwill relating
to 100% of the business
(applying the fair value option)
or recognising goodwill relating
to the percentage interes!
acquired, The changes apply
prospectively.
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NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED
Reference Titla Summary Application Impact on Group financial | Application
date of report date for
standard Group
AASB 127 Consolidated and Under the revised standard, 1 July 2009 It the Group changes 1 July2009
{Revised) Separate Financial a change in the ownership its ownership interest in
Statements interest of a subsidiary (that existing subsidiaries in the
does not result in loss of future, the change will be
control} will be accounted for as accounted for as an equity
an equity fransaction. transaction. This will have
no impact on goodwill, nor
will it give rise to a gain or a
loss in the Group's income
statement,
AASB Amendments to Amending standard issued as 1 July 2008 Refer to AASB 3 (Revised) | 1 July 2009
2008-3 Australian Accounting | a consequence of revisions to and AASB 127 (Revised) ~
Standards arising AASB 3 and AASB 127. above. ,.
from AASE 3 and
AASB 127
Amendments | Cost of an Investment | The main amendments of 1 January 2009 ! Recognising all dividends 1 July 2009
1o International | in a Subsidiary, relevance to Australian entities received from subsidiaries,
Financial Jointly Controlled are those made to IAS 27 jointly controlled entities
Reporting Entity or Associate deleting the 'cost method’ and associates as income
Standards and requiring all dividends will likety give rise to
from a subsidiary, jointly greater income being
controlled entity or associate recognised by the parent
to be recognised in profit or entity after adoption of
loss in an entity's separate these amendments.
financial statements {i.e., parent
company accounts). The In addition, if the Group
distinction between pre- and enters into any group
posi-acquisition profits is no recrganisation establishing
longer required. However, the new parent entities, an
payment of such dividends assessment will need to be
requires the entity to consider made to determine if the
whether there is an indicator of reorganisation meets the
impairment. conditions imposed 1o be
effectively accounted for on
AASB 127 has also been a ‘carry-over basis' rather
amended to effectively allow than at fair value. .
the cost of an investment
in a subsidiary, in limited
reorganisations, 10 be based on
the previous carrying amount of
the subsidiary (that is, share of
equity) rather than its fair value.
Amendments | Improvements to The improvements project is 1 January 2009 | The Group has not yet 1 July 2009
to Intemational | IFRSs an annual project that provides |} except for determined the extent
Financial a mechanism for making amendments of the impact of the
Reporting non-urgent, but necessary, ta IFRS 5, amendments, if any.
Standards amendments to IFRSs. The which are
IASB has separated the effective from 1
amendments into two parts: July 2009,
Part 1 deals with changes the
IASB identified resulting in
accounting changes; Part |l
deals with either terminofogy or
editcrial amendments that the
IASB believes will have minimal
impact,
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Reference Title Summary Application fmpact on Group financial | Application
date of report date for
standard Group

IFRIC 16 Hedges of a Net This interpretation proposes 1 January 2009 | The interpretation is unikely |1 July 2009

investrment in a that the hedged risk in a to have any impact on the
Foreign Operation hedge of a net investment Group since it does not
in a foreign operation is the significantly restrict the
foreign currency risk arising hedged risk or where the
between the functional currency hedging instrument can be
of the net investment and the held.
functional currency of any parent
entity. This also applies to
foreign operations in the form
of joint ventures, associates or
branches.

The Group has adopted AASB 7 Financial Instruments; Disclosures and all consequential amendments which bacame applicable on 1
January 2007. The adoption of this standard has only affected the disclosure in these tinancial statements. There has been no aftect on
profit and loss or the financial position of the entity.

(d) Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of Redflex Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries {the Group) as at
30 June each year.

Subsidiaries are all those entities (including special purpose entities) over which the Group has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies $0 as 1o cbtain benefits rom their activities. The existence and effect of potential voting rights that are currently
exercisable or convertible are considered when assessing whether a group controls another entity,

The financial statements of subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as the parent company, using consistent accounting
policies.

In preparing the consolidated financial staterents, afl intercompany balances and transactions, income and expenses and profit and losses
resulting including unrealised profits arising from intra-Group transactions, have been eliminated in full. Unrealised losses are eliminated
unless costs cannot be recovered.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the ¢ate on which control is obiained by the Group and cease to be consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred out of the Group.

The acquisition of subsidiaries is accounted for using the purchase method of accounting. The purchase method of accounting involves
allocating the cost of the business combination to the fair value of the assets acquired and the liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed
at the date of acquisition.

(e} Segment reporting

A business segment is a distinguishable companent of the entity that is engaged in providing products or services thal are subject (o risks
and returns that are different 1o those of other business segments, A geographical segment is a distinguishable component of the entity
that is engaged in providing products or services within a particular economic environment and is subject to risks and returns that are
different from those of segments operating in other economic environments.

{fy Foreign currency translation

Both the functional and presentation currency of Redflex Holdings Limited and its Australian subsidiaries is Australian dollars (AU$). The
United States subsidiaries functional currency is United States Dollars {US$) which is translated to presentation currency.

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recarded in the functional currency by applying the exchange rates ruling at the date of the
transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rate of exchange ruling at the balance
sheet date.

Amounts, payable to and by the entities within the consalidated entity, that are outstanding at the balance date and are denominated in
foreign currencies have been converted to local currency using rates of exchange ruling at the end of the financial year.

A monetary item arising under a foreign currency contract outstanding at the reporting date where the exchange rate for the monetary item
is fixed in the contract is translated at the exchange rate fixed in the contract. All resulting exchange rate differences arising upon settlement
or restatement are recognised as revenues and expenses for the year.
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Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate as at the date
of the initial transaction. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was determined.

(g) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance shest comprise cash at bank and in hand and short-lerm deposits with an original maturity of
three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash equivalents, as defined above, net of
outstanding bank overdrafis, Bank overdrafts are included within interest-bearing loans and borrowings in current liabilities on the balance
sheet.

The company collects citation revenue tor cities under some contracts. The allocation of entitlerments to the city and Redflex is made
subsequent to each month end once the allocation has been determines. The proceeds are received in lock-box accounts and are treated
as restricted cash until the allocation has been determined.

(h) Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables, which generally have 30-80 day terms are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised costs
using the effective interest method, less an allowance for impairment.

Collectability of trade receivables is reviewed on an ongoing basis. Debts that are known to be uncollectible are written off when identified.
An allowance for doubttul debts is raised when there is objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect the debt. Financial
difficulties of the debtor, default payments or debts more than 90 days overdue are considered objective evidence of impairment.

{i) Inventories

Inventories including raw materials, work in progress and finished goods are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Costs incurred in bringing each product fo its present location and condition are accounted for as follows:

+ Raw materials: Purchase cost on a first-in-first-out basis.

*  Work-in-progress: Cosi of direct material and labour and a proportion of variable and fixed manufacturing overheads based
on norma! operating capacity. Costs are assignec on the basis of weighted average costs.

» Infrastructure compenents:  Components held for resale or conversion into fixed in-ground installations for traffic contracts are
carried at cost. The conversion of these componentis to property, plant and egquipment occurs at
the point newly conlracted sites are commissioned.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and the estimated
costs necessary 1o make the sale.

() Derivative financial Instruments and hedging

The Group uses derivative financial instruments such as forward currency contracts and interest rate swaps to hedge its risks associated
with interest rate and foreign currency fluctuations. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on
which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured to fair value. Certain derivative instruments are also held for
trading for the purpose of making shart ierm gains. These derivatives do not qualify for hedge accounting and changes in fair value are
recognised immediately in profit or loss in other revenue and expenses. Derivatives are carried as asseis when their fair value is positive
and as liabilities when their fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives, except for those that qualify as cash flow hedges, are 1aken directly
to net profit or loss for the year.

The fair value of forward currency confracts is calculated by reference to current forward exchange rates for contracts with similar maturity
profiles. The fair values of interest rate swap and commodity contracts are determined by reference to market values for similar instruments.

For the purposes of hedge accounting, hedges are classified as:
= fair value hedges when they hedge the exposure to changes in the fair value of a recognised asset or liability;

+ cash flow hedges when they hedge exposure to variability in cash fiows that is attributable either to a particular risk associaled with a
recognised asset or liability or to a forecast transaction; or

« hedges of a net investiment in a foreign operation.

Hedges that meet the strict criteria for hedge accounting are accounted for as follows:
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(i) Fair value hedges

Fair value hedges are hedges of the Group's exposure to changes in the fair value of a recognised asset or liability or an unrecognised firm
commitment, or an identified portion of such an asset, liability or firm commitment that is attributable to a particular risk and could affect
profit or loss. For fair value hedges, the carrying amount of the hedged item is adjusted for gains and losses attributable to the risk being
hedged and the derivative is remeasured to fair value, Gains and losses from both are taken to profit and loss.

The Group discontinues fair value hedge accounting if the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised, the hedge no
longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting or the Group revokes the designation. Any adjustment to the carrying amount of a hedged
financial instrument for which the effective interest method is used is amortised to profit or loss. Amortisation may begin as soon as an
adjustment exists and shall begin no later than when the hedged ilem ceases to be adjusted for changes in its fair value attributable to the
risk being hedged.

() Cash flow hedges

Cash flow hedges are hedges of the Group’s exposure 10 variability in cash flows that is attributable to a particular risk associated with a
recognised asset or liability or a highly probable forecast transaction and that could affect profit or loss. The effective portion of the gain or
loss on the hedging instrument is recognised directly in equity, while the ineffective portion is recognised in profit or loss.

Amounts taken to equity are transferred to the income statement when the hedged transaction affects profit or loss, such as when hedged
income or expenses are recognised of when a forecast sale or purchase occurs. When the hedged item is the cost of a non-financial asset
or liability, the amounts taken to equity are transferred 1o the initial carrying amount of the non-financial asset or liability.

If the forecast transaction is no longer expected to oscur, amounts previously recognised in equity are transferred to the income statement.
If the hedging instrument expires or is sold, lerminated or exercised without replacement or rollover, or if its designation as a hedge is
revoked, amounts previously recognised in equity remain in equity until the forecast transaction oceu:s.

(x) Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale and discontinued operations

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale and measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value
less costs to sell if their carrying amount will be recovered principally through a sale transaction. They are not depreciated or amortised.
For an asset or disposal group 1o be classified as held for sale it must be available for immediate sale in its present condition and the sale
must be highly probable.

An impairment loss is recognised for any initial or subsequent write-down of the asset (or disposal group) 1o fair value less costs 1o sell.

A gain is recognised for any subsequent increases in fair value less costs 1o sell of an asset {or disposal group). but not in excess of any
cumulative impairment loss previously recognised. A gain or loss not previously recognised by the date of the sale of the non-current asset
{or disposal group) is recognised at the date of derecognition.

A discontinued operation is @ component of the entity that has been disposed of or is classified as held for sale and that represents a
separate major line of business or geographical area of operations, is part of a single coordinated plan to dispose of such a line of business
or area of operations, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resafe. The results of discontinued operations are presented
separately on ihe face of the income statement and the assets and Yiabilities are presented separately on the face of the balance sheet.

() Property, Plant and Equipment

Plant and equipment is stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. Such cost
includes the cost of repfacing parts that are eligible for capitalisation when the cost of replacing the paris is incurred. Similarly, when each
major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement onty if it is eligible
for capitalisation. All other repairs and maintenance are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Land and buifdings are measured at fair value, based on periodic but at least iriennial valuations by extemal independent valuers, less
accumulated depreciation on buildings and less any impairment losses recognised after the date of the revaluation.

Depreciation is calculated over the estimated usefu! life of the asset as follows:

Furniture, Fittings and Other 13-18% pa reducing batance
Computer Equipment Straight line over a period of three years
Plant and Equipment Straight line over a period of seven years

The depreciation rates are consistent with the prior year.

The assets' residual values, uselul lives and amortisation methods are reviewed, and adjusted it appropriate, at each financial year end.
Derecognition

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no further future economical benefits are expected from
its use or disposal.
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Any gain or loss arising on derocognition of the asset {calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised,

{m) Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is or contains a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement and reguires an
assessment of whether the fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement
conveys aright to use the asset.

{i) Group as a lessee

Finance leases, which transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the leased item, are capitalised
at the inception of the lease at the fair value of the leased asset or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. Lease
payments are apportioned between the finance charges and reduction of the iease liability so as o achieve a constant rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are recognised as an expense in profit and loss,

Capitalised leased assets are deprecialed over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the lease term if there is no
reasonable certainty that the Group will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term. 6

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the income staternent on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Operating
lease incentives are recognised as a liability when received and subsequently reduced by allocating lease payments between rental
expense and reduction of the liability.

(i Group as a lessor

Leases in which the Group retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the leased asset are classified as operating leases.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised as an
expense over the lease term on the same basis as rental income.

(n) Impairment of non-financial assets other than goodwill

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment or more frequently
if events or changes in crcumstances indicate that they might be impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumsiances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recaoverable.,

The Group conducts an annual internal review of asset values, which is used as a source of information to assess for any indicators of
impairment. If any indications of impairment exist, an estimate of the asset’s recoverable amount is calculated.

An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amaunt. Recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to seil and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows from
other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered impairment are tested for
possible reversal of the impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the impairment may have reversed.

(o) Goodwill and intangibles .
(i) Goodwill

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is initially measured at cost being the excess of the cost of the business combination aver the
Group’s interest in the net fair value of the acquirer’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabities.

Following initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

For the purpose of impairment 1esting, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of

the Group's cash-generating units or groups of cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
imespective of whether ciher assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units or groups of units. Each unit or group of units to
which the goodwill is so allccated:

« represents the lowest leve! within the Group at which the goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes; and
* is not larger than a segment based or the Group's primary or secandary reporting format.
Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the goodwill relates.

The Group perfarms its impairment testing as at 30 June each year using a value in use, discounted cash flow methodology for the Traftic
division te which goodwill is allocated.

When the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. When
goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal of the operation.
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Goodwill disposed of in this manner is measured on the relative values of the operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating
unit retained.

Impairment lasses recognised for goodwill are not subsequently reversed.

(if) Intangibles

Intangible assets acquired separately or in a business combination are inilially measured at cost. The cost of an intangible asset acquired
in a business combination is its fair value as at the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried al cosl
less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment Josses. Internally generated intangible assels, excluding capitalised
development costs, are not capitalised and expenditure is recognised in profit or loss in the year in which the expenditure is incurred.

The usetul lives of intangible assets are assessed {0 be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the
useful life and tested for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and
the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life is reviewed at least each financial year end. Changes in the expected
useful ife or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are accounted for prospectively by
changing the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, which is a change in accounting estimate. The amortisation expense on
intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in profit or loss in the expense category consistent with the function of the intangible asset.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually either individually or at the cash-generating unit level. Sueh
intangibles are not amortised. The useful life of an intangible asset with an indefinite life is reviewed each reporting pericd 1o determine
whether indefinite life assessment continues to be supportable. If not, the change in the useful life assessment from indefinite to finite is
accounted for as a change in an accounting estimate and is thus accounted for on a prospective bases.

(i) Research and development costs

Research costs are expensed as incurred. An iltangible asset arising from development expenditure on an internal project is recognised
only when the Group can demonstrate the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale, its
intention to complete and its ability to use or sell the asse!, how the asset will generate future economic benefits, the availability of resources
io complete the development and the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during its development.
Foltowing the initial recagnition of the development expenditure, the cost model is applied requiring the asset 1o be carvied at cost less any
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Any expenditure so capitalised is amortised over the period of expected
benefit from the related project, typically being ten years.

The carrying value of an intangible asset arising from development expenditure is tested for impairment annually when the asset is not yet
available for use, or more frequently when an indication of impairment arises during the reponting period.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difterence between the net disposal proceeds and
the earying amount of the asset and are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Development expenditure incurred on an individual project is carried forward when its future recoverability can reasonably be regarded as
assured.

A summary of the policies applied to the Group’s intangible assets Is as follows:

Development Costs
Useful lives

Finite

Amortisation method used

Amortised over the period of expected fuiure benefit from the related project on a siraight-ine basis

internally generated or acquired

Intemally generated

impairment tasting

Annually as at 3¢ June for assets not yet available for use and more frequently when an indication of impairment exists. The amortisation
method is reviewed at each financial year-end.

(p) Trade and other payables

Trade payables and other payables are carried at amortised cost. They represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Group
prior to the end of the financiat year that are unpaid and arise when the Group becomes obliged to make future payments in respect of the
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purchase of these goods and services. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of recognition.

{q) Interest-bearing loans and borrowings
All loans and borrowings are initially recognised at the fair value of the consideration received less directly attributable transaction costs.

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities that are yield related are included as part of the carrying amount of the loans and
borrowings.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the balance sheet date.

Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense when incurred.

{r) Provisions and employee leave benefits

(i) Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that

an outflow of resources embadying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

Where the Group expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is
recognised as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating 1o any provision is presented in
the income statement net of any reimbursement.

Provisicns are measured at the present value of management's best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at
the balance sheet date using a discounted cash flow methodology. The risks specific to the provision are factored into the cash flows and
as such a risk-free government bond rate relative to the expected life of the provision is used as a discount rate. If the effect of the time
value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects the time value of money and the risks specific
to the liability. The increase in the provision resulting from the passage of time is recognised in finance costs.

(i) Employee Leave Benefits
(iY Wages, salaries and annual leave

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits and annual leave are recognised in respect of employees’
services up to the reporting date. They are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled.

(ii) Long Service Leave

The liability for long service leave is recognised in the provision for employee benefits and measured as the present value
of expected future paymenits to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting date using ihe
projected unit credit method. Consideration is given to the expected future wage and salary levels, experience of empioyee
depanures, and periods of service. Expected future payments are discounted using market yields at the reporting date on
national government bonds with terms to maturity that match, as closely as possible, the estimated future cash outflows.

{s) Share based payment transactions

(i} Equily settfed transaction

The Group provides benefits to employees, including key management personnel, in the form of share-based payment fransactions
whereby employees render services in exchange for shares or rights over shares (equity-settled transactions).

There are currently two plans in piace to provide these benefits:

(a) The Employce Option Plan

The cost of these eguity-settled transactions under the Empioyee Option Plan is measured by reference to the fair value at the date at which
they are granted. The fair value is determined by an external valuer using a Black-Scholes model.

In valuing equity-settled transactions, no account is taken of any vesting conditions, other than conditions linked to the price of the shares of
Redfiex Holdings Limited.

The cost of equity-settlect transactions is recognised, together with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period in which the
performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled (the vesting period), ending on the date on which the relevant employees become fully
entitled to the award (the vesting date).
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At each subsequent reporting date until vesting, the cumulative charge to the income statement is the product of

(i) the grant date fair value of the awarg,

{ii) the current best estimate of the number of awards that will vest, taking into account such factors as the likelinood of
employee turnover during the vesting petiod and the likelihood of non-market performance conditions being met, and

(iii} the expired portion of the vesting period.

The charge to the income statement far the period is the cumulative amount as calculated above less the amounts already charged in
previous periods. There is a cormesponding credit to equity.

Equity-settled awards granted by Redtlex Holdings Limited to employees of subsidiaries are recognised in the parent's separate financial
stalements as an additional investment in the subsidiary with a corresponding credit to equity. These amounts are eliminated on
consolidation. As a result, the expense recognised by Redflex Holdings Limited in relation to equity-settled awards only represents the
expense associated with grants 1o emplayees of the parent. The expense recognised by the Group is the total expense associated with all
such awards.

Until an award has vested, any amounts recorded are contingent and will be adjusted if mare or fewer awards vest than were originatly
anticipated to do so. Any award subject to a market condition is considered to vest irrespective of whether or not that market condition is
fulfilled, provided that all other conditions are satisfied.

If the terms of an equity-settied award are modified, as a minimum an expense is recogrised as if the terms had not been modified. An
additional expense is recognised for any modification that increases the total fair value of the share based payment arrangement, or is
otherwise beneficial to the employee, as measured at the date of modification.

If an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it had vested on the date of the cancellation, and any expense not yet recognised
for the award is recognised immediately. However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled award and designated as a replacement
award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and new award are treated as if they were a modification of the original award, as
described in the previous paragraph.

(b) The Long Term Incentive (LTI} Plan for Executives

Performance rights pricing model

The fair value of each performance right is estimated on the date of the grant using a Black-Scholes option formula, with a Monte Carlo
simulation to take market conditions into consideration, with the foliowing weighted average assumptions used for grants made during the
year. The valuation of the performance rights is performed independently.

The company uses a measure of Total Shareholder Return {TSR) as the performance hurdle for the LTI Plan. TSR is calculated as the
change in capital value of Redilex Holdings Limited over a three-year period, plus dividends expressed as a percentage of the opening
capital value. The use of a relative TSR based hurdle is currently market best practice as it ensures an alignment between comparative
shareholder return and rewards for executives.

In assessing whether the performance hurdles for each grant have been met, the company receives independent data from its external
consultant which benchmarks the company's TSR growth from the commencement of each grant against that of the pre-selected

peer group (S&P/ASX 300) which is the comparison group selected by the board based on recommendations from Mercers. The key
management personnel must satisfy the service canditions set at grant date. Performance Rights vest progressively from a threshold level
of performance to a maximum leve!, evaluated against the comparater group of companies.

The dividend yield reflected the fact that no dividend has been previously paid and the expected life of the right is the period up to vesting.
The expected volatility is based on the compary’s histarical volatility and is designed te be indicative of future trends, which may also not
necessarily be the actual outcome,

The weighted average remaining contractual life for the performance rights is betwean 17 months and 3 years.

Value of Options granted to certain USA employees

The difference between the market price and the exercise price at the time of exercise in respect of options granted e USA employees gives
rise to a tax deduction within the USA subsidiary. The value of these tax deductions are recouped directly in the Employee Equity Benefits
Reserve to the extent they exceed the tax value of the expense recorded in relation to the options.

(t) Contributed equity

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as
a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.
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{u) Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised and measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable to the extent it is probably that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue can be reliably measured. The following specific recognition criteria must also be
met before revenue is recognised:

{i) Revenue from Sale of Goods and Services

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have passed to the buyer

and can be reasonably measured. Revenue on certain fixed price contracts where the Group provides systems development integration
and installation services are recognised over the contract term based on the percentage of completion. The percentage of completion
methodology is used where the contract outcome can be reliably measured, control of a right 1o be compensated for the services has been
attaned and the stage of completion can be reliably measured. Under this method revenue recognised is measured by the percentage of
costs incurred to date 1o total estimated costs for each contract. Stage of completion is measured by reference to the material costs and
labour hours incurred o date as a percentage of total material costs and estimaled labour hours for each contract. Where the contract
outcome cannot be reliably measured, revenue is recognised only to the extent that costs have been incurred and are recoverable.

Additional revenue in the United States is derived from the sale of photo enforcemient equipment to municipal governments under fixed
contracts. Revenue on these equipment sales is recorded over the duration of the contract.

(i) Revenue from fee for service contracts

Revenue in the United States is principally derived from fees and traffic citations issued in jurisdictions where the company's equipment is
located. Revenue is recognised when a traffic infraction is recorded by the company's equipment in various jurisdictions. The company
records an allowance an revenues based on historical collection rates and citation enforceability.

(i) Deferred Reveriue

Certain company's sales include the sale of equipment combined with the provision of services for a period not exceeding one year.
Revenue is recognised based on a commercial equipment sales margin, and service revenue is deferred and recognised over the period of
service. Deferred revenue principally represents payments received for which services remain 1o be provided. Amounts are recognised as
revenue when service has been provided.

(iv) Interest revenue

Revenue is recognised as interest accrues using the effeciive interest method. This is & method of calculating the amortised cost of a
financial asset and allocating the interest income over the relevant period using the effective interest rate, which is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

{v) Income tax and other taxes

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and pricr periods are measured at the amount expected to be recavered from or paid 1o the
taxation authorities based on the current period’s taxable income. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that
are enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet dale.

Deferred income tax is provided on all temporary differences at the balance sheet date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred income tax liabilties are recognised for ail 1axable temporary differences except:

* when the deferred income tax fiability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and at the time of the transaction affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; or

« when the taxable temporary differences associated with investments in asseociates, subsidiaries and investments in joint ventures, except
where the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for ail deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax assets and unused tax
losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry-
forward of unusad tax assets and unused 1ax losses can be utilised, except:

» when the deferred income tax asse! relating to the deductible temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit or taxable profit
of loss, or;

+ when the deductible temporary difference is associated with investments in associates, subsidiaries and investments in joint ventures,
in which case a deferred tax asset is only recognised to the extent that it is probable that the temporary difference will reverse in the
foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary difference can be utilised.
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NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED

The carrying amount of defered income tax assets is reviewed at each balance date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow al! or pari of the deferred income tax asset to be ulilised.

Unrecognised deferred income tax assets are reassessed at each balance date and are recognised to the extent that it has become
probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected fo apply to the year when the asset is realised or
the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

Income taxes relating to items recognised directly in equity are recognised in equity and not in profit or loss.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset only if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assels against current
tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and liabilities relate to the same taxable entity and the same tax authority.

Tax consolidation legiskation

Redflex Holdings Limited and its wholly-owned Australian controlled entities have implemented the tax consclidation legislation as of 1 July
2003,

The head entity Redtlex Holdings Limited and the controfted entities in the tax consclidated group continue to account for their own current
and deferred tax amounts. The Group has applied the group allocation approach in determining the appropriate amount of current 1axes
and deferred taxes to allocate to members of the tax conselidated group.

In acidition to its own current and deferred tax amounts, Redflex Holdings Limited also recognises the current tax liabilities {or assets) and
the deferred tax assels arising from unused tax losses and unused tax credits assumed from controlled entities in the tax consolidated

group.

Assets or liabilities arising under tax funding agreements with the tax consolidated entities are recognised as amounts receivable from or
payable to other entities in the Group.

Any difference between the amounts assumed and amounis receivable or payable under the tax funding agreement are recognised as a
contribution to wholly-owned tax consolidated entities.

Other Taxes
Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST) except:

« when the GST incurred on a purchase of goods and services is not recoverable from the taxation authority, in which case the G8T is
recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item as applicable; and;

* receivables and payables are stated with the amount of GST included.

The net amount of GST recoverable from or payable to the taxation authority is included as part of receivables or payables in the balance
sheet.

Cash flows are included in the cash flow statement on a gross basis and the GST component of cash flows arising from investing and
financing activities, which is recoverable from or payable 1o the taxation authority are classified as operating cash fiows.

Commitmenis and contingencies are disclosed net of the amount of GST recoverable from or payable to the taxation auihority.

(w) Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated as net profit attributable to members of the parent, adjusted to exclude any costs of servicing equity
{other than dividends), divided by the weighted average number of ordinary shares, adjusted for any bonus element.

Diluted earnings per share are calculated as net profit atinbutable to members of the parent, adjusted for:
« cosis of servicing equity (other than dividends) and preference share dividends;

+ the after tax effect of dividends and interest associated with dilutive potential ordinary shares that have been recognised as expenses;
and

« other non-discretionary changes in revenue and expenses during the period that would result from the dilution of potential ordinary
shares;

divided by the weighted average number of ordinary shares and dilutive potential ordinary shares, adjusted for any bonus element.

(x) Maintenance warranty

In determining the level of pravision required for maintenance warranties the Group has made judgments in respect of the expected
performance of the product, number of customers who will actually use the maintenance warranty and how often, and the costs of fulfilling
the performance of the maintenance warranty. Historical experience and current knowledge of the performance of products has been used
in determining this provision. The related carrying amounts are included in accrued liabilities.
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NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED

{y) Asset Retirement Obligation

The fair value of a liability for an ARQ is recorded as an asset and a liability when there is a legal obligation associated with the retirement of
a long-lived asset and the amount can be reasonably estimated.

{z) Deferred Costs Asset

Under contracts with one ¢ity the Company is required to sell cameras and installations as well as to provide full service back office
processing of citations along similar lines to all other contracts performed under the Company's Build Own Operate and Maintain mode!,
however the sale and provision of services are dependent on each other. This dependency determines that the sale and provision of
services be bundled together as a single fransaction and accounted for accordingly.

Where the timing of the supply of fully installed cameras and provision of services are not in alignment with customer payment terms a
Deferred Costs Asset is created and released progressively over the contract term to align expected revenues with the full provision of the
contracted services.

NOTE 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise receivables, payables, bank loans, finance leases, cash and shori-term deposits and
occasionally derivatives.

The Group manages its exposure to key financial fisks, including interest rate and currency risk and credit risk and liquidity risk in
accordance with the Group's financial risk management policy. The objective of the palicy is to support the delivery of the Group's financial
targets whilst protecting future financial security.

The Group occasionally enters into derivative fransactions, principally forward cutrency contracts. The purpose is to manage the
transactional currency risks arising from the Group's operations and its sources of finance. Where trading in derivatives is undertaken, it is
spectfically in forward currency contracts.

These derivatives provide economic hedges, but do not qualify for hedge accounting and are based on limits set by management and
authorised by the Board. The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit
risk and liquidity risk. The Group uses different methods to measure and manage different types of risks to which it is exposed. These
include monitoring levels of exposure 1o interest rate and foreign exchange risk and assessments of market forecasts for interest rates and
foreign exchange rates. Ageing analyses and menitoring of specific credit allowances are undertaken to manage credit risk, liquidity risk is
monitored through the development of future rolling cash flow forecasts.

The Board reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks as summarised below.

Primary responsibility for identification and control of financial risks rests with the Financial Risk Management Committee under the authority
of the Board. The Board reviews and agrees policies for managing each of the nisks identified below, including the setting of limits for .
hedging cover of foreign currency and interest rate risk, credit allowances, and future cash flow forecast projections.

REDFLEX - MAKING A SAFER WORLD 67



NOTE 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES - CONTINUED

RISK EXPOSURES AND RESPONSES

INTEREST RATE RISK

The Group's exposure to market interesi rates refates primarily 1o the Group's long-term debl obligations and its cash holdings. The level of
debt is disclosed in Note 23,

At balance date, the Group had the following mix of financial assets and liabilities exposed to variable interest rate risk,

Consolidated Parent
30 June 2008 30 June 2007  30June 2008 30 June 2007
$£'000 $'000 $'000 $£'000
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 12,080 10,179 385 2,375
Security Deposits 0 653 0 673
12,050 10,832 385 3,048
Financial Liabilities
Bank loans 33,978 21,725 0 Q
Related party loan 0 0 0 0
33,978 21,725 0 0
Net exposure {21,888) (10,893) 385 3,048

The Group's policy is to manage its finance costs using predominantly variable rate debt associated with the currency in which the cash
flows relating 10 the borrowings arise.

The Group constantly analyses its interest rate exposure. Within this analysis consideration is given to alternative financing, alternative
hedging positions and a mix of fixed and variable interest rates.

The following sensitivity analysis is based on the interest rate risk exposures in existence at the balance sheet date:

At 30 June 2008, if interest rates had moved, as illustrated in the table below, with all other variables held constant, post tax profit and equity
would have been affected as follows:

Judgments of reasonable possible movements

Post Tax Profit Equity
Higher/(Lower} Higherf{Lower}
30 June 2008 30 June 2007 30 June 2008 30 June 2007
$°000 $'000 3'000 $'000
Consolidated
+1% (100 basis points) {219) (109) (219) {109)
- .5% (50 basis paints) 109 54.5 109 54.5
Parent
+1% (100 basis points) 4 a0 4 30
- .5% (50 basis points}) (2} (15) {2) (15)

The movements in profit are due to higher/lower interest costs from variable rate debt and cash balances. The sensitivity is higher in 2008
than in 2007 due to an increase in cuistanding borrowings that has occurred due to the funding of the growth in the installed camera base
inthe USA.
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NOTE 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES - CONTINUED

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK
The Group separates the management of exchange rate risk between translational and transactional effects of currency movements.

The Group has two main operations, with approximately 80% of the Group business occurring within the USA, and the other 20% arising
from within Australia, but servicing other workdwide markets. As a result of significant investment operations in the USA and large purchases
of inventory from the USA, the Group’s balance sheet can be affected significantly by movements in the US$/AUS exchange rates. The

USA business incurs all revenue and the vast majarity of its expenses in US$, apart from the cost of cameras sourced from the Australian
operations in AU%. The USA business operation accounts for the vast majority of the Group's capital expenditure requirements and related
borrowings and accordingly, the Group seeks to mitigate the effect of its foreign currency exposure by bomowing in USE.

Translational effects are therefore significant to the Group results with approximately 80% (2007: 70%} of the Group's revenues and costs
incurred in currencies other than the functional currency of the operating entity making the sale (predominanily US$)}, and the large capital
expenditure related to that business also denominated in USS$.

The Group does not hedge translational risk through availatyle hedge products.

Aside from the USA operation, the Group also has transactional currency exposures arising occasionally from sales or purchases by an
operating entity in currencies other than the functional currency.

Excluding the fransactions within the USA operation, nearly all other of the Group's sales are denominated in the functional cutrency of the
operating entity making the sale, whilst aimost 90% of costs relating to that business are denominated in the unit's functional currency.

The Group requires all of its operating units to consider using forward currency contracts to eliminate the currency exposures on any
substantial net transactions for which receipt or payment is anticipated to be more than one month after the Group has entered into a fam
commitment for a sale or purchase. Sales and purchases in currencies other than the functional currency are irregular and evaluated
against the revenue streams which they derive on a case by case basis. Any forward currency contracts entered into must be in the same
currency as the hedged item. It is the Group's policy not to enter into forward ¢ontracts until a firrn commitment is in place, and to negotiate
the terms of the hedge derivatives to match the terms of the hedged item to maximise hedge effectiveness.

At 30 June 2007 and 2008, the Group had no foreign currency hedge transactions in place.

The Group has a borrowing of US$32 million (2007: US$18 million) that is used as a natural hedge of the net investment in the USA
operation.

At 30 June 2008, the Group had not hedged foreign currency purchases that are firm commitments, as offseting natural hedges
substantially offset risk. Other than the USA operation, all sales commitments were denominated in AUS$.

The following sensitivity is based on the foreign currency risk exposures in existence at the balance sheet date.

At 30 June 2008, had the Australian Doilar moved, as illustrated in the table betow, with all other variables held constant, post tax profit
wou'd have been affected as follows:

The net assets of the USA operation are reflected in the segment results shown in Note 5.

Judgments of reasonable possible movements

Post Tax Profit Equity
Higherj{Lower) Higher/{Lower)}
30 June 2008 30 June 2007 30 June 2008 30 June 2007
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Consolidated
AUS/USS +10% 0 0 (2.153) (1,364}
AUS/USSE - 5% 0 0 1,246 790
Parent
AUS/USE +10% 0 0 0 0
AUS/USSE - 5% 0 0 o 0

The movements in prcfit in financial year 2008 are more sensitive than in financial year 2007 due to the higher level of US net assets at
balance date.

Management believes the balance date risk exposures are representative of the risk exposure inherent in the financial instruments.

PRICE RISK

The Group's exposure to commaodity and equity securities price risk is minimal,
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CREDIT RISK

Credit risk arises from the financial assets of the Group, which comprise cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables. The
Group's exposure to credit risk arises from potential defau't of the counter party, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount of
these instruments. Exposure at batance date is addressed in each applicable note.

The Group does not hotd any credit derivatives to offset its credit exposure.

The Group trades only with recognised, creditworihy third parties and collatera! is not requested, nor is it the Group's policy 1o securitise its
trade and other receivables.

Itis the Group's policy that all customers who wish to trade on credit tems are subject to credit verification procedures which include an
assessment of their independent credit rating, financial position, past experience, and industry reputation. Risk limits are set for each
customer in accordance with parameters set by the board. These risk limits are regularly monitored. In addition, receivable balances
are monitored on an ongoing basis with the result that the Group's exposure to bad debts is not significant. There are no significant
concentrations of credit risk within the Group.

For transactions that are not denominated in the functional currency of the relevant operating unit, the Group does not offer credit terms and
usually requires a Letier of Credit to secure the receivable.

LIQUIDITY RISK

The Group's objective is to maintain continuity of funding through the use of bank loans and committed available credit lines. The Group’s
palicy is to lock in barrowing facilities for a period of up to three years with individual loans borrowed under the facility rolling on a quarterly
basis. At 30 June 2008, none of the Group's debt will mature in tess than one year (2007 Nil).

The remaining contractual maturities of the Group’s and the parent’s financial liabilities are:

Consolidated Parent
30 June 2008 30 June 2007 30 June 2008 30 June 2007
$'000 $'000 $°000 $'000
6 months or less 9,494 5,009 4,040 0
6-12 months 8,943 6,111 215 0
1-5 years 34,997 22,152 0 0
Over 5 years 0 0 0 0
53,434 33,272 4,255 0

Maturity analysis of financial assets and liability based on management’s expectation

The risk implied from the values shown in the table below, reflects a balanced view of cash inflows and outflows. Leasing obligations, rade
payables and other financial liabilities mainly originate from the financing of assets used in our ongoing operations such as property, plant,
equipment and investments in working capital eg inventories and trade receivables.

These assets are considered in the Group's overall liquidity risk. To monitor existing financial assets and liabilities as well as to enable
effective control of future risks, Redflex has established comprehensive risk reporting, covering its worldwide business units, that reftects
management's expectations of the settlement of financial assets and liabilities.

Year ended 30 June 2008
CONSOLIDATED <=6 months 6-12 months 1-5 years >Syears Total
$000 $'000 $°000 $000 $'000
Financia! assets
Cash and cash equivalents 12,090 0 0 0 12,090
Trade and other receivables 15,744 0 0 o] 15,744
Available for-sale financial assets 0 0 0 0 0
27,834 0 0 0 27,834
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables 8,857 8,619 o] 0 17,476
Interesi bearing loans and borrowings 637 324 34,997 0 35,958
9,494 8,943 34,997 0 53,434
Net maturity 18,340 {8,943) (34,997) 0 {25,600)
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NOTE 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES - CONTINUED
PARENT <=8 months 6-12 months 1-5 years >5years Total
$'000 $°000 §'000 $'000 $'000
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 385 0 0 0 385
Trade and other receivables 0 0 0 0 0
Available for-sale financial assets 0 0 0 0 0
385 0 0 0 385
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables 4,040 215 0 o] 4,255
Interest bearing loans and borrowings 0 0 0 0 0
4,040 215 ] 0 4,255
Net maturity {3,655) (215) 0 0 (3,870)

Al balance date, the Group has available approximately AU$19 million (US$18 million) of unused credit facilities available for its immediate

use.
Year ended 30 June 2007
CONSOLIDATED <=6 months  6-12 months 1-6 years >5years Totar
$'000 $'000 $'000 3000 $°000
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 10,179 0 0 0 10,179
Trade and other receivables 16,967 0 0 0] 16,967
Available for-sale financial assets 0 0 0 0 0
27,146 0 0 0 27,146
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables 4,388 5,907 0 0 10,295
Interest bearing loans and barrowings 621 204 22,152 0 22,977
5,009 6,111 22,152 0 33,272
Net maturity 22,137 (6.,111) (22,152) 0 (6,126)
PARENT < =6 months 6-12 months 1-5 years >5years Total
§°000 $'000 $'000 $7000 000
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 2,375 0 0 0 2,375
Trade and other receivables 89 0 0 0 a9
Available for-sale financial assets 0 0 0 0 0
2,464 0 0 0 2,464
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables 0 0 0 0 0
Interest bearing loans and borrowings 0 0 0 0 0
o 0 0 0 0
Net maturity 2,464 0 0 0 2,464
FAIR VALUE
The methods for estimating fair value are outlined in the refevant notes to the financial statements,
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NOTE 4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumgtions that attect the reported
amounts in the financial staternents. Management continually evaluates its judgments and estimates in relation to assets, liabilities,
contingent liabilities, revenue and expenses. Management bases its judgments and estimates on historical experience and on other various
factors it betieves to be reasonable under the circumstances, the result of which form the basis of the carrying values of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may ditfer from these estimates under different assumptions and conditions.

Management has identified the following critical accounting policies tor which significant judgments, estimates and assumptions are made.
Actual resulis may differ from these estimates under different assumptions and conditions and may materially affect tinancial results or the
tinancial position reported in future periods.

Further details of the nature of these assumptions and conditions may be found in the relevant notes 1o the financial statements.
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS

Depreciation and impairment of property plant and equipment

The major Group asset is represented by property, plant and equipment consisting principally of red kight and speed camera detection
equipment that are installed in various cities throughout the USA. The contract periods under which these assets are installed varies
significantly between contracts, however most contract periods are for approximately five years.

The Group depreciates these assets over a seven year period on a straight line basis regardless of the length of the contract. The major
components of the installation refate 1o the construction and civil engineering works associated with the installation in additicn to the camera
anc detection equipment. The company expects the infrastructure 1o last for decades once installed, whilst the camera and ctetection
equipment is expected to last for a period approximaling seven years.

Despite the longevity of the installation it is rendered worthless upon termination or non-renewal of a contract to process traffic violations.
Accordingly, it is difficult to assess the appropriate length of time over which to depreciate these assets.

The Group assesses impairment of all assets at each reporting date based on each contract and evaluates conditions specific to the Group
and to the particular assets that may lead to impairment. These include coniract termination date, any cost neutrality issues, legislative and
tegal challenges combined with economic and political environments. This review is performed on a contract by ¢contract basis.

If an impairment trigger exists the recoverable amount of the assel is determined and a write-down taken.

Taxation

The Group's accounting policy for laxation requires management’s judgment as 1o the types of arrangemenis considered to be a tax on
income in contrast to an operating cost. Judgment is also required in assessing whether deferred tax assets and certain deferred tax
liabilities are recognised on the balance sheet, Deferred tax assets, including those arising from unrecouped tax losses, capital losses and
temporary differences, are recognised only where it is considered more likely than ot that they will be recovered, which is dependent on the
generation of sufficient future taxable profits. Deferred tax liabilities arising from temporary differences in investments, caused principally

by retained eamings held in foreign tax jurisdictions, are recognised unless repatriation of retained earnings can be controlied and are nat
expected to occur in the foreseeable future.

Assumptions about the generation of future taxable profits and repatriation of retained earnings depend on management's estimates

of future cash flows. These depend on estimates of future production and sales volumes, operating costs, restoration costs, capital
expenditure, dividends and other capital management transactions. Judgments are also required about the application of income

tax legislation. These judgments and assumptions are subject to risk and uncertainty, hence there is a possibility that changes in
circumstances will alter expeciations, which may impact the amount of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities recognised on the
balance sheet and the amount of other tax losses and temporary differences not yet recognised. In such circumstances, some or all of the
carrying amounts of recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities may require adjustment, resulting in a correspanding credit or charge to
the income statement.
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NOTE S SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group's primary segment reporting format is business segments. The operating businesses are organised and managed separately
according to the nature of the products and services provided, with each segment representing a strategic business unit that offers different
products and services different markets.

The Traffic division operates within two key markets, the USA and Australia/internaticnal. Traffic in the USA business is predominantty a
Build Own Operate and Maintain business providing fully outsourced traffic enforcement programs to cities and townships. The Australian/
International Traffic business involves the sale of traffic enforcement products to those markets.

The primary segmental split segregates the business unils into revenue from recurring fee for service business and revenue related to the
sale of goods and services. The Corporate division represents the Group's Head Office which is based in Melboumne, Australia.

Transfer prices between business segments are set on an arms’ length basis in a manner similar to transactions with third parties.
Segment revenue, segment expense and segment result include transfers between business segments. Those transfers are efiminated on
consalidation.

The following tables present revenue and profit information and certain asset and liability information regarding business segments for the
years ended 30 June 2008 and 30 June 2007.
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NOTE 5 SEGMENT INFORMATION - CONTINUED

Operating results by business segments are as follows:

Year ended 30 June 2008 Continuing Operations Discontinued Operation
Corporate USA Traffic Australian/ Total Total
International
Traffic
$'600 $'000 §000 3000 $'000 $°000
Revenue
Revenue from USA sale of goods 0 7.398 0 7,398 0 7,398
and services
Revenue from Australian sale of 0 0 12,979 12,979 0 12,979
goods and services
Revenue from Intematicnal sale 0 g 4,087 4,087 0 4,087
of goods and services
Revenue from fee for service 0 63,638 0 63,638 0 63,638
contracts
Finance revenue 57 1} 66 123 0 123
Inter-segment revenue Q 0 24,067 24,067 0 24,067
Total segment revenue 57 71,036 41,199 112,292 0 112,292
Inier-segment elimination 0 (24,067)
Total Consolidated Revenue 0 88,225
Result
Earnings Before Interest, Tax, (2,456) 25,889 8,876 32,309 {3,800) 28,509
Depreciation and Amortisation
Depreciation (16} (13,811) (403) {14,330) 0 (14,330}
Amaortisation 0 {161) (967) {1,128) 0 {1,128)
Segment result (2,472) 11,817 7.506 16,851 (3,800} 13,051
Unallocated expenses 0 0 0 0 0 0
Profit before tax and finance 16,851 {3,800) 13,051
charges
Finance charges (1,582) 0 (1,582)
Profit before income lax 15,269 (3,800) 11,469
Income tax expense (4,673) 1,140 (3,533)
Net Profit for the year 10,596 {2,660) 7,936
Assets and Liabilities
Segment assels 3,288 90,922 32,952 127,162 1,140 128,302
Unallocated assets 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total assets 3,288 90,922 32,952 127,162 1,140 128,302
Segment liahilities 366 48,962 9,790 59,118 3,800 62,918
Una¥ocated liabikities 0 0 0 0 0 0
366 48,962 9,790 59,118 3,800 62,918
Other segment Information
Capital expenditure 0 35,282 170 35,4562 0 35,452
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NOTE S5 SEGMENT INFORMATION - CONTINUED

Year ended 30 June 2007 Continuing Operations Discontinuad Total
Operation Operations
Corporate USA Australian/ Total
Traffic international
Traffic

3000 3'0060 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Revenue
Revenue from USA sale of goods 0 3,089 0 3.089 0 3,089
and services
Revenue from Australian sale of 0 0 13,481 13,481 3,498 16,959
goods and services
Revenue from Intemational sale 0 0] 0 0 0 0
of goods and services
Revenue from fee for service 0 53,134 0 53.134 0 53,134
contracts
Finance revenue 329 0 0 329 0 329
inter-segment revenue 0 0 17,306 17,306 0 17,306
Total segment revenue 329 56,223 30,767 87,319 3,498 90,817
Inter-segment elimination 0 {17,306)
Total Consclidated Revenue 3,498 73,511
Result
Earnings Before Interest, Tax, (3,066} 21,846 6,680 25,460 366 25,826
Depreciation and Amortisation
Cepreciation (24) (12,118) (350) {12,492) (94) (12,586)
Amortisation 0 {24) (740} (764) (357) {1,121)
Segment result (3,090) 9,704 5,590 12,204 (85) 12,119
Recognised loss on sale of 0 (4,177) 4177
discontinued operation
Profit before tax and finance 12,204 (4,262) 7,942
charges
Finance charges {1,415) 0 (1.415)
Profit before income tax 10,789 (4,262} 6,527
Income tax expense (3,453) 0 {3,453)
Net Profit for the year 7,336 (4,262) 3,074

Assets and Llabilities

Segment assets 0 89,081 13,622 102,703 0 102,703
Unalfocated assets 6,421 0 0 6,421 0 6,421
Total assets 6,421 89,081 13,622 109,124 0 109,124
Segment liabilities 0 39,810 2,599 42,409 0 42,409
Unallocated liabilities 538 0 0 598 0 588

598 39,810 2,599 43,007 0 43,007

Other segment Information
Capital expenditure 4 30,288 429 30,721 0 30,721
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NOTE 6 REVENUE, OTHER REVENUE, INCOME AND EXPENSES

Consalidated Entity Parent Company
CONTINUING OPERATIONS 30 June 2008 30 June 30 June 30 June
2007 2008 2007
$'000 $°000 $'000 $'000
Revenue
Sale of goeds and services 24,464 16,550 0 0
Revenue from fee for service contracts 63,638 53,134 0 0
Management fees 0 0 1,848 1,854
Finance revenue 123 329 957 785
Total Revenue 88,225 70,013 2,805 2,639
Expenses
(a) Depreciation, amortisation and impairment costs included in
income statement
Depreciation on assets in fee for service business 13,911 12,118 0 o
Depreciation of other assets 419 374 16 24
Amortisation of development costs 1,128 764 0 0
(b) Employee benefits expense
Wages and salaries 23,487 19,139 653 641
Payroll benefits 1,827 1,636 182 172
Contract labour 1,542 2,126 8] 0
Superannuation 686 541 95 80
Payroll taxes 1,793 1,563 49 52
Share-based payment expense 797 743 197 183
Other payroll related costs 1,682 1,809 3 3
31,814 27,557 1,179 1,141
(c) Research and development costs
Expensed in adminisirative expenses 755 335 0 0
{d) Specific items
Reversal of provision for diminution in related party receivables o 0 (8,904) 0
Consolidated Entity
DISCONTINUED OPERATION 30 June 2008 30 June 2007
$°000 000
Revenue and expenses
Sale of goods and services 0 3,498
Expenses 0 (1,820}
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment costs included in
income statement
Depreciation of other assets 0 94
Amortisation of development costs 0 357
Employee benefits expense o 1,305
ITP Settlement {Net of tax) 2,660 0
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NOTE 7 DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

(A) DISPOSAL OF REDFLEX COMMUNICATIONS SYSTEMS BUSINESS

Ouring the 2007 financial year the Communications business was divested to allow the full focus and resources of the company o be
applied to the digital Traffic camera photo enforcement business. Redflex Communications Systems Pty Ltd designed, integrated and
installed voice and data communication systems jor the commercial and defence markets. It was a separate business and was divested
eftective 30 November 2006.

Resutts for Redflex Communications Systems Pty Ltd until its disposal: 30 June 2008 30 June 2007

£'000 $000
Revenue 0 3,498
Expenses 0 (3,576)
Profit before tax o (78)
Income tax expense related o pretax profit 0 18
Net profit attributable 0 {60)
Cash Flow Information 30 June 2008 30 June 2007

$'000 $000
Net cash flow from operating activities 0 (108}
Net cash flow from investing activities 0 214
Net cash flow from financing activities a (184)
Net cash (inflow) outflow 0 (78)

{B) SETTLEMENT OF ITP LITIGATION

Subsequent to year end but prior to finalizing the 2008 annual report, an agreement was reached with the investment partners of the
Imeractive Telephony Partnership (ITP) transaction to settle the outstanding fitigation with them, by way of an all-in¢lusive payment from
Redflex of $3.8 million.

The Interactive Telephony transaction has been reported in Redflex’s annual accounts since 2000 and has been noted as a contingent
liability since 2004.

The ITP was a structured financing transaction, entered into in June 2000, for the purpose of providing commercialisation funding for the
Visible Voice subsidiary of Redflex. Visible Voice received $2.6 million in funding, and the transaction was expected to give rise to certain tax
deductions for the partners on their investment. Redflex divested the Visible Voice subsidiary to which this transaction retates in May 2002.

Subsequent to the disallowance of the anticipated tax deductions by the Australian Taxation Office, the partners issued proceedings against
Reclflex for approximately $5.2 million plus accrued interest and costs. The basis of their claim was that an Exit Price of $6.2 million was
payable on the wind-up of the transaction. Redflex, on its interpretation of the transaction documents maintained that the Exit Price was
$28,263.

The sefilement constitutes a significant concession by both Redtlex and the pariners, refative to their initial positions, in recognition that
there was risk as to the outcome of the litigation and that there would be significant additional cost, inconvenience and uncertainty in
proceeding to trial.

Because the settlement amount is now reliably determined it has been recorded as a current liability of $3.8 million with the coresponding
tax effect of $1.14 million recorded as a Deferred Tax Asset. This resulis in a reduction of pre-tax profit of $3.8 million and a reduction of
after-tax profit of $2.66 million, as recorded in the year ended 30 June 2008.

Although this concludes direct action with the Interactive Telephony Partnership, Redilex will continue its action against other parties that
advised on the transaction, with a view {0 recovery of the settliemenit amount.
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NOTE T DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS - CONTINUED

Earnings Per Share
To calculate earnings per share for the discontinued operation, the weighted average number of ordinary shares for both basic and diluted
is as per Note 11,

The foliowing table provides the profit figure used as the numerator:
30 June 2008 30 June 2007

$'000 3'000
Net profit aftributable to members of the parent company (2,660) {4,262)
For basic earnings per share (2.95) cents (4.80) cents
For diluted earnings per share (2.86) cents (4.72) cents
Reconciliation of reported profit to Appendix 4E, Preliminary Final Report
Consolidated
30 June 2008
$'000
Net profit attibutable 1o members per Appendix 4E 10,596
Profit (loss) after tax from discontinued operation (2,660)
Net Profit attributable to members of the parent company 7,936

NOTE 8 CORRECTION OF ERROR

CORRECTION OF ERROR IN RELATION TO ACCOUNTING TREATMENT FOR THE CITY OF CHICAGO CONTRACT

During the year Redflex won its third contract with the City of Chicago. Within this contract, as with the previous two contracts, Redflex is
required 1o sell the cameras and installations to the City, as well as provide full service back-office processing of citations along similar lines
to all other contracts performed under the Build Own Operate and Maintain model.

Previous accounting treatment recognised the sale of the cameras as a fransaction independent of the provision of services and, in

doing so, recorded a profit on sale of the cameras. [t has since been identified that the Chicago contracts contain clauses which call for
liquidated damages against Redflex should the cameras not operate and, therefore, the services not provided. This same clause has been
in existence since the original contract, however, it has been determined that this dependency determines that the sale and provision of
senvices be bundled together as a single transaction and accounted for accordingly,

Redflex has successfully installed approximately 140 cameras under the two previous contracts and therefore the liquidated damages
exposure on those contracts has passed. Regardless of this fact, we are required to account for the Chicago contracts as single
transactions with tolal revenues and costs associated with the full provision of cameras and services allocated on a time basis over the
remaining contract term.

Due to this error in the application of the accounting standard as interpreted in previous financial years, the operating results for the year
ended 30 June 2007 have been restated. This error had the affect of overstating profit before tax by $268,000 and overstating tax expense
by $103,000.

The comparative Balance Sheet at 30 June 2007 has also been restated. The error had the affect of understating deferred revenue by
$389,000, understating the deferred tax asset by $151,000 and averstating retained earnings by $238,000.

Basic ang diluted eamings per share for the prior year have also been restated. The amount of the correction for both basic and diluted
earnings per share was a decrease of $0.002 per share.

PARENT COMPANY RESTATEMENT.

The prior year results for the parent company have been restated by $209,000 to record entries previously taken up in other Redilex entities.
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NOTE 9 ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATION - REVISIONS OF ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

Consolidated
30 June 2008 30 June 2007
$'000 §'000
Asset retirtement obligation 1,318 0
1,318 0

The Buitd Own Cperate and Maintain business within the USA Traffic division is based on individual contracts generally with terms of
approximately 5 years. In the normal course of business, Redfiex enters into contracts with municipalities to install and operate red light
and speed enforcement equipment. Under the terms of certain of these contracts, upon termination of the contract, Redflex is required to
remove the equipment and restore the municipality’s site 10 its original condition

In prior pericds management had reviewed the provisions and determined that at that time it could not make a reasonable assessment of
the fair value of the asset retirement obligation, due 1o lack of contract termination history and uncertainty surrounding contract length and
renewal options. Pricr to the current financial year and given the reliance on future events it was not considered possible to quantify any
potential liability with respect to this matter.

During the current year the company was able 1o reliably determine a likely make-good cost that could be expected to be incurred at the
expiry of each contract.

The company will allocate the asset retirement cost to expense using a systematic and rational method over the asset's useful life.

Depreciation of the asset retirement obligation shall occur over the same time period that the liability aceretes. Depreciation shall be on a
straight-line basis, which is based primarily an the fact that the underlying equipment is depreciated on a straight-line basis.

NOTE 10 DIVIDENDS PAID AND PROPOSED

{A) RECOGNISED AMOUNTS

The directors intend to pay a dividend in respect of the year ended 30 June 2008. No dividends were proposed during the year ended 30
June 2007. Subsequent to the adoption of the 2007 financial statements the directors declared a fulty franked dividend of 3.5 cents per
share,

(B) UNRECOGNISED AMOUNTS

Parent Company
30 June 2008 30 June 2007
£'000 $'000
Final fully franked dividend on ordinary shares 4,062 3,174

After the balance sheet dates, the above dividends were proposed by the Board. These amounts have not been recagnised as a liability in
2008 but will be brought to account in 2009.

REDFLEX - MAKING A SAFER WORLD 79



NOTE 10 DIVIDENDS PAID AND PROPOSED - CONTINUED

(C) FRANKING CREDIT BALANCE

Dividends on ordinary shares

Consolidated
30 June 2008 30 June 2007

£'000 $'000
Franking credits available for the subsequent financial year are:
Franking account balance at year end at 30% (2007 — 30%) 4,048 2,103
Franking credits that wilt arise at year end from the payment of 3,760 2,646
income tax payable
Franking debits that will arise at year end from payment of 0 0
dividends
Franking credits that the entity may be prevented from distributing 0 0
in the subsequent financial year

7,808 4,749
Franking credits available for future reporting periods
Impact on the franking accourt of dividends proposed or declared (1,741) (1,337)
before the final report was authorised tor issue but not recognised
as a distribution 1o equity holders

6,067 3,412

(D) TAX RATES
Dividends proposed will be franked at the rate of 30% (2007: 30%).

NOTE 11 EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing net profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing net profit attributable to ordinary equity holders by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year adjusted for the effects of dilutive options not yet convered to shares.

80 REDFLEX ANNUAL REPORT 2008



NOTE 11 EARNINGS PER SHARE - CONTINUED

The following reflects the income and share data used in the total operations’ basic and diluted earnings per share computations:

Consolidated
30 June 2008 30 June 2007
$000 $000
Net profit from continuing operations aitributable to equity holders 10,596 7,336
Loss attributable to discontinued operation (2,660} (4,262)
Net profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent 7,936 3,074
for basic and diluted earnings per share
Thousands Thousarids
Weighted average number of ordinary shares ior basic earnings per 89,862 88,975
share
Effect of dilution - share options and performance rights not yet 3,066 2,913
converted 1o shares
Adjusted weighted average number of ordinary shares for 92,928 91,888
diluted earnings per share
Weighted average number of converled, lapsed or cancelled 642 2,191

potential ordinary shares included in diluted earnings per share.

There have been no other transactions involving ordinary shares or potential ordinary shares since the reporting date and before the

completion of these financial statements.

NOTE 12 INCOME TAX

Consolidated Entity Parent Company
30 June 2008 30 June 2007 30 June 2008 30 June 2007
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
INCOME TAX EXPENSE
Major components of income tax expense are:
INCOME STATEMENT
Current income tax
Cument income tax charge (benefit) 5,677 2,004 120 (89)
Adjustments in respect of current income tax of previous years 51 {381) 0 0
Deferred income tax
Relating 1o origination and reversal of temporary dilterences (1,091) 1,830 0 0
Income tax expense reported in the income statement 4,637 3,453 120 (89)
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NOTE 12 INCOME TAX - CONTINUED

Consolidated Entity Parent Company
30 June 2008 30 June 2007 30 June 2008 30 June 2007

$'000 §000 $'000 $000
NUMERICAL RECONCILIATION BETWEEN AGGREGATE
TAX EXPENSE RECOGNISED IN THE INCOME STATEMENT
AND TAX EXPENSE CALCULATED PER THE STATUTORY
INCOME TAX RATE
A recongiliation between tax expense and the product of
accounting profit before income tax multiplied by the Group’s
applicable income tax rate is as follows:
Accounting profit before tax from continuing operations 15,269 10,789 9,107 {810)
Profit before tax from discontinued operation {3,800) (85) {3,800) 0
Accounting profit before income tax 11,469 10,704 5,307 (810)
At the statutory income tax rate of 30% (2007: 30%) 3,441 3211 1,592 (243)
Adjustments in respect of current income tax of previous years 51 (381) 0 0
Impact of tax rate differential on foreign cperations 188 422 0 0
Research and Development concessicns (168} (153} 0 0
Reversal of provision for diminution in related party receivable ¢ 0 {2.612) 0
Other 21 336 0 154
At effective income tax rate of 30.6% (Parent 1.3%) (2007: 3,533 3,435 (1,020) (89)
32.2%, Parent 11%)
Aggregate income tax expense is attributable to
Income tax expense repored in income statement 4,673 3,453 120 (89)
Income tax attributabe to discontinued operation (1,140) {(18) (1,140) 0

3,533 3,435 (1,020) (89)

Balance Sheet Income Statement

30 June 2008 30 June 2007

30 June 2008 30 June 2007

§'000 $'000 $'000 $°000
DEFERRED TAX
Deferred income tax at 30 June relates to the following:
CONSOLIDATED
(i) Deferred tax liabilities
Accelerated depreciation for tax purposes 6,397 4,759 1,638 (84)
Taxable profit an sale of cameras ahead of recognition in the (5,596) 0 (5,596) 0
accounts
Capitalised development costs 2,105 1,721 384 697
Gross deferred tax liabilities 2,906 6,480
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NOTE 12 INCOME TAX - CONTINUED

Balance Sheet income Statement
30 June 2008 30 June 2007  30.June 2008 30 June 2007

$'000 $'000 $°000 $000
(i) Deferred tax assets
Long service leave 360 253 (107) 80
Provisions 460 586 126 (266)
Taxable profit on sale of cameras ahead of recognition in the 0 3,234 3,234 (1,334)
accounts
Accounting error — Note 8 0 151 151 0
Losses available for offset against future taxable income 1,388 1,607 218 2,737
Gross deferred tax assets 2,208 5,831
Deferred tax charge - continuing operations 49 1,830
Losses available from settlement of ITP litigation - discontinued 1,140 0 (1,140) 0
operations
Gross deferred tax assets 3,348 5,831
Deferred tax charge (1,091) 1,830

The consolidated entity has tax fosses, arising in USA, with a tax value of $1.40 million (2007: $1.61 million} that are available indefinitety for
offset against taxable proiits ot the companies and in the country in which the losses arose.

At 30 June 2008 there is ne recognised or unrecognised deferred income tax liability (2007: $NIl) for taxes that would be payable on the
unremitted earnings of the consolidated entity's subsidiaries, as the consolidated entity has no liability for addiional taxation should such
amounis be remitted.

TAX CONSOLIDATION

Redflex Holdings Limited and its 100% Australian owned subsidiaries are a tax consolidated group effective from 1 July 2003, Members of
the group have entered into a tax sharing arrangement and a tax funding agreement in order to allocate income tax expense 1o the wholly
owned subsidiaries on a prorata basis. In addition the agreement provides for the allocation of income tax liabilities between the entities
should the head entity default on its tax payment obligations. At the balance date, the possihility of defauit is remote. The head entity of the
tax consoclidated group is Redflex Holdings Limited.

TAX EFFECT ACCOUNTING BY MEMBERS OF THE TAX CONSOLIDATED GROUP

In preparing the accounts for Redflex Holdings Limited for the financial year ended 30 June 2008, the following amounts have been
recognised as tax consolidation contribution adjustments:

Parent company
30 June 2008 30 June 2007
$000 $'000
Total increase to tax expense of Redflex Holdings Limited 0 0
Total increase {reduction) to intescompany assets of Redflex Holdings Limited 3,593 0
Total increase in investment in subsidiaries in the accounts of Redflex Holdings Limited 0 1,961
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NOTE 13 CURRENT ASSETS - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Consolidated Parent Company
30Jung 2008  30dJuna 2007 30 June 2008 30 June 2007
$'000 2000 $'000 5’000
Cash at bank and in hand 6,315 6,055 329 501
Restricted cash 4,367 2,250 0 o
Short-term deposits 1,408 1,874 56 1,874
12,090 10,179 385 2,375

Cash at bank and in hand earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates

Shont term deposits are made for periods between one day and three months depending on the immediate cash reguirements of the

consolidated entity, and earn interest at the respective short-term deposit rates

The fair value of cash and cash equivalents is $12,090,000 (2007: $10.179,000).

The company collects citation revenue for cities under some contracts. The allocation of entitlements fo the city and Redtiex is made
subsequent ta each month end once the allocation has been determined. The proceeds are received in lock-box accounts and are treated

as restricted cash unti! the allocation has been determined.

Consolidated Parent Company
30 June 2008 30 June 2007 30 June 2008 30 June 2007
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Reconciliation of Cash
For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash
equivalenis comprise the following:
Cash at bank and in hand 10,682 8,305 329 501
Shon term deposits 1,408 1,874 56 1,874
12,090 10,179 385 2,375
NOTE 14 CURRENT ASSETS - TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Consolidated Parent Company
30 June 2008 30 dJune 2007 30 June 2008 30 June 2007
$°000 $'000 £'000 $'000
Trade receivables 16,284 16,523 1] 35
Provision for doubtiul debts (540) (140} 0 0
15,744 16,383 0 a5
Other receivables 0 584 54
Provision for doubtiul debts 0 0 0
0 584 54
15,744 16,967 o 89

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on 30 days.
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NOTE 14 CURRENT ASSETS - TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES - CONTINUED

Allowance for impairment loss

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generalty on 30 to 60 day terms. A provision for impairment loss is recognised when
there is objective evidence that an individuat frade receivable is impaired. An impairment loss of $400,600 (2007: $140,000) has been
recognised by the Group. These amounts have been included in the administrative expenses item.

Movements in the pravision for impairment loss were as foliows:

Consolidated Parent Company
30 June 2008 30 June 2007 30 June 2008 30 June 2007
$'000 $'000 $000 $'000
At 1 July 2007 140 0 0 0
Charge for the year 400 140 0 0
At 30 June 2008 540 140 0 0
At 30 June 2008, the ageing analysis of trade and other receivables is as follows:
Days 0-30 31-60 61-90 61-90 +91 +91
Total PONI* Ci** PDNI* Ci**
$°000 $°000 5000 £'000 §'000 $000 £'000
2008 Consolidated 16,284 13,089 918 514 0 1.21 540
2008 Parent 0 D 0 "] 0 0 0
2007 Consolidated 17,107 15,942 380 471 0 174 140
2007 Parent 89 89 0 0 0 0
* PDNI Past due not impaired
** Cl Considered impaired.
NOTE 15 CURRENT ASSETS - INVENTORIES
Consolidated Parent Company
30 June 2008  30June 2007 30 June 2008 30 June 2007
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Work in progress - at cost 873 364 1] 0
Infrastructure components - at cost 10,214 8,719 0 0
Provision far write-downs (282) (625) 0 0
10,805 8,458 0 0

Infrastructure components represemt items held to manufacture photo enforcement camera systems primarily {or use within the business

rather than for resale.
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NOTE 16 NON CURRENT ASSETS - RECEIVABLES

Consolidated Parent Company
30 June 2008 30 June 2007 30 June 2608 30 June 2007
$'000 §000 $'000 $'000
Controlled entities 0 0 29,792 25,860
Provision for non-recovery 0 0 (8,581) (15,485)
0 0 23,21 10,375
NOTE 17 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Parent Company
30 Jung 2008  30June 2007 30 June 2008 30 June 2007
$°000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Investments in controlled entities (Note 28) at cost o 0 48,257 47 673
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NOTE 18 NON CURRENT ASSETS - PROPERTY PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2008

Consolidated Parent Company
Plantand  Furniture & Computer Total Furniture & Compuiter Total
equipment Other  Equipment Other  Equipment
$'000 £'000 $'000 3'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
At 1 July 2007, net of
accumulated depreciation and
impairment 55,421 858 2,753 59,032 4 17 21
Additions 33,582 723 1,147 35,452 13 83 96
Disposals 0 (7) {71) (78) 0 0 0
Depreciation for the year (13,028) {416) (886) (14,330) (3) (13) (16)
Exchange adjustment {9,705) (82) (326) (10,113} 0 0 0
At 30 June 2008, net of
accumulated depreciation and
impairment 66,270 1,076 2,617 69,963 14 87 101
At 30 June 2007
Cost 84,034 1,705 4,617 90,356 639 114 753
Accumulated depreciation and
impairment (28,613} (847) {1,864) (3+,324) (635) 97) {732)
Net Carrying amount 55,421 858 2,753 59,032 4 17 21
At 30 June 2008
Cost 101,511 2357 4,958 108,827 652 197 849
Accumulated depreciation anc (35.241) (1,281) 2342 (38.864) (638) (110) (748)
impairment
Net Carrying amount 66,270 1,076 2,617 69,963 14 87 101
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NOTE 18 NON CURRENT ASSETS - PROPERTY PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - CONTINUED

YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2007

Consolidated Parent Company
Plantand  Furniture & Computer Total Furniture & Cor.nputer Total
equipment Other  Equipment Other  Equipment
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 £'000 $'000 $'000

At 1 July 20086, net of
accumulated depreciation and 48,501 873 2,840 52,214 11 30 41
impairment
Additions 29,596 130 995 30,721 0 4 4
Disposals (1,149} (34) (4) (1,187) 0 0 0
Reclassification {323) 345 (22 0 0 0 0
Depreciation for the year (11,435) (430) (627) {12,492) n (23) (24)
Exchange adjustment (9.769) (26) {429) {10,224} 0 0 0
At 30 June 2007, net of
accumislated depreciation and 55,421 858 2,753 59,032 10 1 21
impairment
At 30 June 2006
Cost 71,505 1,575 4,294 77,374 639 109 748
fnf;:i':;‘ﬁ:fd depreciation and (23,004) (702) (1,454) (25,160) (628) (79) (707)
Net Carrying amount 48,501 873 2,840 52,214 11 30 41
At 30 June 2007
Cost 84,034 1,705 4,617 90,356 639 13 752
f;ﬁ;g{r’:;’f;fd depreciation and (28,613) (847) (1.868)  (31,324) (629) (102) (731)
Net Carrying amount 55,421 858 2,753 59,032 10 1 21

WRITEDOWN ON PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

A write-down on plant and equipment of $384,000 relating to deactivated camera systems and program closures within the USA based
Build Own QOperate and Maintain business was recorded for the financial year ended 30 June 2007.

IMPAIRMENT LOSS

An impairment loss of $550,000, that was recorded in the financial year ended 30 June 2006, represented the write-down of certain property,
plant and equipment ta recoverable amount predominantly in Redflex Traffic Systems Inc. Thatimpairment pravision was reversed in the
financia! year ended 30 June 2007 and the assets to which it related were written off subsequent to the cancellation of the contract in which
the assets were utilised.

LEASED ASSETS

The carrying value of plant and equipment held under finance leases and hire purchase contracts at 30 June 2008 is $436,889 (2007:
$504,773).

Leased assets and assets under hire purchase contracts are pledged as security for the related finance lease and hire purchase liabilities,
the amount pledged is equal to the outstanding finance lease and hire purchase obligation as disclosed in Note 27,
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NOTE 19 NON CURRENT ASSETS - INTANGIBLE ASSETS AND GOODWILL

INTANGIBLES

YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2008

Consolidated Parent Company
Development it Totes  Development o dwill Total

Costs Costs

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $°000
At 1 July 2007, net of accumulated
depreciation and impairment 7,043 400 7,443 0 400 400
Additions 2,748 2,748 0 0
Amortisation for the year {1,128} 0 {1,128) 0 1] 0
Exchange adjustment {192} 0 (192} o] 0 0
At 30 Jl:ln? 2008, pet of accumulated 8,477 400 8.877 0 400 400
depreciation and impairment
At 30 June 2007
Cost 9,328 400 9.728 400 400
Accumulated amortisation and impairment (2,279) 0 {2,279) 0 0
Net carrying amount 7,049 400 7,449 400 400
At 30 June 2008
Cost 12,271 400 12,671 400 400
Accumulated depreciation and impairment (3,794} 0 (3,794} 0 c
Net carrying amount 8,477 400 8,877 400 400

(i) Development Costs

Development costs are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. This intangible asset has

been assessed as having a finite life and is amortised using the straight line method over a period of 10 years. The amortisation has been
recognised in the income statement as a separate line ifem. If an impairment! indication arises, the recoverable amount is estimated and an
impairment loss is recognised to the extent that the recoverable amount is lower than the carrying amount,
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NOTE 19 NON CURRENT ASSETS - INTANGIBLE ASSETS AND GOODWILL - CONTINUED

YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2007

Consolidated Parent Company
Devalopment G oodwill Totar  DeveloPment - ooewitt  Total
Costs Costs
§'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'600 $°000
ALY July 2006, net of accumulated 5,149 400 5549 0 400 400
depreciation and impairment
Additions 2,849 0 2,849
Amortisation for the year (764) 0 (764)
Exchange adjustment {185) 0 (185}
At 30 Jl'.m!e 2007, |:|et of accumulated 7.048 400 7,449 0 400 400
. depreciation and impairment
At 1 July 2006
Cost 7.096 400 7,496 8] 400 400
Accumulated amortisation and impairment (1,947} o (1,947) 0 0 0
Net carrying amount 5,149 400 5,549 0 400 400
At 30 June 2007
Cost 9,328 400 9,728 0 400 400
Accumulated depreciation and impairment {2.279) 0 (2,279) 0 0 0
Net carrying amount 7,049 400 7,449 ] 400 400
GOODWILL
Consolidated Parent Company
30 June 08 30 June O7 30 June 08 30 June 07
. $'000 £'000 $'000 $'000
Carrying amount of goodwill 400 400 400 400

Goodwill was acqguired upon the acquisition of the business and business assets of Poltech Pty Lid in 2003 and is impairment tested on
an annual basis. The recoverable amount of the Australian/International Traffic segment has been determined based upon a value in use
caleulation using cash fiow projections based on financial budgets approved by senior management covering a five year period.

IMPAIRMENT TESTING OF GOODWILL
Key assumptions used in cash flow projections to undertake impairment testing of goodwill are:

+ The basis used {o determine the value assigned to budgeted grass margins is the average gross margins achieved in the year immediatety
before the budgeted year increased for marginal expected efficiency improvements;

»  The yield on a five year Government Bond rate consisient with external informational sources is utilised;
+ The pigjected cash flows have been discounted by 13% (2007: 13%); and
= Revenue growth has been forecast based on average historical rates.

The basis used to determine the value assigned to materials and labour is the Consumner Price Index forecast for Ausirakia where resources
are used.
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NOTE 20 CURRENT LIABILITIES - TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Consolidated Parent Company
30June 2008  30.June 2007 30 June 2008 30 June 2007
$'000 $'o00 $000 $'000
Trade payables 13,676 10,295 455 0
Deferred revenue 1,887 1,453 0 0
Litigation Settlement - discontinugd operation 3,800 0 3,800 0
19,363 11,748 4,255 0

Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally setiled on 30 day terms.

Deferred revenue represents payments received for which services remain to be provided. Amounts are recognised as revenue only when

service has been provided. Deferred revenue normally applies to pericds under one year in duration,

NOTE 21 CURRENT LIABILITIES - PROVISIONS

Consolidated Parent Company
30 June 2008 30 June 2007 30 June 2008 30 June 2007
$000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Provision for warranty 592 246 0 0
Employee entitlements 952 719 237 212
1,544 965 237 212

MAINTENANCE WARRANTIES

A provision is recognised for expected warranty claims on products sold during the last two vears, based on past experience of the level of

repairs and make good costs.

Itis expected that most of these costs will be incurred in the next financial year and all will have been incurred within two years of the

balance sheet date.

Assumptions used to calculate the provision for warranties were based on current sales levels and current information avaifable about

refurns based on the warranty period for products.
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NOTE 22 NON CURRENT LIABILITIES - PROVISIONS

Consolidated Parent Company
30 June 2008 30 June 2007 30 June 2008 30 June 2007
3000 $°000 $'000 2'000
Emptoyee entilements 77 128 3 25
Movements in provisions en‘z;;fr:?ey:: vaf;‘:;;?; Total
$'000 $'000 $'000
CONSOLIDATED
At 1 July 2007 847 246 1,093
Arising during the year 656 700 1,356
Utilised during the year (474) (99) (573}
Unused amourts reversed 0 (255) (255)
At 30 June 2008 1,029 582 1,621
Current 2008 952 592 1,544
Non current 2008 77 0 77
At 30 June 2008 1,029 592 1,621
Current 2007 719 246 965
Non current 2007 128 0 128
At 30 June 2007 847 246 1,093

The movement in the employee entitlements provision relates to extra entitlements incurred during the financial year.

Employee
entitlements

$'000

PARENT COMPANY
At 1 July 2007

Arising during the year
Utilised during the year
At 30 June 2008

Current 2008
Non current 2008
At 30 June 2008

Current 2007
Non current 2007
At 30 June 2007
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NOTE 22 NON CURRENT LIABILITIES - PROVISIONS - CONTINUED

SUPERANNUATION

The consclidated entity has arranged Group superannuation plans whereby the employee and the employer contribute varying amounts
of superannuation, depending on an employee’s remuneration package. Employees have the cheice of which superannuation fund they
wish to participate in. In addition, the consolidated entity had during the year ended 30 June 2008 a statutory responsibility to contribute
9% of an Australian employee's salary, which is also paid to the funds of choice. All of the economic entities’ responsibilities in respect to
superannuation commitments relating to the year ended 30 June 2008 have been discharged.

NOTE 23 INTEREST-BEARING LOANS AND BORROWINGS

Consolidated Parent Compary
30 June 2008 30 June 2007 30 June 2008 30 June 2007
5000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Current
Obligations under finance leases and hire purchase contracts 295 3 0 0
295 3 0 0
Non-Current
Obligations under finance leases and hire purchase contracts 402 356 0 0
Bank borrowings 33,281 20,978 ] 0
33,683 21,334 0 0

Redflex Holdings Limited, has a US$50 million (AUS$52.1 million) secured revolving credit facility to fund the growth within the USA Traffic
Division. BMO Capital Markets, in conjunction with the Commonwealth Bank was granted a first and only priority senior security interest
over all the assets of Redflex Traffic Systems Inc and its subsidiaries, together with a fixed and floating charge over all the assets and
undertakings of Redflex Holdings Limited. The loan principal is not required to be repaid within the next twelve months and is available for
redraw to the facility limit if repaid.

Lease liabilities are secured by way of a charge over the leased assets.

{A) FAIR VALUE
The carrying amount of the Group’s current and non-current borrowings approximate their fair value.
(B) INTEREST RATE, FOREIGN EXCHANGE AND LIQUIDITY RISK

Details regarding interest rate, foreign exchange and liquidity risk are disclosed in Note 3.,

Financing facilities available

Consolidated Parent Company
30 June 2008 30 June 2007  30.June 2008 30 June 2007

$000 $'000 $°000 $'000
Total facilities
Bank borrowings 52,080 29,450 0 0
Facilities used at reporting date
Bank borrowings 33,281 20,978 0
Security for letters of credit issued to customers 276 317
Facilities unused at reporting date 18,523 8,155 0
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NOTE 24 CONTRIBUTED EQUITY

Consolidated
30 June 2008 30 June 2007
$'000 $'000
ORDINARY SHARES:
Issued and fully paid 83,161 81,243
MOVEMENTS [N ORDINARY SHARES ON ISSUE
T housands S0
At 1 July 2006 88,462 80,959
Issued during the year as a result of
Conversion of options 445 284
Executive Remuneration Plan 68 0
At 30 June 2007 88,975 81,243
{ssued during the year as a result of
Dividend Reinvestment Plan 643 192
Vesting of Performance Rights under the LTI Plan 347 0
Conversion of options 295 1,726
At 30 June 2008 90,260 83,161

Terms and Conditions of Contributed Equity

Ordinary shares have the right to receive dividends as declared and, in the event of winding up the company, to participate in the proceeds
from the sale of all surplus assets in proportion to the number of and amounts paid up on shares held.
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NOTE 25 RETAINED EARNINGS AND RESERVES

MOVEMENTS IN RETAINED EARNINGS WERE AS FOLLOWS:

Consolidated Parent Company
30June 2008 30 June 2007 30 June 2008 30 June 2007
$'060 $'000 §°000 $'000
Balance 1 July 2007 (8,467) {(11,541) {25,111) (24,390)
Net profit 7,936 3,074 6,327 (721)
Dividends paid (3.174) 0 (3.174) 0
Currency translation (20) 0 0 0
Balance 30 June 2008 {3,725) (8,467) (21,958) (25,111}

NATURE AND PURPOSE OF RESERVES

Foreign currency transfalion reserve

The foreign currency translation reserve is used to record exchange differences arising from the translation of the financial statements of
foreign subsidiaries.

Employee Equity Beneflits Reserve
The employee equity benefits reserve is used to record the value of share based payments provided to employees, including key

management personnel, as part of their remuneration. Refer to Note 28 for further details of these plans.

MOVEMENTS IN RESERVES WERE AS FOLLOWS:

Consolidated Parent Company

Foreign Employae Employee
currency equity benefits Total  equity benefits Total

transfation reserve reserve
$°000 $000 3000 $°600 $'000
At 30 June 2008 (1,176) 2,612 1,436 2,612 2,612
Cost of share based payments 0 743 743 743 743
tifect of exchange rate movement {8,838) 0 (8,838) 0 0
At 30 June 2007 (10,014) 3,355 (6,659) 3,355 3,355
Cost of share based payments 0 797 797 797 797
Effect of exchange rate movement {8,190) 0 (8,190) 0 0
At 30 June 2008 (18,204) 4,152 {14,052) 4,152 4,152
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NOTE 26 <CASH FLOW STATEMENT RECONCILIATION

RECONCILIATION OF NET PROFIT AFTER TAX TO NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATIONS

Consolidated Parent Company
30 June 2008 30 June 2007 30 June 2008 30 June 2007
$000 $°000 $°000 3000
RECONCILIATION OF CASH FLOW STATEMENT
For the purposes of the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash
equivalents comprise the following:
Cash at bank and in hand 10,682 8,305 329 501
Short-term deposits 1,408 1.874 56 1,874
12,090 10,179 385 2,375
Reconciliation from the net profit after tax to the net cash flows
from operations
Net Profit/(Loss) after income tax from confinuing operations 10,596 7,336 8,987 (721)
Non Cash Flow Items
Depreciation expense 14,330 12,492 16 24
Amortisation of intangibles 1,128 764 0 0
Provision for employee entitlements 697 30 3 42
Impaiment and write-down of property, plant and equipment 0 983 0 0
Share based paymenis 797 743 197 193
Reversal of provision for diminution in related party receivables 0 0 (8,904) 0
Change in operating Assets and Liabilities
Decrease/f{Increase) in prepayments {1,779) {1,228) 0 0
Decrease/(Increase) in receivables - current (1,044) {4,589) 128 (46)
Decrease/{Increase) in inventories (4,021) 2,333 ¢ ]
Decrease/{Increase) in deferred tax asset 3,414 1,217 1 750
Increase/{Decrease) in deferred tax kability {(2,727) (614) 0 704
Increase/{Decrease) in deferred revenue 1,073 797 0 1}
Increasef(Decrease) in taxation provisions 1,770 1,127 (1,871) (2,477)
Increase/(Decrease) in payables 4,308 4,159 455 44
Decrease/{Increase) in deferred costs assel (3,587) 0 0 1}
Net cash from operating activities 24,955 25,550 {988) (1,487)

Disclosure of financing facilities is shown in Note 22,
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NOTE 27 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

{A) BANK INDEMNITY GUARANTEES

The company's bankers have issued indemnity guaraniees ta certain customers in respect of rental deposits, bid bonds and performance
bonds of $1,532,340 (2007: $1,783,000).

(B) OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS - GROUP AS LESSEE

The Group has entered into commercial leases on centain computer equipment which the Group considers it is not in its best interests to
purchase,

Operating leases pertain to leased premises in Australia and the USA. These leases have expiry dates varying from one year to less than
seven years. Renewal options exist on all major leased premises at the company's discretion for periods of up to 5 years.

Consolidated Parent Company
30 June 2008 30 June 2007 30 June 2008 30 June 2007
$'000 3000 §000 8000
Within 1 year 1,367 1,350 449 457
After 1 year but not more than 5 years 6,693 1,043 799 0
More than § years 3,327 0 0 0
11,387 2,393 1,248 457

The weighted average interest rate on operating leases at 30 June 2008 was 7.75% excluding operating leases on premises (2007: 8.7%)
{C) FINANCE LEASE COMMITMENTS - GROUP AS LESSEE

Consolidated
30 June 2008 30 June 2008 30 June 2007 30 June 2007

Minimum Present value Minimum Present valug
lease of payments lease of payments
payments payments

$°000 $000 $'000 $'000

Within 1 year 313 295 417 391
After 1 year but not more than 5 years 418 402 406 356
Total minimum lease payments 731 697 823 747
Less amounts representing finance charges (34) o {76) 0
Present value of minimum lease payments 697 697 747 747

Finance teases generally relate to leased motor vehicles within the USA.

{D} CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

At 30 June 2008 the Group has commitments of $6,157.000 (2007: $3,644,000) principally relating to the installation of camera systems in
contracted cities within Redflex Traffic Systems Inc’s Build Own Operate and Maintain business in the USA. The company has contracts
with numerous cities and municipalities within the USA. The terms of contract specify that Redflex can install a number of cameras up to
a specified limit provided that Redflex and the customer agree on the location and suitability of the proposed installations. Accordingly,
the company has obligations to install further camera systems for these customers, however, it is not possible to deiermine how many will
ultimately be installed and therefore the commitments shown represent only those where tirm orders have been placed with contractors for
current installations.
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NOTE 27 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES - CONTINUED

The commitments contracted for at reporting date, but not provided for are:

Consolidated Parent Compary
30 June 2008 30 June 2007 30 June 2008 30 June 2007
$000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Within one year 8,157 3,644 0 0
Alter one years but not more than five years 0 0 ] 0
Longer than live years 0 0 0 0
6,157 3,644 0 0

NOTE 26 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE

Redflex Holciings Limited is the parent and ultimate holding company and is incorporated in Australia,

The consclidated financial statements include the financial statements of Redflex Holdings Limited and the subsidiaries listed in the

tollowing table:

SHARES IN CONTROLLED ENTITIES

Country of % Equity interest Investment
Incorporation 30 June 2008 30 June 2007 30 June 2008 30 June 2007
$'000 $£'000
Controlled entities of Redflex Holdings Limited
Redflex Enforcement Services Pty Lid Australia 100 100 0 0
Redflex Pty Ltd Australia 100 100 3,357 3,357
Aerospace Systems Pty Ltd Australia 100 100 100 100
RTS R & D Pty Ltd Australia 100 100 0 Q
Redflex Traffic Systems (Canada} Inc Canada 100 100 0 0
Redflex Traffic Systems Limited UK 100 100 0 0
Redflex Traffic Systems Inc USA 100 100 44,800 44216
48,257 47,673
Controlled entities of Redflex Pty Ltd
Redflex Traffic Systems Australia Pty Lid Austratia 100 100
APR Investments Pte Lid (**) Singapore 0 100
Controlled entities of Redflex Traffic Systems
Inc
Redflex Traffic Systems Pty Ltd Austratia 100 100
Redflex Traffic Systems (California) Inc USA 100 100
Controlled entities of Redflex Trafiic Systems
Pty Uid
Redflex Traffic Pty Lid (*) Australia 100 0

* This company was incorporated during the year.

** This company did not operate and was deregistered.
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NOTE 28 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE - CONTINUED

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

Sales to and purchases from related parties are made as arms length transactions at normal market prices and on normal commercial

terms. These transactions relate to the day to day activities between companies in the Group.

The following amounts represent the loan balances at year end.

Consolidated Parent Company
30 June 2008  30June 2007 30 June 2008 30 June 2007
$°000 $°000 $'000 %'000
Provision of interest free unsecured loans to wholly owned
subsidiaries {at call)
- to related entities 0 0 19,618 10,375
NOTE 29 KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL
(A) DETAILS OF KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL
Directors
Christopher Cooper Chairman {non-executive)
Aobin Debernardi Directer (non-executive)
Peter Lewinsky Director (non-executive)
Roger Sawley Directer (non-executive)
Graham Davie Chief Executive Cficer
Karen Finley Chief Executive Officer, Redflex Traitic Systemns Inc
Executives
Aaron Rosenberg Vice President Sales, Redflex Traffic Systems Inc
Cristina Weekes Vice President Marketing, Redflex Traffic Systems Inc
Ron Johnson Group Chief Financial Officer
Ricardo Fiusco General Manager, Redflex Traffic Systems Pty Ltd
Marilyn Stephens Company Secretary
{B) COMPENSATION OF KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL
Consolidated Parent Company
30 June 2008 30 June 2007 30 June 2008 30 June 2007
$'000 $'000 $'000 $£°000
Short term employee benefits 2,091 1,739 937 601
Post-employment benefits 99 80 79 64
tong term employment benefits 13 13 10 9
Share based paymenis 506 531 184 229
2,709 2,363 1,210 903
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NOTE 29 KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL - CONTINUED

(C) OPTIONS HELD BY KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

Options held Options  Options held Options
at 1 July 2007 exercised at 30 June exercisable
2008
Directors

Christopher Cooper 0 0 0 0
Robin Debernardi 0 Q 0 0
Peter Lewinsky 0 0 0 0
Roger Sawley ¢ 0 0 0
Graham Davie 0 0 0 0
Karen Finley 135,000 0 135,000 135,000
135,000 o 135,000 135,000

Executives
Aaron Rosenberg 20,000 20,000 0 0
Cristina Weekes 0 0 0 0
Ron Johnson 0 0 0 0
Ricardo Fiusco 135,000 135,000 0 0
Marilyn Stephens 140,000 140,000 v} 0
295,000 295,000 0 0
Options held Options  Options held Options
at 1 July 2006 exercised at 30 June exercisable

2007
Directors

Christopher Cooper 0 ¢ 0 0
Robin Debermardi 0 0 0 0
Peter Lewinsky 0 0 0 0
Roger Sawley 0 0 0 0
Graham Davie 0 0 0 0
Karen Finley 135,000 0 135,000 135,000
135,000 135,000 135,000

Executives
Aaron Rosenberg 120,000 100,000 20,000 20,000
Cristina Weekes o 0 0 0
Ren Johnson o} 0 0 0
Ricardo Fiusco 135,000 0 135,000 135,000
Marilyn Stephens 140,000 0 140,000 140,000
395,000 100,000 295,000 295,000
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NOTE 29 KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL - CONTINUED

(D} SHARES HELD BY KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

Shares held at Vesting of  Conversion of  Bought (Sold)  Shares held at
1July 2007  Performance Options on market 30 June 2008
Rights
Directors

Christopher Cooper 990,996 0 0 151,921 1,142,917
Robin Debernardi 3,25526 4 0 0 (438,598) 2,816,666
Peter Lewinsky 44,716 0 0 582 45,298
Roger Sawley 0 0 o 24,000 24,000
Graham Davie 1,366,479 73,955 0 18,772 1,459,206
Karen Finley 68,857 87,555 0 {33,430) 122,982
5,726,312 161,510 0 (276,753) 5,611,069

Executives
Aaron Rosenberg &) 79,596 20,000 {80,000} 19,596
Cristina Weekes 0 0 0 0 0
Ren Johnson 293,370 35,498 0 (63,370) 265,498
Ricardo Fiusco * 210,000 36,510 135,000 (81,800) 298,710
Marilyn Stephens 64,160 21,693 140,000 0 225,853
567,530 173,297 295,000 (225,170) 810,657
Shares held at Granted as  Conversion of Bought (Sold) Shares held at
1July 2006  remuneration Qptions on market 30 June 2007

Directors

Christopher Cooper 990,996 0 0 0 990,996
Rebin Debernardi 3,255,264 0 0 0 3,255,264
Peter Lewinsky 44,716 0 0 0 44,716
Roger Sawley 0 0 0 0 0
Graham Davie 1,298,230 68,249 0 0 1,366,479
Karen Finley 68,857 1] 0 0 68,857
5,658,063 0 0 0 32,502

Executives
Aaron Rosenberg 4] 0 100,000 (100,000} 0
Cristina Weekes 0 0 0 0 0
Ron Johnson 293,370 0 0 0 293,370
Ricardo Fiusco* 210,000 0 0 0 210,000
Marilyn Stephens 64,160 0 0 0 64,160
567,530 0 100,000 (100,000) 567,530

* shares held indirectly

All equity transactions with key management persannel, other than transactions resuiting from the exercise of remuneration options and
the issue of shares from vested performance rights, have been entered into under terms and conditions no more favourable than those the

Group would have adopted if dealing at arm’s length.
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NOTE 30 SHARE-BASED REMUNERATION PLANS

{a) Types of Share-Based Remuneration Plans

(i) Long Termn Incentive Plan

in July 2006 Redflex estahlished a Long Term Incentive Plan (LTIP) for executives. The LTIP was announced in July 2008 and the Rules for
Australian and United States executives are published on Redilex's Web site. The LTIP is based on grants of Performance Rights which
vest into shares on a 1 for 1 basis at no cost to the employee subject to satisfaction of performance hurdles. Settlement of the Periormance
Rights can be made in accordance with the LTIP Rules,

The performance measure is Redflex Holdings Limited's relative total shareholder return (TSR} periormance compared with the TSR
performance of a comparator group consisting of companies in the S&P/ASX 300 at grant date over the same period. TSR is calculated as
the change in capital value of Redflex Holdings Limited over a five-year period, plus dividends expressed as a percentage of the opening
capital value.

The performance period is generally expected to be three years, however, the initial offers were transitional arrangements with shorter
performance periods designed 16 provide a degree of continuity of long term incentives to executives who previously participated in the
company's Employee Option Plan,

The performance hurdle has a threshold minimum below which the Performance Rights will lapse. No Performance Rights will vest if
Rediftex Holdings Limited's TSR performance is less than the TSR performance achieved by 50% of the companies in the comparator

group, and 50% will vest if this hurdle is reached. The maximum number of Performance Rights in a grant will vest if the company's TSR
performance is equal to or greater than the TSR performance achieved by 75% of the companies in the comparator group. If the company’s
TSR performance is between the two thresholds the number of Performance Rights that vest is determinec on a directly proportional basis.

(i) Executive Share Plan

No shares were issued under the Executive Share Plan (ESP) in the financial year ended 30 June 2008, and, in view of the Long Term
Incentive Plan, no further shares are expected to be issued. In the financial year ended 30 June 2007, pursuant to the ESP, 68,249 shares
were issued to Graham Davie, the Chief Executive Officer. Details of Mr Davie's remuneration are included in the Remuneration Report,

(i) Empioyee Option Plan

An Employee Option Plan exists whereby Redflex could grant non-transferable options over ordinary shares to executives and certain
members of staff. Options were issued in accordance with performance guidelines established by the directors, for $nil consideration and
the options expire after 5 years. Performance conditions relate only to those remaining in service during the vesting period. The options are
not quoted on the ASX.

(b) Summary of employee remuneration arrangements
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NOTE 30 SHARE-BASED REMUNERATION PLANS - CONTINUED

(i) Employee Option Pian

The number and weighted average exercise prices (WAEP) of, and movements in, share options issued during the year is as follows:

2008 2007
Number WAEP Number WAEP
RDFAS options; exercise price of a nominal $0.58 increasing at the rate of 3%
per annum {compounding) until exercise; granted 26 September 2003; expiring
30 September 2008.
Qutstanding at the beginning of the year 430,000 0.64 875,000 0.63
Granted during the year 0 0 0 0
Forfeited during the year 0 0 0 0
Exercised during the year (295,000) 0.649  (445,000) 0.6357
Expired during the year 0 0 Q 0
Qutstanding at the end of the year 135,000 0.66 430,000 0.64
RDFAT options; exercise price of $2.06 adjusted by the movement in the ASX
All Ordinaries Index calculated as a percentage from 2 June 2004 {grant date)
to the last business day of the month pricr to date of exercise; granted 1 June
2004, expiring 3 June 2009.
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 1,059,000 3.76 1,260,000 2.98
Granted during the year 4] 0 0 0
Forfeited during the year (46,000) 3.00 (201,000 3.12
Exercised during the year 0 0 0 0
Expired during the year 0 0 0 0
QOutstanding at the end of the year 1,013,000 3.16 1,059,000 3.76
(i) Long Term Incentive Plan for Executives
2008 2007

No. WAEP No. WAEP
Performance Rights
Qutstanding at the beginning of the year 1,545,659 0 0 0
Granted during the year 516,318 0 1,619,390 0
Forfeited during the year (7.121) 0 (73,731) 0
Vested during the year (347,288) 0 0 0
Lapsed during the year (2.942) 0 o 0
Outstanding at the end of the year 1,704,626 0 1,545,659 0

{c)} Weighted average remaining contractual life

The weighted average remaining contractual life of the share options cutstanding at 30 June 2008 is 0.5 years (2007: 1.5 years)

{d) Range of exercise price
The range of exercise prices for options outstanding at the end of the year was $0.66 - $3.16.

As the range of exercise prices is wide, refer to section (b) (i) above for further information in assessing the number and timing of additional
shares that may be issued and the cash that may be received upon the exercise of options.
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NOTE 30 SHARE-BASED REMUNERATION PLANS - CONTINUED

{e) Weighted average fair vatue

RDFAS RODFAT Total
Number of options at 30 June 2008 135,000 1,013,000 1,148,000
Weighted average fair value 5 3 3
30 June 2007 0 35,999 35,999
30 June 2008 0 0 0

{f) Option pricing model

Equity-seltled transactions

The fair value of each aption is estimated on the date of the grant using a Black-Scholes option formula, with the following weighted average
assumptions used for grants made on 30 June 2004, 2003 and 2002. The valuation of the options was performed independently by Pitcher
Partners.

Black-Scholes option formula RDFAS RODFAT
Share price 0.89 2.22
Exercise price 0.5859 2.06
Expected volatility 33% 33%
Risk-free interest rate 521% 5.52%
Expected life of option 5 years 5 years

The gividend yield reflected the assumption that no dividend had been paid nor would a dividend be paid earlier than 30 June 2006.
The expected life of the optian is the maximum period allowable and is not necessarily indicative of exercise patterns that may occur.
The expected volatility is determined with reference to peer companies and is designed 10 be indicative of future trends which may not
necessarily be the actual outcome,

All options are fully vested.

The weighted average remaining contraciual life for the share options cutstanding as at 30 June 2008 is between 0.25 and 1 year (2007 1
and 2 years).

(g) Performance rights pricing model

Equity-settled transactions

The fair value of each performance right is estimated on the date of the grant using a Black-Scholes option formula, with a Monte Carlo
simulation 1o take market conditions into consideration, with the following weighted average assumptions used for grants made during the
year. The valuation of the performance rights was performed independently by Mercers.

The company uses a measure of Total Shareholder Return (TSR) as the performance hurdle for the LTI Plan, TSR is calculated as the
change in capital value of Redflex Holdings Limited over a three-year period, plus dividends expressed as a percentage of the opening
capital value. The use of a relative TSR based hurdie is currently market best practice as it ensures an alignment between comparative
shareholder return and rewards for executives.

In assessing whether the performance hurdles for each grant have been met, the company receives independent data from its external
consultant which benchmarks the company's TSR growth from the commencement of each grant against that of the pre-seleciec

peer group (S&P/ASX 300) which is the comparison group selected by the board based on recommendations from Mercers. The key
rmanagement personnel must satisfy the service conditions set at grant date. Periormance Rights vest progressively from a threshold level
of performance 1o a maximum level, evaluated against the comparator group of companies.
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NOTE 31 FAIR VALUE AND INTEREST RATE RISK

Performance Rights Formula

Year ended 30 June 2008 1 October

2007
Share price $2.83
Expected volatility 35%
Risk-free interest rate 6.44%
Expected life of performance right 3 years
Dividend yield 1.2%
Year ended 30 June 2007 1 July 2006 1 July 2006 1 October

2006 .

Share price $1.755 $1.755 $2.30
Expected volatility 40% 40% 40%
Risk-iree interest rate 5.7% 5.7% 5.8%
Expected life of performance right 15 months 27 months 3 years i

The dividend yield reflects the fact that no dividend has been previcusly paid and the expected life of the right is the period up to vesting.
The expected volatility is based on the company’s historical volatility and is designed to be indicative of future trends, which may alsc not
necessarily be the actual outcome.

The weighted average remaining contractual life for the performance rights is 3 years (2007: between 17 months and 3 years).

{h) Value of Qptions granted to certain USA employees

The difference between the market price and the exercise price at the time of exercise in respect of options granted to certain USA
employees gives rise to a tax deduction within our USA subsidiary. The value of these tax deductions are recouped directly in the Employee
Equity Benefits Reserve to the extent they exceed the tax value of the expense recorded in relation to the options.

Fair values

All assets and kabilities recognised in the balance sheet, whether they are carried at cost or at fair value, are recognised at amounts that
represent a reasonable approximation of fair value unless otherwise statec in the applicable notes.

Interest rate risk .

The {ollowing table sets out the carrying amount, by maturity, of financial instruments exposed to interest rate risk:
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NOTE 31 FAIR VALUE AND INTEREST RATE RISK - CONTINUED
CONSOLIDATED
<iyear >1-<2yrs >2-<3yrs >3-<dyrs >4-<5yrs >oyrs Total
$'000 $'000 §'000 $'000 £'000 $'000 $°000
Year ended 30 June 2008
Financial Assets
Floating rate
Cash assets 12,090 0 0 0 0 0 12,090
Weighted average effective interest rate 2.5% 2.5%
Financial Liabilities
Fixed rate
Obligations under finance leases and hire 295 294 150 26 0 0 697
purchase contracts
Weighted average efiective interest rate 7.75% 7.75%
Floating rate
Bank Borrowings 0 33,281 0 0 0 0 33,281
Weighted average effective interest rate 5.85% 5.85%
Year ended 30 June 2007
Financial Assets
Floating rate
Cash assets 10,179 0 0 0 0 0 10,179
Weighted average effective interest rate 3.5% 3.5%
Financial Liabilities
Fixed rate
Obligations under finance leases and hire 391 126 95 o5 40 0 747
purchase contracts
Weighted average effective interest rate 8.1% 8.1%
Floating rate
Bank Borrowings Y 20,978 0 0 0 0 20,978
Weighted average effective interest rate 0 7.05% 7.05%
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NOTE 31 FAIR VALUE AND INTEREST RATE RISK - CONTINUED

PARENT COMPANY

<Tyear >7-<2ys >2-<3yrs >3-<4yrs >4-<5yrs >S5S Total
$'000 $'060 $000 §°000 $°000 000 $'000

Year ended 30 June 2008

Financial Assets
Floating rate

Cash assets 385 0 0 0 0 0 385
Weighted average effective interest rate 2.5% 2.5%
Year ended 30 June 2007

Financial Assets
Floating rate

Cash assets 2,375 0 0 0 0 0 2,375
5.5%

Weighted average effective interest rate 5.5%

Interest on financial instruments ctassified as floating rate is re-priced at intervals of less than one year.
Interest on financial instruments classified as fixed rate is fixed untii maturity of the instrument.

The other financial instuments of the Group and the parent company that are not included in the above tables are non-interest bearing and
therefore not subject to interest rate risk.

The bank borrowings are scheduled for repayment by 1 June 2011,

NOTE 32 EVENTS AFTER BALANCE SHEET DATE

On 22 August 2008 the directors declared a final dividend on ordinary shares in respect of the 2008 financial year. The total amount of the
dividend is $4,061,722 which represents a fully franked dividend of 4.5 cents per share.

There were no other significant events subsequent 1o year end and prior ta the date of this report that have not been dealt with elsewhere in
this report. .
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NOTE 33 AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION

Consolidated Parent Company
30 Jung 2008 30 June 2007 30 June 2008 30 .June 2007
3 § 3 3
Amount received or due and receivable by Ernst & Young for:
;::? ;?::L gr ;g:f;; ;;t?: ;i:anycial report of the entity and any other 338 492 280,247 338,492 280.247
Other services in relation to the entity and any other entity in 0
the consalidated entity for:
- assurance related 15,000 11,260 0 0
- taxation matters 5,000 386,506 0 0
Amount received or due and receivable by related practices of
Ermnst & Young (Australia) for:
- audits of subsidiaries 211,606 312,977 0 0
570,098 990,990 338,492 280,247
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Melbourne VIC 3000 Australia
GPO Box 67 Melbourne VIC 3001

Tel: +61 3 5288 8000
Fax: +61 38650 7777
WWW.0Y.Com/3u
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of Redflex Holdings Limited

Report on the Financial Report

We have audited the accompanying financial report of Redflex Holdings Limited, which comprises the balance
sheet as at 30 June 2008, and the income statement, statement of changes in equity and cash flow statement
for the year ended on that date, a summary of significant accounting policies, other explanatory notes and the
directors’ declaration of the consolidated entity comprising the company and the entities it controlled at the
year's end or from time to time during the financial year.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Report

The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial report in
accordance with the Australian Accounting Standards (including the Australian Accounting Interpretations) and
the Corporations Act 2001. This respaonsibility includes establishing and maintaining internal controls relevant
to the preparation and fair presentation of the financiat report that is free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates
that are reasonable in the circumstances. In Note 2, the directors also state that the financial report, comprising
the financial statements and notes, complies with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with Australian Auditing Standards and International Standards on Auditing. These Auditing
Standards require that we comply with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit engagements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial report is free from material
misstaternent.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial report. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial repart, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
we consider internal controls relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial report in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal controls. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Independence

In conducting our audit we have met the independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001. We have
given to the directors of the company a written Auditor’s Independence Declaration, a copy of which is included
in the directors’ report. The Auditor's Independence Declaration would have been expressed in the same terms if
it had been given to the directors at the date this auditor’s report was signed. In addition to our audit of the
financial report, we were engaged to undertake the services disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.
The provision of these services has not impaired our independence.

Liability limited by a scheme approved
under Professional Standards Legislation
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Auditor's Opinion

In our opinion:
1. the financial report of Redflex Holdings Limited is in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including:

i giving a true and fair view of the financial position of Redflex Holdings Limited and the
consolidated entity at 30 June 2008 and of their performance for the year ended an that date;
and

ii  complying with Australian Accounting Standards (including the Australian Accounting
Interpretations) and the Corporations Regulations 2001.

2. the financial report also complies with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board.

Report on the Remuneration Report

We have audited the Remuneration Report included in pages 21 to 29 of the directors’ report for the year
ended 30 June 2008. The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation and presentation of the
Remuneration Report in accordance with section 300A of the Corporations Act 2001. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on the Remuneration Report, based on our audit conducted in accordance with Australian
Auditing Standards.

Auditor’s Opinion

In our opinion the Remuneration Report of Redflex Holdings Limited for the year ended 30 June 2008, complies
with section 300A of the Corporations Act 2001.

Ecuat # nw:f

Ernst & Young

D P

David Petersen
Partner

Metbourne

30 September 2008




In accordance with a resolution of the directors of Redflex Holdings Limited | state that:
In the opinion of the directors:

(a) the financial statements and notes of the company and the consclidated entity are in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001,
including:

(i) giving a true and fair view of the company’s and consalidated entity’s financial position as at 30 June 2008 and of their
performance for the year ended on that date; and

iy complying with Accounting Standards and Corporations Regulations 2001; and

(b) there are reasonable grounds to believe that the company will be able to pay its debts as and when they become due and payable.

{¢) this declaration has been made after receiving the declarations required to be made to the directors in accordance with section 295A of
the Corporations Act 2001 for the financial year ending 30 June 2008.

On behalf of the board

Graham Davie
Director

Melbourne

30 September 2008
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Additional information required by the ASX and not shown elsewhere in this report is as follows. This information is current as at 29 August

2008,

DISTRIBUTION OF EQUITY SECURITIES

There were 2,621 holders of 90,260,489 fully paid ordinary shares quoted on the ASX. These shares cany one vote per share and carry the

rights {o dividends.
Number of
Holdars Ordinary shares
1-1,000 537 315,968
1,001 - 5,000 1,060 2,805,428
5,001 - 10,000 432 3,224,384
10,001 - 100,000 522 14,538,821
100,001 — over 70 69,375,820
2,621 90,260,489
Holding less than a marketable parcel 9N 7,290
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS
Ordinary Percentage
Shares
Renaissance Smaller Companies Pty Lid 10,046,321 11.13
Thorney Holdings Pty Limited 6,744,806 7.47
Hunter Hall Invesiment Management Lid 6,303,122 6.98
TWENTY LARGEST HOLDERS OF QUOTED EQUITY SECURITIES
Units Held at end of % of fssued
Name period Capital
National Nominees Limited 8,635,958 a.62
Cogent Nominees Pty Limited 8,426,568 9.39
J P Morgan Nominees Australia Limited 7,806,008 8.70
Thomey Holdings Pty Ltd 8,289,058 7.01
Ms Cheng Man Oy 3,671,502 3.98
Mr Melford Henry Russell Roberts 3,257,421 3.63
RBC Dexia Investor Services Australia Nominees Pty Ltd 2,852,436 3.18
Nellstar Pty Ltd 2473611 2.76
Macrsihanish Pty Ltd 2,442,193 272
ANZ Nominees Limited 2,109,761 235
O'Connor Holdings Pty Ltd 1,603,519 1.79
Vertex Bianca Nominees Ply Ltd 1,629,232 1.70
Coningsby Nominees Pty Ltd 1,463,141 1.83
tnvestaco Pty Ltd 1.343.276 1.50
Mrs Elizabeth Geraldine Cooper 1,204,697 1.44
Mr Graham William Davie 918,495 1.02
Citicorp Nominees Pty Limited 861,304 0.96
Blue Jade Pty Ltd 741,368 0.83
HSBC Custody Nominees (Australia) Limited 716,173 0.80
Mr Sydney Ho 667,358 0.74
Top 20 Holders of Ordinary Fully Paid Shares 59,003,259 65.75
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Appendix 3Y RECFIVED
_ SBE 2L A g
Change of Director’s Interest Notice __

AR T R
-ty ‘A‘r-‘.t:'f"‘

Information or documents not available now must be given to ASX as soon as available. Infor':ma?i'oh and documents
given to ASX become ASX s property and may be made public.

Introduced 30/8/2001.

' Name of entity REDFLEX HOLDINGS LIMITED
ABN 96 069 306 216

¥
We (the entity) give ASX the following information under listing rule 3.19A.2 and as agent for the director
for the purposes of section 205G of the Corporations Act.

Name of Director ROGER SAWLEY
Date of last notice 13 October 2008
Date of this notice 17 October 2008

Part 1 - Change of director’s relevant interests in securities

In the case of a trust, this includes interests in the trust made available by the responsible entity of the trust.

Note; In the case of a company, interests which come within paragraph (i) of the definition of “notifiable interests of a director”
should be disclosed in this part.

Direct or indirect interest Direct

Nature of indirect interest

{including registered holder)
Note: Provide details of the circumstances giving rise
to the relevant interest.

Date of change 16 October 2008

No. of securities held prior to change 32,000 in the form of 4,000 American Depository
Receipts

Class Fully paid ordinary shares

Number acquired 8,000 in the form of 1,000 ADRs (RFLXY)

Number disposed nil

Value/Consideration US$15.00 for each ADR

Note: If consideration is non-cash, provide details
and estimated valuation

No. of securities held after change 40,000 fully paid ordinary shares {5,000 ADRs)

Nature of change On market trade
Example: on-market trade, off-market trade, exercise
of options, issue of securities under dividend
reinvestment plan, participation in buy-back

+ See chapter 19 for defined terms.
11/3/2002 Appendix 3Y Page 1
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Red Light Enforcement Contracts in Tualatin, Oregon and South Elgin, lllinois

16 October 2008

Redflex Traffic Systems Inc, a wholly owned subsidiary of Redflex Holdings Limited, is pleased to announce
two new contracts - in Tualatin, Oregon and in South Elgin, lllinois.

Tualatin, OR

The photo enforcement program in Tualatin (population: 25,000) calls for up to eight red light systems.
‘ REDFLEX was selected over two other vendors in a competitive tender process. The contract term is five
years with seven consecutive one-year renewal periods.

South Elgin, IL

| With a population of 21,000, South Elgin is situated near neighboring Elgin, which also operates a REDFLEX

red light enforcement program. The contract calls for up to 15 red light systems for a term of five years with
two consecutive automatic two-year renewals.

“We are pleased with our new contract wins in states where we have a loyal customer base and program

results concluding in accident reduction rates,” said Karen Finley, CEO Redflex Traffic Systems. “We work
to maintain this pace as we move into new states.”

i Redflex Traffic Systems Inc has contracts with more than 200 U.S. cities, and is the largest provider of digital
| red light and speed enforcement services in North America. With photo speed programs in nine states and

photo red light programs across 21 states, REDFLEX has consistently led the market in contract wins,
system installation rates and market share.

For further information:

Graham Davie Karen Finley

Chief Executive Officer President and CEQ

Redflex Holdings Limited Redflex Traffic Systems, Inc
graham.davie@redflex.com.au kfinley@redflex.com

+61 3 9674 1715 +1 623 207-2000
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Redflax Holdings Limited - 31 Market Straet, South Melbaurne, Victorio, Australin 3705, Tel:+ 6139674 1715 Fox: 61 39699 3566 www.redflex.com
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Rule 3.194.2

Appendix 3Y

Change of Director’s Interest Notice

Information or documents not available now must be given to ASX as soon as available. Information and documents
given to ASX become ASX’s property and may be made public.

Introduced 30/9/2001.

Name of entity

REDFLEX HOLDINGS LIMITED

ABN 96 069 306 216

We (the entity) give ASX the following information under listing rule 3.19A.2 and as agent for the director
for the purposes of section 205G of the Corporations Act.

Name of Director

CHRISTOPHER COCPER

Date of last notice

22 April 2008

Date of this notice

13 October 2008

Part 1 - Change of director’s relevant interests in securities

In the case of a irust, this includes interesis in the trust made available by the responsible entity aof the reust
Note: In the case of a company, interesis which come within paragraph (i) of the definitron of "notifiable interest af a director” should be disclosed in

this part.

Direct or indirect interest

Direct and Indirect

Nature of indirect interest

(including registered holder)
Note: Provide details of the circumstances giving rise to
the relevant interest,

Related parties

Date of change

10 — 13 October 2008

No. of securities held prior to change

As the registered holder
165,156 Ordinary Shares

As not the registered holder
977,761 Ordinary Shares

Class Fully paid Ordinary Shares
Number acquired 592,069
Number disposed nil

Value/Consideration
Note: If consideration is non-cash, provide details and
estimated valuation

Purchase by C & E Cooper Superannuation Fund of
562,069 from interests associated with Elizabeth
Geraldine Cooper (wife of Christopher Cooper) by way
of off market transfer, and

30,000 at $2.73 on market

No. of securities held after change

As the registered holder
30,000 Ordinary Shares

Asg not the reqgistered holder
1,704,986 Ordinary Shares

Nature of change

Example: on-market trade, off-market trade, exercise of
options, issue of securities under dividend reinvestment
plan, participation in buy-back

562,069 off market
30,000 on market

+ See chapter 19 for defined terms.
11/3/2002 Appendix 3Y Page !
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Change of Director’s Interest Notice

Part 2 - Change of director’s interests in contracts

Note: In the case of a company. inferesis wiich come within paragraph (i) af “notifiable imterest af a directar” should be disclosed in this part.

Detail of contract

No change

Nature of interest

Name of registered holder
(if issued securities)

Date of change

No. and class of securities to which interest

related prior to change
Note: Details are only required for a contract in relation to
which the interest has changed

Interest acquired

Interest disposed

Value/Consideration
Note: If consideration is non-cash, provide details and an
estimated valuation

Interest after change

+ See chapter 19 for defined terms.
Appendix 3Y Page 2
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Change of Director’s Interest Notice

Rule 3.194.2

Appendix 3Y

Change of Director’s Interest Notice

Information or documents not available now must be given to ASX as soon as available. Information and documents
given o ASX become ASX's property and may be made public.

[ntroduced 30/0/2001.

Name of entity =~ REDFLEX HOLDINGS LIMITED
ABN 96 069 306 216

We (the entity) give ASX the following information under listing rule 3.19A.2 and as agent for the director
for the purposes of section 205G of the Corporations Act.

Name of Director ROGER SAWLEY
Date of last notice 12 November 2007
Date of this notice 13 October 2008

Part 1 - Change of director’s relevant interests in securities

In the case of a irust, this includes interests in the trust made available by the responsible entity of the trust.

Note: In the case of a company, interests which come within paragraph (i} of the definition of “notifiable interests of a director”
shouid be disclosed in this pari.

Direct or indirect interest Direct

Nature of indirect interest

{including registered holder)
Note: Provide details of the circumstances giving rise
to the relevant interest.

Date of change 11 October 2008
(10 October 2008 USA time)

No. of securities held prior to change 24,000 in the form of 3,000 American Depository
Receipts

Class Fully paid ordinary shares

Number acquired 8,000 in the form of 1,000 ADRs

Number disposed nil

Value/Consideration US$15.50 for each ADR

Note: If consideration is non-cash, provide details and
estimated vatuation

No. of securities held after change 32,000 fully paid ordinary shares (4,000 ADRs)

Nature of change On market trade
Example: on-market trade, off-market trade, exercise
of options, issue of securities under dividend
reinvestment plan, participation in buy-back

+ See chapter 19 for defined terms.
11/3/2002 Appendix 3Y Page |
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Change of Director’s Interest Notice

Part 2 - Change of director's interests in contracts
Note: In the case of a company, inferesis which come within paragraph (i} of the definition of “notifiable interests of a director”
should be disclosed in this part.

Detail of contract No Change

Nature of interest

Name of registered holder
(if issued securities)

Date of change

No. and class of securities to which interest

related prior to change
Note: Details are only required for a contract in
relation to which the interest has changed

Interest acquired

Interest disposed

Value/Consideration
Note: If consideration is non-cash, provide details and
an estimated valuation

Interest after change

+ See chapter 19 for defined terms.
Appendix 3Y Page 2 11/3/2002
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10 Qctober 2008

In recent weeks, Redflex Holdings Limited (“Redflex’) has been approached by several parties expressing
interest in acquiring 100% of the issued capital of the Company. The Board has now received multiple hon-
binding indicative proposals from credible parties to acquire the Company at indicative values in excess of
$3.50 per share. The indicative proposals received are incomplete and subject to numerous conditions;
including due diligence and financing approvals.

Given the state of current equity markets, the Board considers that it is responsible and appropriate foritto

carefully evaluate the indicative proposals. The Board proposes to do this in the context of an overall

strategic review encompassing the indicative proposals, current internal Company growth initiatives and
. other potential strategies to generate shareholder value.

As outlined in the 2008 Redflex Annual Report, the Board has significant confidence in the Company’s future
based on our established record of performance, strong market position and the growth in the business
globally. The Board remains excited about the capacity of Redflex to capitalise on its many high growth
opportunities to generate shareholder value.

The Board wishes to stress that the indicative proposals it has received are not formal offers capable of
acceptance by shareholders. There is no guarantee that any formal offer for shares in Redflex will ultimately
be received by the Company, whether at the indicative values or at any other values. The proposals
received are unsolicited, and the Company has not at this time provided access to Company confidential
information.

Should any formal offer be received by the Company, the Board would carefully evaluate it in the context of
the results of the strategic review and consider any formal offer against all alternative options (including
internal initiatives) before any recommendation was put to shareholders.

The Board has retained Gresham Advisory Partners Limited to assist it in conducting the strategic review
and will advise shareholders of further developments, as and when appropriate.

. For further information:
Chris Cooper Craig Jensz
Chairman Executive Director
Redflex Holdings Limited Gresham Advisory Partners
chris@chriscooper.com.au craig.jensz{@gresham.com.au
+651 3 9885 0063 +61 3 9664 0372

Redflex Holdings Limited - 31 Market Street, South Melbourna, Virerig, Aus@lin 32



